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200 South Third Street

Fas Vepas Wevada 89155-2211
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Aftorney for Plamtiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plamtift,
Case No, 250630
_VS-

DeptNo.  XVII

BRIAN O'KEEFE,
#1447732

Defendant,

i i L A S

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO ADMIT
EVIDENCE OF OTHER CRIMES

DATE OF HEARING: 02/10/2000
TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 AM
COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
PHILLIP N. SMITH, JR.. Deputy District Attomey, and files this Netice of Motion and
Motion te Admit Evidence of Other Crimes.
This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
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NOTICE OF HEARING

YOU. AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned
will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department
XVII thereof, on the 10th day of February. 2009, at the hour of 8:00 o'clock a.m,, Or as soon
thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this day of February, 2009,

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/ PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR.

PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR.
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010233

POINTS AND AUTHORI]TIES

TATEMENT OF FACTS

Victeria Whitmarsh, a fashion model in New York City, met and married David

Whitmarsh, a fashion photographer, in 1985. They had a child. Alexandria. They were
planning on having another child, but Mrs. Whitmarsh was diagnosed with Hepatitis C in
1996, Physicians initially gave her five (5) years to live, The Whitmarshs subsequently
moved to Florida, hoping to spend Mrs. Whitmarsh’s final years i a warmer climate. The
terrorist attacks of September 11, 200! had an adverse effect on Mr. Whitmarsh's business
(which was based out of New York City): consequently, they moved to Las Vegas. Mrs.
Whitmarsh began working st Merck-MEDCO, a local pharmaceutical company. Not long
after, she met Brian O'Keefe {(the Defendant), Mrs. Whitmarsh ultimately decided she no
longer wanted to be with her husband and began te pursue a dating relationship with
(’Keefe. Mrs. Whitmarsh and O'Keefe had what could best he termed as an “on-again, off-
again” relationship.

it
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Pethaps most importantly, it was a relationship that was rife with domestic violence
upor Mrs. Whitmarsh at the hands of O’Keefe. This al) culminated on November 5, 2008 at
approximately 11:00 p.m., when L VMPD dispatch received a 911 call from Robin Kolacz,
the manager of the “Casa Salvatore™ apartments located at 5001 E! Parque Avenve. Robin
stated that the female in apartment C-35 was lying inside the apartment and there was blood
everywhere. Police officers and medical personnel responded to the apartment complex.
Patroi officers arrived at the apartment and found the front door open. Officers challenged
the apartment and a male, later identified as O'Keefe, velied at them to come in. The
officers cleared the front room and could hear O'Keefe talking from the master bedroom,
Officers continued to talk to O'Keefe, attempting to get him to come out of the bedroom;
however, be refused. O’Keefe's actions made officers believe O"Keefe was attempting to
“ait” them into the room for a confrontation, Officers from the Crisis Tntervention Team
approached the bedroom and observed O'Keefe holding the victim, identified as Victoria
Whitmarsh,

Officers could see that there was blood on the bed. O'Keefe first told officers Mrs.
Whitmarsh was dead, then stated she was alive and demanded officers enter to help her.
(’Keefe still refused to move away from the victim. Not knowing if Mrs, Whitmarsh was
stll alive, officers entered the bedroom to expedite the removal of O'Keefe, so medical
could render aid, (’Keefe refused to comply with officer’s orders to move away from Mrs.
Whitmarsh; he therefore received one cycle from an electronic control device (ECD).
O’Keefe sull refused to comply and received an additional cycle from the ECD.
Subsequently, O'Keefe complied with the officers’ commands and was taken into custody
and removed from the bedroom. enabling medical persommel to enter and attend to Mrs,
Whitmarsh. Medical personnel determined Mrs. Whitmarsh was deceased. Medical
personnel and officers exited the apartment, The area was cordoned off with crime scene
tape, and homicide detectives and criminalistics personne! were requested to the scene.

Homicide detectives arrived and a telephonic warrant was requested.
i
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Mrs, Whitmarsh appeared to have a stab wound on her right side under the arm pit
areg, an injury to the middle knuckle of her left hand, and an injury o her right index finger.
Mrs. Whitmarsh was lying on her back on the floor and was nude from the waist down. The
bed linens were saturated with blood and there was a bloody black-handied kitchen knife
(approximately 8 inches long) lying on the bed. O'Keefe was taken to the homicide office
and advised of his rights per the Miranda decision, which he stated he understood. Homicide
detectives spoke with O'Keefe who stated he did not know what happened to Mis.
Whitmarsh. O’Keefe stated only he and Mrs, Whitmarsh were i the apartment but he did
not koow where all the blood came from. ('Keefe also stated he had been drinking
throughout the day of November 5, 2008. Detectives spoke to Charles and Joyce Toliver,
who live directly below O’Keefe. Joyce stated she heard loud thumping noises in the
apartment above that began around 10:00 p.m. The noises continued and eventually woke
up Joyce’s husband, Charles. Charles used a broom to strike the ceiling in an attempt to
have the upstairs neighbors, O'Keefe and Mrs. Whitmarsh, quiet down.

When the thumping noise continued, Charles went up to apartment C-35. Charles
found the front door of the apartment open and velled in to O'Keete, O'Keefe called for
Charles to “come in and get her, she's dead.” Charles entered the apartment and walked to
the master bedroom, Charles only saw Mrs, Whitmarsh and O'Keefe in the apartment.
Charles looked into the bedroom and saw O'Keefe standing over the body of Mis.
Whitmarsh. O’Keefe was attempting to lift Mrs. Whitmarsh at the waist. Mrs. Whitmarsh
was naked from the waist down and did not appear to be moving. Charles could see blood
all over the bed and there was a black-handled knife lying on the bed, Charles ran from the
room to the apartment manager's apartment, spoke to Todd Armbruster (Robin’s boyfriend)
and told him to call the police. Jimmy Hathcox. who lives in apartment 36, next to O'Keefe
and Mrs. Whitmarsh, aiso heard loud thumping from apartment 35 at appreximately 10:00
p.m. Hathcox stated he went outside of his apartment and saw O'Keefe standing outside of
his apartment. O"Keefe looked at Hatheox strangely and walked back into his apartment.
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Hathcox stated the next thing he heard was people velling and he opened the door and
saw Charles Toliver and Todd Armbruster standing in front of O'Keefe's door. The men
told Hatheox, “he killed her and there’s blood al! over the place.” Todd Armbruster stated
that Charles Toliver came to his door and 1old him to call the potice. Toliver toild Todd that
he thought the girl in apartment 35 was dead. Todd went up t¢ apartment 35, entered the
apartment, and saw Q'Keefe bent over Mrs, Whitmarsh and blood on the bed. O'Keefe
locked up, saw Todd and teok a swing at him and told him to “get the fuck out of here™ (or
words to that effect). Todd left the apartment, went to apartment C-37, and phoned the
police. Detectives noted a large amount of blood on O'Keefe's clothing and bands, an
incised wound on his right index finger and two abrasions on his forehead. O Keefe also had
several long scratch marks on his back at the belt line, O'Keefe was photographed and his
clothing was impounded, O'Keefe was arrested and transported to the Clark County
Detention Center, where he was bocked for Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On November 6, 2008, at approximately 9:00 a.m., an autopsy was performed on the
body of Mrs, Whitmarsh at the Clark County Coroner's Office by Dr. Jacqueline Benjamin.
Mrs. Whitmarsh had several bruises ou her body mmcluding three on her left upper arm. Dr,
Benjamin nioted a single stab wound just under the victim's right arm pit. The wound looked
to have been made by a single edged knife with the sharp edge of the knife pointed towards
the victim’s back. Dr. Benjamin concluded that the wound was approximately 4.25 inches
long and traveled downward and forward. Upon completion of the autopsy, Dr. Benjamin
found that Mrs. Whitmarsh died from a single stab wound and the manner of death was a
homicide. During the imerview of O'Keefe, O'Keefe was insistern he had called 911.
Detectives checked all the phones at the scene and none of them had a call to 911 or to the
non-emergency police number.

On November 20, 2008, Cheryl Morris gave a statement to the detectives assigned to
the case. Cheryl Morris stated she had a dating relationship with ('Keefe prior to Mrs.
Whitmarsh moving in with him at the 5001 El Parque address. Ms. Morris stated she and
(FKeefe dated for several months (starting in early 2008) and in June or July of 2008 she
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and O'Keefe moved into the El Parque address. At thig point, the relationship was going to
be platonic. Ms. Morris said she slept in the master bedroom and O'Keefe slept on the
couch, Ms. Morris said she and O'Keefe had an agreement that they would share the
apartment as roommmates, and after four (4) days O’Keefe called her and said he was bringing
Mrs, Whitmarsh home to live with them. Ms, Morrs, not amenable fo such a living
situation, left the house and only returned to recover her property. Ms. Maorris said that
during the course of their relationship, O'Keefe would always talk about his pror
relationship with Mrs. Whitmarsh and how he loved her and couldn®t live without her,

Ms. Morris stated when 'Keefe would drink he would become angry and abusive,
and he would also talk about how Mrs. Whitmarsh had ruined his life and would state that he
wanted to kill her (specifically because she had testified against him and “sent [hun] w0
prison™ in case 207835 and that she (Mrs, Whitmarsh) was “poison.” She stated that he
said this several times over several different occasions. O"Keefe alse told Ms. Moris that he
liked Mrs. Whitmarsh because she was “submissive,” Ms. Morris related how O’Keefe
would tell her about his training in the military and how he would demonstrate on her how
he could kill someone easily using a knife. Ms, Mormis alse indicated that in a conversation
with O"Keefe subsequent to the murder, he stated to her that “all he remembered” was him
being asleep on the couch and being woken up by something sharp peking him in the side
and Mrs. Whitmarsh standing over him, “and the next thing he knew, she was bleeding” (or
something to that effect).

The Defendant has an extensive history of viclence against this victim. On January 7.
2003, the Defendant was arrested for slapping the victim, causing her to have a bloody nose.
This injury was observed by police officers, The Defendant ultimately pled guilty to
Resisting a Police Officer in the Las Vegas Justice Court in case 03M004]10X. On
November 14, 2003, the Defendant got into an argument with Mrs. Whitmarsh which
becarne physical when he grabbed her by the arm, pushed her down, struck her tn the head
with his fist, and then strangled her with one hand. He then got a pillow and attempted to

smother her with it. but was interrupted by the next-door neighbor responding to Mrs.
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Whitmarsh's screams and knocking on the door. The neighbor came in and took Mrs.
Whitmarsh to her apartment, whereupon the Defendant broke into and entered the neighbor’s
apartment through her front window. Police officers in the vicinity heard the commotion
and toek the Defendant into custedy. The Defendant ultimately pled guilty to Batery
Constituting Domestic Violence in the Las Vegas Justice Court in case 03M25901X.

On November 26, 2003, police responded to Mrs. Whitmarsh's home in order to do a
“welfare check” whereupon they came in contact with both her and the Defendant. The
police observed that Mrs. Whitmarsh “had been severely beaten.™ Although nitially
nncooperative, Mrs. Whitmarsh ultimately stated to police that the Defendant had beaten her.
The Defendant was charged with Battery Constituting Domestic Violence in the Las Vegas
Justice Court in case 03M26791X, but the charges were ultimately dismissed as part of 2
package negotiation. On April 2, 2004, Mrs, Whitmarsh called the police because the
Defendant had accused her of being unfaithful and slapped her repeatedly, breaking her
glasses. On April 3, 2004, the Defendant again accused Mrs. Whitmarsh of being unfaithful
and slapped her. She ran to the apartment manager's office and the Defendant chased her
there. The manager called the police, and the Defendant was taken into custody. The
Defendant ultimately pled guilty to Battery Constituting Domestic Violence in the Las Vegas
Municipal Court in case C581783A,

On May 29, 2004, the Defendant again accused Mrs, Whitmarsh of being unfaithful
to him. He then battered Mrs, Whitmarsh and apparently forced her to have sex with him.
After the Defendant “passed out,” Mrs. Whitmarsh contacted a security guard at their
residence, and he in turn contacted the police. This incident ultimately led to charges of
Battery with Intent to Commit Sexual Assault. Sexual Assault, Attempt Sexual Assault, and
Burglary being filed against the Defendant in case C202793. The case was tried before a
jury before the Honorable Sally Loehrer on October 25, 2004, with Mrs. Whitmarsh
testifying against the Defendant. The Defendant was convicted of Battery (3 misdemeanaor)
and Burglary and sentenced to credit for time served for Battery and 24 to 120 months for

Burglary—suspended for an indeterminate term of probation not to exceed five {5) years.
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The April 2, 2004 incident ultimately led to & charge of felony battery domestic violence
(based on two prior convictions) being filed against the Defendant in case C207835. The
case was tned before a jury before the Henorable Valorie Vega on September 19, 2005, with
Mrs. Whitmarsh testifying against the Defendant. The Defendant was convicted and
sentenced to 24 to 60 months in prison. He was released in April 2008.

The State now respectfully requests that evidence with regards to the Defendant’s
conviction in C207835 be admitted in its case-in-chief,

STATEMENT OF THE LAW
NRS 48.0452} provides:

Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not agmissible to
prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in
conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other
purposes, such as proof " of motive, opportunity, intent,
prepgratmn, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or
accident.

See NRS 48.045(2); see also Tinch v. State, 113 Nev, 1170, 1176 (1997). The State will

seek to introduce, in its case-in-chief, evidence that the Defendant was arrested and
ultimately convicted (due to Mrs. Whitmarsh's testimony) of felony Battery Constiuting
Damestic Violence in case C207835, The State will also introduce evidence indicating that
the Defendant served close to three (3) years in prison as a result of said conviction. The
State secks this evidence to show the Defendant’s motive and intent. In the instant case, the
Defendant is charged with Open Murder. This charge leaves to the jury the task of
determining if the Defendant is guilty of First Degree Murder, Second Degree Murder,
Voluntary Manslanghter, or Inveluntary Manslaughter. C onsequently, the Defendant’s intent
and motive is highly relevant. The State submits that evidence regarding case C207835 is
admissible pursuant to NRS 48.045 for the limited purpose of establishing a motive with
regards to first degree murder and/or establishing the Defendant’s intent with regards to any
tesser degree of homicide. 1L is anticipated that these will be the key issues in the trial on this
matter.

1

CrPROGRAM FIILES NEEBIA COMDOUTMENT LCONVERTER TEMPIS 55746317 3.D0N

nNe157




b =T~ = BN I - T T - P

rJ [E9 ] (Y] b b 1 a Il bl — [a— — — — i — — o -

[n order to admit “prior bad act” evidence, the State must establish that {1} the prior
act is relevant to the erime charged; (2} the act is proven by clear and convincing evidence:
and (3) the probative value of the evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger of
unfair prejudice. Tinch, 113 Nev. at 1176. The admissibility of prior bad acts is within the
sound discretion of the trial court and will not be overturned on appeal unless found to be
manifestly wrong. Id. The Nevada Supreme Court has held that the State may offer
evidence in its case-in-chief in anticipation of an expected aspect of the defense, See, e.p.,
Overton v. State, 78 Nev. 198, 205-6, 370 P.2d 677, 681 {| 962). In the instant case, due to
the underlying facts as well as pleadings already filed by the Defendant. it is anticipated that
the defense will assert that the Defendant lacked the requisite intent and/or malice for murder
due to lus voluntary intoxication. Consequently, for the crime that the Defendant is charged
with here—Open Murder—an essential element will be the subjective intent of the
Defendant,

A, Motive.

At the preliminary hearing, Cheryl Morris (hereinafter “Morris™) testified that the
Befendant told her that he “hated” Mrs, Whitmarsh because she previously testified against
him, “put him in jail,” and “took three years of his life.” (December 17, 2008 Preliminary
Hearing Transcript, at 69-70 [hereinafter “PHT™]). Morris went on to say that because of
this, the Defendant stated that he “wanted to kill the bitch.” id. at 70. Morris testified that
the Defendant said this on more than ong oceasion. Id. The fact that the Defendant was in
fact convicted of felony Battery Constituting Domestic Violence in case C207835, and
ultimately sent to prison for almost three (3} years due to Mrs, Whitmarsh’s testimony., is
cotrobomative evidence with regards to Morris™ testimony at the preliminary hearing (as well
as the statement she gave to the police during the initial mvestigation), Specifically, it is
evidence that clearly establishes a motive (pursuant to the Defendant’s own statemenis), and
is therefore germane to the State’s efforts in securing a first-degree murder conviction. The
Nevada Supreme Court bas repeatedly upheld the provision of NRS 48.045 that allows the
State to introduce evidence of other bad acts in order 1o establish a motive. Sge, e.p., Wesley
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" (1964); Felder v, State, 107 Nev. 237, 810 P.2d 755 (1991); Cavanaugh v, State, 102 Nev,

v. State, 112 Nev. 503, 916 P.2d 793 (1996): Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189, 886 P.2d 448

478,729 P.2d 481 (1986).

B. Intent.

Long ago, the Nevada Supreme Court held that in the trial of an accused, evidence of
other crimes is competent when it tends to establish intent. See, e.e., Wyatt v. State, 367
P.2d 1G4, 77 Nev, 490 (1961). Sister states have reached a similar conclusion, For gxample,
in State v. Brewer, 507 P.2d 1009 (Ariz. App. 1973), the defendant was tried and convicted

of felony theft of a motor vehicle. At the tral in the matter, the prosecutor introduced
evidence that the defendant had possessed 2 different stolen vehicle the same day he was
arrested for the theft of the vehicle he had been charged with. The Arizona Court of Appeals
found no error. The court held that the evidence of possession was relevant to the
“defendant’s criminal intent or knowledge of his wrongdoing and [was] competent [because

it tended] to establish an absence of mistake or accident.” Id. at 1010, Similarly, in Dutten

v. State, 94 Nev. 461 (1978), disapproved on other grounds by Gray v. State, 100 Nev. 556,
688 P.2d 313 (1984), police conducted an undercover fencing operation called “Operation
Switch.” On the day of the incident, the defendant walked into a store with a Co-conspirator.
Both the defendant and the co-conspirator negotiated the sale to an undercover police officer
of a stolen camera and stolen bronzeware, The defendant, however, was charged only with
the possession of the stolen camera.

At trial, the State introduced evidence that the bronzeware the defendant passessed
was stolen the same day as the camera. The district court allowed the evidence. and the
Nevada Supreme Court upheld this ruling, reasoning that the evidence was admissible under
the complete stery of the crime doctrine as well as to counter the defendant’s claim that he
did not have knowledge that the camera was stolen. Dutton, 54 Nev. at 464. In Findley v.
State, 94 Nev. 212, 577 P,2d 867 {1978), overruled on other greunds by Braunstein v, Siate,
T18 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002), the defendant was charged with lewdness with a minor. At

trial, the State presented two witnesses (other than the charged victim) who testified that the
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defendant molested them similarly some nine years earlier. {Implicit in the Court’s ruling to
allow admission of such evidence was the finding that nine years was not overly remote in
time.) The Court affirmed the admission of the evidence to prove intent and absence of
mistake or accident. Perhaps most importantly, the Court noted that intent is placed n issue
when the defendant pleads not guilty, holding in Overton, supra; “[a] plea of not guilty puts
in issue every material allegation of the information.” Overton, 78 Nev. at 205. 370 P.2d at
680. In the instant case, the Defendant has necessarily put every material allegation of the
Information in issue.

Federal courts, applying the Federal Rule of Evidence 404(3)(b)}—which is identical
to NRS 48.045—also allow such evidence when it is used to establish intent. In United
States v. Thomas. 835 F.2d 219 (9" Cir. 1987), cert. denied, 108 S.Ct. 1741, 486 U.S. 1010
(1988). the Court held that evidence that the defendant had previeusly written bad checks
was admissible to show intent in the prosecution for transporting a secutity known to have
been taken by fraud. In the charged offense, the defendant had written a check on an
account that had been closed for six months and subsequently obtained a cashier’s check on
the strength of that deposit, The prior bad checks were written approximately one year
before transaction for which the defendant was on trial. The court concluded that
defendant’s intent in depositing the bad check was very much in issue, and consequently the
admission of the evidence was appropriate.

In Unijted States v. Kirk, 528 F.2d 1057 {5th Cir. 1976). the defendant was charged
with threatening the life of the President of the United States of America. At trial, the

prosecution presented evidence showing that three vears earlier the defendant had committed
the same offense. The court ruled this evidence 1o be properly admissible to show the

defendant’s intent, holding:

Whether the prior cenviction tended to show that defendant made this threat
intentionally or as the result of “alcohol taking™ was a matter for the jury’s
determination, The fact that the former offense vecurred three years prior to the
offense charged does not make it so remote as to be excluded,
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Id. at 1061.

[n United States v. Beechum, 582 F.2d 898 (5th Cir. 1978}, a Jury convicted the defendant, a
substitute letter carrier for the United States Postal Service, of urlawiully possessing a 1898
silver dollar that he knew to be stolen from the mails, in violation of I8 U.S.C. Section 1708
{(1976). To establish that the defendant intentionally and unlawfully possessed the silver
dollar, the Government intreduced into evidence of two Sears, Roebuck & Co. credit cards
found in the defendant’s wallet when he was arrested, Neither card was issued to the
defendant, and neither was signed. The Government also introduced evidence indicating that
the cards had been mailed some ten months prior to the defendant’s arrest to two different

addresses on routes be had serviced. The Court ultimately held:

Where the issue addressed is defendant’s intent to commit the offense charged,
the relevancy of the extrinsic offense derives from the defendant's i.nduiging
himself in the same state of mind in the perpetration of both the extrinsic an
charged offenses. The reasoning is that because the defendant had unlawful
intent in the exmnsic offense, it 15 less likely that he had lawful intent in the
present offense,

Id. at G11.

In Uniteg States v. Delocach, 634 F.2d 763 (D.C. Cir. 1980}, the defendant was
convicted for submitting false applications for labor certification of an undocumented
immigrant. The Court allowed admission of testimony of three government witnesses. all
undocumented imrmigrants, that the defendant was a “swindler” who took their money for a
false premise to find them jobs and labor certifications and that the conduct occurred over a
period encompassing a year and a haif prior to the offense charged. The Court held that the
testimony was properly admissible. The prosecution argued that the evidence of the other
“swindles” related to the ultimate issue of intent and the intermediate issues of knowledge,
motive, common plan and absence of mistake and accident. The defendant argued that the
prior bad acts were so dissimilar that the only logical inference to be drawn from the
admission of them was that he was a bad person who swindles undocumented imanigrants.

and therefore, he was likely to try to deceive the government. The Court held:
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These prior acts were instead introduced to show intent. 1n this case, where
intent was the only real issue, and where apge]lant prediciably raised the
defense of mistake, the admissible bad acts evidence need not show incidents
identical to the eveats charged, so long as they are closely related to the
offense and tend to rebut thelgcfense of mistake,

Id. at 769,

The Court cited three additional factors, which reinforeed the admissibility of the extrinsic
cvidence. The prior acts were introduced to show intent, which was the only real 1ssue. The
government had great need for evidence on the issue of intent: and the trial court gave a
limiting instruction which properly restricted the jury’s use of the evidence.

The admissien of the other acts in this case is entirely appropriate since the necessary
element of the instant crime sought to be proved (the intent and motive to commit a violent
act against Mrs. Whitmarsh notwithstanding the Defendant’s anticipated claim of voluntary
intoxication and the inability to form the requisite intent) cannot be substantially established
by other evidence. See. e.g., Jones v. State, 85 Nev. 4, 448 P.2d 702 {1969} Tucker v. State,
82 Nev. 127,412 P.2d 970 {1966). The intent to commit a vialent act upon Mrs, Whitmarsh
will be a crucial efement that the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt. As such, the
evidence here is probative in helping the State meet that substantial burden of proof.

D.  Balancing Test.

After a court finds that evidence of other crimes fits within NRS 48.045(2), it must
then review the evidence in regard to NRS 48.035. This statute requires a weighing of
probative value against prejudicial effect. As stated above, it is anticipated that the defense
will argue that the proffered evidence is more prejudicial than probative. In United States v.
Parker, 549 F.2d 1217 (9" Cir. 1977), cert. denied. 430 1.8, 971, 97 S.Ct. 1659 (1977), the

' NRS 48.035 provides in pertinent part:

1. Although relevant, evidence is not admissible if its probative value is substantially
outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of
misteading the jury.

2. Although relevant, evidence may be excluded if its probative value is substantially
outweighed by considerations of undue delay, waste of time or needless presentation
of cumnulative cvidence.

CAPROGRAM FTLES‘NEE&*&A.{TUM-.D(}CLMENT CONVERTER TEMPI9 155746217 3. D00
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defendants were convicted of armed bank robbery and one defendant was also convicted of
bank larceny. During the course of the trial, evidence was brought in that the defendant had
been addicted to heroin for approximately ten years and had been involved in drug
counseling durmg most of that period. The court held that the evidence of defendant’s
narcotics dealing was admissible to show his motive to commit a robbery, The defendant
argued that the prejudicial effect of the extrinsic offense substantially outweighed its
probative value, The court stated that “evidence relevant to defendant’s motive is not
rendered inadmissible because of its highly prejudicial nature . . . . The best evidence often
is!™ Parker, 549 F.2d at 1222,

In Tucker v, State, 82 Nev. 127, 412 P.2d 970, (1966), the Nevada Supreme Court
elucidated the standard for balancing the probative value versus the prejudicial effect of bad

act evidence:

The reception of such evidence is justified by necessity and, if other evidence
has substantially established the element of the crime involved (motive, intent,
identity, absence of mistake, etc.), the probative value of showing another
offense is diminished, and the tmal court should rule it inadmissible even
though relevant and within an exception to the rule of exclusion.

Id. at 130, 412 P.2d at 971-972.

In the instant case, the only way to show the motive is to actally admit evidence of it. The
probative value of admitting cvidence with regards to the Defendant’s conviction in
C207835 is therefore by no means substantially ocutweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice, The State prays that this Court will recognize the necessity and the admissibility
of the evidence it now seeks to admit to prove the Defendant’s motive and intent in the
mstant case. The State intends to illustrate by clear and convincing evidence that the
Defendant indeed committed the acts which are sought to he admitted, pursuant to Petrocelli
v. Stgte, [01 Nev. 46, 692 P.2d 503 (1985), The State intends to de so in an evidentiary
hearing prior to trial.

e
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CONCLUSION
Based upon the foregeing, the State requests the Court grant the State’s Motion to

Admit Evidence of Other Crimes.

DATED this day of February, 2009,

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/PHILLIP N. SMITH, JR.
PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR.
Depﬁ District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010233

CAPROGRAM FILESNEENS A OM DOCUMENT CONVERTERTEMP IO 5574621 73,000
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CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

1 hereby certify that service of the State’'s Notice and Motion to Admit Other Bad Acts, was

made this day of February, 2009, by facsimile transmission to:

PATRIC[A PALM, ESQ.
FAX # 455-6265

{8’ Terry Schessler
Secretary for the District Atiorney's OTTce

ts/dyu

CrPROGRAM FILES NERMEA COM.DOC UMENT CONVERTER TEMP 0155745217200
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NOTC o 48;:/
DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attomey FE R R THE RO
Nevada Bar #002781

PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR,

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #0010233

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702} 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
PlaintifT, g CASENOQ: 250630
-VS- % DEPT NO: XVII

BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE,

#1447732

Defendant.

NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174,234 { Xa)]

TO: BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, Defendant; and

TO:; PATRICIA PALM ESQ)., Counsel of Record:

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses in its case in chief:
NAME ADDRESS

BENJAMIN, JACQUELINE DR. CLARK COUNTY CORONER
This witness is expected to testify regarding
the nature of the vietim's injuries.

STALLINGS, JOHN ME #0031

DUHN, ROBBIE LVMEPD #5947

CaProgmm FriesNeevia Comt Document Coavimertemp 352 10 F462 T4 D0

10168
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These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information and

any other witness for which a separate Notice has been filed.

o K Regs

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #302781

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
I bereby certify that service of NOTICE OF WITNESSESS AND/OR EXPERT
WITNESSES, was made this 3rd day of February, 2009, by facsimile transmission to:

PATRICIA PALM ESQ
FAX #(702) 455-6273

{af Terry Schessler
Secretary for the District Aftorney’s Office

5 Bogmmn Fries!Neevia.Com' Docurpett Converiar tempt 397 | 01462744000
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DAVID M. SCHIECK FILED
SPECIAL PURLIC DEFENDER - :

MNevada Bar No. 0824 m um
Randall H. Pike f 3 10 3%
Assistant Special Public Defender -]

Nevada Bar No. 1940 :
B:maspggg | Public Defend Ve
p i3l Publi¢ De er T \]

Nevada Bar No. 6008 CLERN 9F TIE Sk
330 South Third Steet, Suite 800

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2318

E?nzg 4556265

702

455—6'2? fax
roike@@eo.clark.nv.us
palmpa@co.clark. nv.us
Attorneys for O'Keefe
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE QF NEVADA, ; CASE NO. C250630
DEPT. NO. XVil

Plaintiff,
VS,
BRIAN O'KEEFE #1447732

Cefendant

R PT OF COPY
RECEIPT of a copy of the Oppositicn to State’s Motion ta Admit Evidence of Other
Bad Acts is hereby acknowledged this é_ day of February, 2009

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

is Avd.,
Las Vegas NV 89155

HO01RS
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DAVID M. SCHIECK ' F‘ l L E D
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER !

Nevada Bar No. 0824 Fﬂ 5 m a1 EH lﬂs

Randall H, Pike
Assistant Special Public Defender

Nevada Bar No. 1840 i

Fatricia Palm {/f’/’ CFL/Eu\_/
Deputy Special Public Defender CLERK 0% THE COURT
Nevada Bar No. 6008 5
330 South Third Street, Suite 800

Las Vegas, NV 88155-2316

{12; 4558265

702) 455-6273 fax

rpike@co.clark nv.us

palmpa@co.clark.nv.us

Aftormeys for O'Keefe
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA -

PFud s

—r
Ly
e

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Piaintiff,

CASE NO, C250630
DEPT. NO. XvI|

n

ve.
BRIAN O'KEEFE #1447732
Defendant

—_
e

— el
-1
—

OPPOSITION TO STATE'S MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF OTHER BAD ACTS

Date of Hearing: 2.10-09
Time of HeariIl.'ligg: §:0Cam

COMES NOW the Defendant herein, BRIAN O'KEEFE, By and through his
attomeys, DAVID M. SCHIECK, Special Public Defender, RANDALL PIKE, Assistant
Special Public Defender, and PATRICIA FALM, Deputy Special Public Defender, and
hereby offer the following in opposition to the State’s Motion to introduce evidence of other

bad acts in the above-entitied matter.
As the State limits its requested evidence that it requests to the conviction and facts
8335, this response will respond solely to that request.

n00169
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As a general proposition, evidence of prior crimes and other bad acts of a criminal
defendant js inadmissible character evidence unless it falls within certain speacific
exceptions. See, NRS 458 045,

As the State notes in it's Motion to admit, NRS 48.045(2) and Tinch v, State, 113
Nev. 1170 {1997) offer some guidelines regarding the appropriate admission of this
extremely prejudicial evidence. The seriousness of an improper admission of such
evidence, of, an in tria! reference to a prior criminal history of a defendant is reversible
emor. Witherow v, State, 104 Nev, 721, 765 P.2d 1153 (1988). The test far determining

whether a reference to criminal history accurred is whether “a juror could reasonably infar

b SN < - I Y I -~ T ¥ S SN P4 R ¥ |

p—
=

from the facis presented that the accused had engaged in pricr criminal activity,” Manning

v. Warden, 99 Nev. 82, 658 P.2d B47 (1983), citing Commonwealih v. Allen, 292 A.2d 373,
375 (Pa 1972).

— Fmt
L

This court in Manning, sypra, detailed a number of different cases where indirect
references to prior acts were found to be references to efiminal history. See e.g. Gehrke v,
State 86 Nev, 581, 613 P.2d 1028 (1980); Reese v. Slate, 95 Nev. 419 596 P.2d 212

16 | (1979); Geary v. State, 31 Nev. 784, 544 P.2d 4‘!7 {1975); Eounts v. State 87 Nav. 165,
17| 483 P.2d B54 (1971). Most interestingly, the State in Manning, supra, conceded that in a

P
o s

18 | majority of jurisdiction, an improper reference to criminal history is a violation of due

19 | process since it affects the presumption of innocenca. |d at 87.

20 The Nevada Supreme Court summarized the position of Defendant O'KEEFE as

21 | follows:

22 The danger of allowing prejudicious remarks and testimony dufing a tral is
not confined to their momentary effect upon the juror. Trial tactics are

23 influenced immeasurably. Counsel is forced to object and argue repeatedly.
Defendant may be compelled to testify when it is his right not to da so. |bsen

24 v, State 83 Nev. 42, 422 P .2d 543 (1887)

25 This reversal for a new trial is a bard burden to bear because Walker is g
confirmed criminal. But it is a proud tradition of our system that eve man,

. 26 no matter who he may be, is guaranteed a fair trial, As stated by Chief

Justice Traynor in Fﬂplg ¥, gghgm 282 P.2d 905 at 912 {Cal. 1955} Thus,

27 | no matter how guilly a detandant might be or how outrageous his crime, he
must not be deprived of a fair trial, and any action, official or ctherwise, that

28 would have that effect would not be telerated.’

u : npp1790
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The requisites of a trial free of prejudicial atmosphere are too deeply
implanted to require repetition; for when the death penaity is executed. its
consequences are imetrievable. A fair trial therefare is a very minimai
standard to require before its imposition.”
Walker v, Fogfiani, 83 Nev. 154, 157, 425 P.2d 794 (1983)
If the State desires to introduce evidenca of other bad acts or criminal activity it is
necessary for the Court {e hold a hearing wherein it is the burden of the State to establish
that: (1) the incident in relevant to the crime charged; (2) the act is praven by clear and
convincing evidence; and (3) the probative value of the evidence is not substantially
outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice. Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 846 P.2d

1061 {1967). As the State has properly announced it's desire to intraduce such evidence,

oo - e B b R

y—
L]

it is requested that a hearing be held outside the presence of the jury to determine if the

]
]

evidence is properly admissiole.

1

Although a prior felony conviction may be admitted for impeachment, a court shouid

—
Lt

exciude such evidence if its probative value is substantiaily outweighed by dangér of unfair
prejudice, confusion of the issues, or misleading the jury. Edwards v._State, 90 Nev. 255,
524 P.2d328 (1974); Anderson v, State, 92 Nev. 21, 544 P.2d 1200 {1976); NRS 48,035
Only through an evidentiary hearing before the trial can the Court conduct the necessary

e
=~ hn W P

weighing to determine what, if any, evidence may be admissible and if admissible, for what

—
= -]

limited purpose.

—
b«

Finally, the Court will then have to determine the appropriate limiting instruction to

]
L]

be given to the jury.

[}
ey

ONC N
itis respectfully requested that the Court enter its order preciuding the State from

| o B 5
LT T ]

24 "
25
26
27
28
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1| introducing any of the above evidence along with any other prior bad acts, character
evidence or unrelated criminal activity at the trial herein
DATED this @" day of February 2009.

Respectiully Submitted;
DAVID M. SCHIECK
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
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andafl H, Pike
Patricia Palm

330 5. Third St, #800
Las Vegas. NV 89155
Attorneys for O'Keefe
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DAVID M. SCHIECK 5 T
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER Cf F | L E D!
Nevada Bar No. 0824 [ -
Randall H. Pike -FEB m. .. )
Assistant Special Public Defender 2 09 PN ‘09
Nevada Bar No. 1940 i

Patricia Palm e
Deputy Special Public Defender - AN
Nevada Bar No. 6008 ELERN o The ¢

330 South Third Street, Suite 800 QR

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2316

{702) 455-6265

{(702) 4556273 fax

rpike@co.clark.nv.us

palmpa@co.clark.nv.us

Attomey for O'Keefe

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, } CASE NO. C2z50630
DEFT. NO. XV
Paintiff,

}

UL ]
| )

)

Date of Hearing: nfa
BRIAN O'KEEFE Time of Hearing:n/a

Defendant )

STIPULATION AND ORDER
COMES NOW the Defendant herein, BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and through

his attorneys, DAVID M. SCHIECK, Special Public Defender, RANDALL P KE,
and PATRICIA PALM, Deputy Special Public Defenders, and the State of
Nevada, by and through its Deputy District Attorney, PHILLIP SMITH, hereby
stipulate that the Court may Order release of the Medicai Records of VICTORIA
WHITMARSH to the office of the Clark County Special Public Defender's Office
upon presentation of the Order attached hereto in compliance with the subpoena
issued in this case.

THE PARTIES FURTHER STIPULATE that upon receipt of the records,
that Counssl for the Defendant shall provide a complete copy of the same to the

10173
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BJEFETDER

AARKK COUNTY
MEVADA

office of the Clark County District Attorney, and that prior to introducing any
evidence derived as a result of this Order, including attempts at introducing the
contents or any expert opinions that are based in whole cr in part upen the
contents of the records, that Counse! for the Defense shail presant a pre-trial
proffer. This proffer shall be made prior to the Calendar call in this matter.

DATED this day of February, 2008.

1ke % illip Sm
Assistant Special Public Defender Deputy District Attarney

ORDER

THE COURT BEING FULLY APPRISED as the contents of the enclosed
stipuiation and the law appurtenant thereto, it is therefore,
ORDERED, AJUDGED AND DECREED that copies of the Madical records of
VICTORIA WHITMARSH, shail ba released to the Clark County Special
Public Defender’s Office subject to the use restrictions contained hargin.

Dated this __ /¢ day of February, 2009

AT f—

Honorable District Court Judge
Hon. Michael P. Villani

ATIRLR A
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Clark Covas District A

un istrict Attom.

Newds B joganel Pt
Deputy District Aﬁn;ney. 2003
Ney Bar #010233 EDWARD A. FRIEDLAND
200 South Third Street OF THE COURT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211 :

(702) 6712500 ”
Attorney for Plaintiff KRISTEN BROWN  DEPUTY

ﬂ : DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
| THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, )
-5~ Case No, C250630
Dept No. v
BRIAN KERRY O’KEEFE,
#1447732
)
Defendant. AMENDED
INFOEMATION
STATE OF NEVADA

551

COUNTY OF CLARK
DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of

Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That BRIAN KERRY O'KEFFTE, the Defendant(s) above named, having committed
the crime of MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)
(Feleny - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165), on or about the 5th day of Naovember, 2008,
within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes
in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
did then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and
deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill VICTORIA WHITMARSH, a human being,
by stabbing the said VICTORIA WHITMARSH with a deadly wedpon, to-wil: a knife.

N

FARTDOCTDP W FAi0; DOC
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Deput :sfrict Aftorney
Nevads B g

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

ar #010233

Names of witnesses known to the District Antorney’s Office at the time of filing this

Information are as follows:
NAME
ARMBRIUSTER, TODD
BALLEJOS, JEREMIAH
BENJAMIN, JACQUELINE DR
BLASKO, KEITH
BUNN, CHRISTOPHER
COLLINS, CHELSEA
CONN, TODD
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
FORD, DANIEL
FONBUENA, RICHARD
HATHCOX, IIMMY
HUTCHERSON, CHRISTOPHER
IVIE, TRAVIS
KYGER, TERESA
KQOLACZ, ROBIN

ADDRESS

5001 OBANNON DR #34 LVNV
LVMPD #8406

ME (0081

LVMFPD #2995

LVMFD #4407

LYMPD #9255

LVMPD #8101

CDC

LVYMPD COMMUNICATIONS
LVMPD RECORDS

LVMPD #4244

LVMPD #6834

3001 EL PARQUE AVE #C-36 LVNV
LVYMPD #12996

LVMPD #6405

LVMPD #41%]

5001 EL PARQUE AVE #38 LVNV

P I CRC ST 2 T VL D
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LOWREY-KNEPP, ELAINE
MALDONADO, JOCELYN
MORRIS, CHERYT,
MURPHY, KATE
NEWBERRY, DANIEL
PAZOS. EDUARDO
RAETZ, DEAN
SANTARQSSA, BRIAN
SHOEMAKER, RUSSELL
TAYLOR, SEAN

TINIO, NORMA
TOLIVER, CHARLES
TOLIVER, JOYCE

WHITMARSH, ALEXANDRA

WHITMARSH, DAVID
WILDEMANN, MARTIN

DA#O8F23348X/ts
LVMPD EV#0811053918

{TKS)

DISTRICT ATTORNEY INVESTAGATOR
LVYMPD #6520

UNKNOWN

LVMPD #9756

LVYMPD #4936

LVMPD #6817

LVMPD #4234

LYMPD #6930

LVMPD #2096

LVMPD #8718

2992 ORCHARD MESA HENDERSONNY
5001 EL PARQUE #29 LVYNY

3001 EL PARQUE #C-29 LYNV

7648 CELESTIAL GLOW LYNV

7648 CELESTIAL GLOW LYNV
LVMPD #3516
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NOTC cfiu{éﬁg;;}f
DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney G RN RETHESANET
Nevada Bar #00278]

PHILLIP N. SMITH, IR,

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #0010233

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plamtiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, ) CASENO: C250630
- DEPT NO: V

BRIAN O'KEEFE, aka,
Brian Kerry O'Keefe, #1447732 ;

Defendant. )

NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT WITNESS
[INRS 174.234(1)(a)]

TO: BRIAN (YKEEFE, aka, Brian Kerry O'Keefe, Defendant; and

TO:  PATRICIA PALM Deputy Special Public Defender, Counsel of Record:

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses in its case in chief:

NAME ADDRESS
BAS, JENNIFER FORENSIC SCIENTIST LVMPD #9944

Will testify as to the DNA collection and

analysis.

C*Prowenm Files™eovee. Cop\Ducument Canverter lemp' S HER I -46TE 16, PO

0378
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These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information and

any other witness for which a separate Notice has been filed.

o Kowo Pege

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Wevada Bar #002781

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

E hereby certify that service of NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT WITNES S,
was made this 17th day of February, 2009, by facsimile transmission 1o
EATRI%[A Eﬁlf‘mbl‘ Defend
u ecial Public Defender
FAX 3(752) 455-6273

/s! Terry Schessler
Secretary for the District Attorney's (Mfice

G Bogrm FilesNeovia Comtboeumant Conversatompp JOSEI0-467816. DOC

100179
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1 | NoTC FILED
DAVID M. SCHIECK ,
2 | SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER te6 28 3 yo PN 09

State Bar No. 0824
RANDALL H. PIKE

Assistant Special Public Defender
Nevada Eapecl;m 1840 Q};_://

3
4
Patricia A. Palm CLERK OF THE COURT
3 | Deputy Special Public Defender
| State Bar No. 6006
6 [| 330 South Third Street, 8th Floor
Las Vegas, NV B9155
7 ?02; 425-6265 )
702) 455-8273 fax
8 [ pike@co.clark.nv.us

palmpa@co.ciark.nv.us
9 || Attorneys for O'KEEFE

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

13| STATE OF NEVADA, i CASE NO. C 250630
DEPT. NO. X3
14 Plaintiff,
151 vs. i
{3 " BRIAN O'KEEFE #1447732, g
17 Defendant, %
}

E NDANT'S EXPERT ESS
eetl Fﬁeﬂ'siuimm—ml.nas{z}]

O of] DATE:
w s~ TIME:
= =y
o
ﬁ E,z : TO:  THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, and
4 TO: DAVID ROGER, District Atterney, Attorney for Plaintitf
YQU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant, BRIAN
26 | O'KEEFE, by and through his attorneys, DAVID M. SCHIECK Special Public Defender
27 | RANDALL H. PIKE, Assistant Special Public Defender, and PATRICIA A. PALM Deputy
28 | Special Public Defender, intends to call an expert witness in her case in chief as follows
SFECTAL PR
DENEDER

NE¥ADA
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DEFENDER
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1. GEORGE SCHIRO, 5004 W. Admiral Doyle Dr., New lberia, LA 70560, an expert
in forensic science. Should this witness testify, he will testify in the area of crime scene
analysis, crirme scene investigation, processing of crime scenes, cotlection and preservation
of evidence, latent print comparison, footwear examination, and DNA evaluations and will give
opinions related thereto,

2. DR. JOHN HIATT, 8180 Placid St., Las Vegas, NV 89123, a Consuiting
Toxicologist in effects of Alcoho!, effects of Spironolactone, Traxopone, Venlataxine, and
combinations of the above in an ingividual.

3. BARRY BATES, 2022 Pinion Spring Dr., Henderson, NV 89074, a
biomechanical engineer.

A copy of the expert witnesses' curriculum vitae is attached hereto.

DATED this ~40% day of February, 2008.

SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
DAVID M. SCHIECK

DALL H, PIKE
PATRICIA A. PALM
330 South Third Strest, Ste 800
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2316
702) 455-6265
Attorneys for O'Keefe

RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT of a copy of the Notice of Expert Witnesses is hereby acknowledged.
DATED: & 80 a0
DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE




GEORGE SCHIRO, MS, F-ABC
CONSULTING FORENSIC SCIENTIST
FORENSIC SCIENCE RESOURCES™
P.0). Box 188
CADE, LA 70519 USA
CELL: (337) 322-2724
E-MAIL: Gjschiro@cs.com

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Industrial Chemistry - Forensic Science

Including five hours of redit in Forensic DNA Analysis of Biclogical Materials and
accompanying lab course, three hours of eredit in Quality Assurance and Bioinformatics, three
hours of credit in Biochemistry, two hours of credit in Forensic Analysis of DNA Data, and three
hours of credit in Experimental Statistics

University of Central Florida, Orlando, FL.

Bachelor of Science, Microbiology
Including three hours of credit in Genetics
Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, La.

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION

Mouolecuiar Riology Feltow of the American Board of Criminalistics

FROFESSIONAL TRAINING ATTENDED

Oetober 2007 “Imegrity, Character, and Ethics in Forensic Science”— Instructor: Dan RB.
Gunnell, Lovisiana Association of Forensic Sciemists (LAFS) Fal! 2007
Meeting, Baton Rouge, LA

February 2007 “Anatomy of a Wrongful Conviction: A Multidisciplinary Examination of
the Ray Krone Case™ — Co-chairmen: George Schire and Thomas Streed,
American Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting, San Antonio, TX

February 2006 “Solving the South Louisiana Serial Killer Case — New Approaches
Blended With Older Trusted Techniques™ Co-chairmen: Geerge Schiro
and Ray Wickenheiser, American Academy of Forensic Sciences (AAFS)
Meeting, Seattle, WA
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“National Forensic Science Technoiogy Center (NFSTC) Auditor
Workshop” - Instructors: Mark Nelson, John Wegel, Richard A. Querreri,
and Heatber Subert

“CODIS v5.6 Software Training” - [nstuctor: Carla Heron, Baton Rouge,
LA

"DNA Auditor Training” - instructots: Richard A. Guerreri and Anja
Einseln, Austin, TX

“Statistical Analysis of Forensic DNA Evidence” - Instructor: Dr. George
Carmody, Harvey, LA

“Association of Forensic DNA Analysts and Administrators {AFDAA)
Workshops™ - Instructors: 8. Cribari, Dr. T, Wang, and R. Wickenheiser,
Austin, TX

“Basic Forensic DNA Analysis” - Instructor: Dr. Pat Wojtkiewicz, Baton
Rouge, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, Reno, NV

“Advanced AmpFrSTR™ 8 ABI Prista™ 310 Genetic Analyzer
Training” - Instructor: Catherine Caballero, PE Biosystems, Raton Rouge,
LA

“DNA Typing with 8TRs - Silver Stain Detection Workshop" -
Instructors: Dr. Brent Spoth and Kimbery Husten, Promega Corp,
Madison, WI

“Laboratory Auditing” - Instructors: Dr. William Tilstone, Richard Lester,
and Tony Longhetti, NFSTC Workshop, Baton Rouge, LA

“Forensic Microscopy™ - Instructor: Gary Laughlin, McCrone Research
[nstitute, La. State Police Training Academy, Baton Rouge, LA

“Presenting DNA Statistics in Court” - Instructors: Dr. Bruce Weir and Dr,
George Carmody, Promega Symposium, Scotisdale, AZ

“Forensic DNA Analysis” - Instructors: Pal Wojtkiewicz and Michelle
Ganes, North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, New York, NY
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“Forensic DNA Testing” - [nstructors: Dr. Jim Karam and Dr. Sudhir
Sinha, Tulane University Medical Center, New Orleans, LA

“Bloodstain Patlern Analysis and Crime Scene Docuinentation”
Instructors: Paulette Sutton, Steven Symes, and Lisa Elrod
North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

“Introduction to Forensie Fiber Microscopy™ - Instructor: Skip Palenik
Acadiana Crime Lab, New Iberia, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, Nashville, TN

“Personality Profiling and Crime Scene Assessment” - [nstructors: Roy
Hazelwood and Robert Ressler, Loyela University, New Orleans, LA

“Bastc Forensic Serology”
FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

DNA Workshop - Instructor: Anne Montgomery, GenTest Laboratories
Southetn Association of Forensic Scientists (SAFS) Spring Meeting,
Savannah, GA

Attended the Second International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of
DNA Analysis. FB] Academy, Quantico, VA

“Introduction 1o Human Immunoglobulin Allotyping” - Instructor: Dr,
Moases Schanfield, AGTC, La. State Police Crime Lab, Baton Rouge, LA

Bone Grouping Techniques Workshop - Instructor: Dr. Robert Gaensslen
and Dr. Henry Lee, University of New Haven, New Haven, CT

Attended the International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA
Analysis. FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

DNA Workshop
SAFS Fail Mecting, Clearwater, FL

“Non-Isotopic Detection of DNA Polymorphisms” - Instructor: Dale
Dykes, AGTC, North La, Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

“Microscopy of Hairs™ - Instructor: Skip Palenik
North La. Cnme Lab, Shreveport, LA
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“Analysis of Foorwear and Tire Evidence" - [nstructors; Max Courtney
and Ed Hueske, North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

Introduction to Forensic Genetics Workshop - Instructor: Dr. Moses
Schanfield, SAFS Fall Meeting, Atlants, GA

Isoelectric Focusing Workshop
SAFS/SWAFS/SAT Combined Spring Meeting, Baton Rouge, LA

Adliended the Intemational Symposium on Forensic Immunology
FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

“Collection and Preservation of Physical Evidence” - Instructor: Dale
Morgan, FBl School, Metainie, LA

“Atomic Absorption in Determining Gunshot Residues™
Bl Academy, Quantico, VA

“Arson Acceterant Detection Course™ - Instruciors: Rick Tontarski, Mary
Low Fultz, and Rick Stroehel, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms
(BATT) Lab, Rockville, MD

*Questioned Documents for the Investigator™ - Instructor: Dale Morean
FBIl School, Baton Rouge, LA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Acadiana Criminalistics Laboratory - New [beria, LA
An ASCLD-LARB accredited laboratory

Employed as a Forensic Chemist - DNA Technical Leader. Duties include mcorporating
the INA Advisory Board (DAB) standards, accountability for the technical operations of
the lab's biology section, conducting DNA analysis using the 13 STR cere joci in
casework, DNA research, forensic science training, and crime scene investigation.
Qualificd as an expert over 130 times in 28 Louisiana parish courts, one Florida county
court, one Mississippi county court, one Missouri county count, one Nevada county court,
federal court, and two Louisiana city courts. Has qualified as an expert in the following
areas; latent fingerprint development; serology; crime scene investigation; forensic
science; trajectory reconstruction; shoeprint identification; crime scene reconstruction;
blocdstain pattemn analysis; DNA analysis; fracture match analysis; and hair comparison.
Has alse consulted on cases in 17 states and the United Kingdom. Worked over 2600
cases. Independently contracted DNA technical auditor with NFSTC and Forensic Quality
Services. Contracted DNA Technical Leader to the Southwest La. Crime Lab in Lake
Charles, LA. Is also a member of the La. Foundation Against Sexual Assault {LAFASA)
Trainigg Team.
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1988 - 2001 Louisiana State Police Crime Lab - Bason Rouge, LA
An ASCLD-LAB accredited labaratory

Employed as a Forensic Scientist 2. Duties included incorporating the DNA Advisory
Board {DARB) standards and conducting DNA analysis using the 13 STR core loci in
casework. Duties have also included setting up and developing methods for the analysis
af blvod and body fluids using biological, chemical, microscopic, immunological,
biochemical, electrophoretic, ard iscelectric focusing techniques; applying these methods
ta criminal investigations; and testifying to the results in court. Additional duties included
crime scene investigation/reconstruction; latent print development: fracture match
comparison; projectile trajectory determination; shoeprint comparison; hair examination;
bicod spatter interpretation; and training personnel in various aspects of forensic science.

1984 - 198% Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office Crime Lab — Metairig, LA

Employed as Criminalist {1). From 11/85 to 4/83 duties included collection and analysis
of blood, body fluids, hairs, and fibers using microscopic, immunoclogical, biochemical,
and chemical techniques, Also testified to the results of these analyses in court, Trained
under Senior Forensic Biolopist Joseph Warren. From 6/84 to 10/85 duties included
marijuana analysis, arson analysis, gunshot residue detection, hit and run paint analysis,
and develapment of latent fingerprints. Trained under Lab Director Ron Singer.

PROFESSIONAL PAPERS

“Criminalistics Errors, Omissions, Problems, and Ethical Issues” presented as part of the
“Anatomy of 2 Wrongful Conviction: A Multidisciplinary Examination of the Ray Krone Case”
workshep at the 2007 AAFS Meeting in San Antonio, TX and as part of the LAFS Fall 2007
Meeting in Baton Rouge, LA.

“Using the Quality Assurapce Standards for Forensic DNA Testing Laboratories to Distinguish
the Unqualified Forensic DNA Experts From the Qualified Forensic DNA Expetis” presented at
the 2007 AAFS Meeting in San Antonia, TX and at the AFDAA 7007 Winter Meeting in Austin,
TX. -

“Investigative Uses of DNA Databases” presented as part of the “Solving the South Louisiana
Serial Killer Case - New Approaches Blended With Older Trusted Techniques™ workshop at the
2006 AAFS Meeting in Seattle, WA,

“Trace DNA Analysis: Casework Experience” presented as a poster at the 2004 AAFS Meeting
in Dallas, TX and as a talk at the July 2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX. Alsa presented as
“Interesting Casework Using AmpFISTR® Profiler Plus® and COfiler® Kits™ at Applied
Biosystems” “Future Trends in Forensic DNA Technology,” September, 2003 in New Orleans,
LA.
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“Extraction and Quantification of Human Deoxyribonucleic Acid, and the Amplification of
Human Short Tandem Repeats and a Sex ldentification Marker from Fly Larvae Found on
Decompasing Tissue™ a thesis to fulfill one of the Master of Science requirements. Successfully
defended on July 13, 2001 at the University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida. Presented at the
2004 AAFS Meeting in Dallas, TX, the Spring 2002 La. Association of Forensic Scientists
(LAFS) Meeting, and the January 2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX.

“Administrative Policies Dealing with Crime Scene Operations” published in the Spring 1999
issue of Southern Lawman Magazine.

“Shooting Reconstruction - When the Bullet Hits the Bone" presented at the 10th Anniversary
Convention of the La. Private Investigators Association (LP1AYNational Association of Legal
lnvestigaters (NALI) Region IV Seminar, September 13, 1997, New Orleans, LA. Licensed as
continuing education for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators
and Private Security Agencies. Published in the Fall 1998 tssue of Southern Lawman Magazine.

“Using Videotape to Document Physical Evidence” presented at the Seventh Annual Convention
of the LPIA/NALI Region IV Seminsr, August 15, 1996, New Orleans, LA, Licensed as
continuing education for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators
and Private Security Agencies. Published in April 1997 issue of The LPI4 Journal An edited
version was published in the Winter 1998 issue of Southem Lawman Magazine.

“Collection and Preservation of Blood Evidence from Crime Scenes” distributed as partof a
blood collection workshop held al the Jefferson Parish Coroner’s Eighth Annual Death
[nvestigation Conference, November 17, 1995, Harahan, LA. Presented as continuing legal
education by the Lz. Bar Association. Electronically published on the World Wide Web at the
Crime Scene [nvestigation Web Page {btip://police.ucr.edu/csihtm). Published in the
September/Oclober 1997 issue of the Journal of Forensic Identification. Referenced in the 7™
edition of Technigues of Crime Scene Investigation by Barry A.). Fisher.

“Collection and Preservation of Evidence” presented at La. Foundation Apainst Sexual
Assauli/La, District Attorneys Association sponsored conference, “Meeting the Challenge:
Investigation and Prosecution of Sex Crimes," March 3, 1994, Lafayette, LA. Presented as
continuing legal education by the La. Bar Association, Published in the Forensic Medicine
Sourcebook. Electronically published on the World Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investigation
Web Page (http-//police2 ver.edu/csi htm). Also published in Nanogrom, the official publication
of LAFS. A medified version of the paper was presented at the Sixth Annual Convention of the
LPLA, August 19, 1995, New Orleans, LA; the NALI Region IV Continuing Education Seminar,
March 9, 1996, Biloxi, MS; and the Texas Association of Licensed Investigators (TALI) Winter
Seminar, February 15, 1997, Addison, TX. Published in the July/August 1996 issue and the
September/October 1996 issue of The Texas Investigaror. Electronically published on the Warld
Wide Web 4t TALL's Web Page (http://pimall.com/tali/evidence.html). Published in the May
2001 issue of The informant, the official publication of the Professional Private Investigators
Association of Colorado. An updated version was presented al La. Faundation Against Sexual

George Schiro's CV Page 6 af %
Updated November 19, 2607

npo187




Assault/La. District Attorneys Association sponscred conference, “Collaborating to STOP
Violence Against Women Conference,” March 12, 2003, Lafayetie, LA,

“The Effects of Fecal Contamination on Phosphoglucomutase Subtyping” presented at the | 989
AAFS Meeting held in Las Vegas, Nevada and at the Fall, 1987 SAFS Meeting held in Atlanta,
Georgia.

“A Report on Gamma Marker (Gm) Antigen Typing” presented at the Fall, 1986 SAFS Meeting
held in Aubum, Alahama and at the Summer, 1986 LAFS Meeting,

“An Improved Method of Glyoxylase [ Analysis” co-presented with Joseph Warren al the
Summer, 1986 LAFS Meeling.

ARTICLES PUBLISHED

“Forensic Science and Crime Scene Investigation: Past, Present, and Future” published in the
Winter 2000 issue of dmerican Lawman Magazine.

“New Crime Scenes ~ Same Old Problems” published in the Winter 1999 issue of Southern
Lawman Magazine.

“Shoeprint Evidence: Trampled Underfoot” published in the Fall 1999 issue of Southern
Lawinan Magazine.

“LASCI: A Model Otganization™ published in the Summer 1999 issue of Soutkern Lawman
Magazine.

“Applications of Forensic Science Analysis to Private Investigation” published in the July 1969
1ssue of The LPI4 Journal

TRAINING CONDUCTED

Have conducted training at the following serinars and have trained the following organizations
and agencies in crime scene investigation, forensic science, and/or the collection and preservation
of evidence: Fourth end Seventh Intemational Conferences of Legal Medicine held in Panama
City, Panama; U.8. State Depariment’s Anti-Tertotism Assistance Program Police Executive
Seminar, AAFS; American Chemical Society; AFIDAA; Forensic Scisnce Education Conference;
SAFS; Southern Institute of Forensic Science; University of Nevada Las Vegas Biotechnology
Center; Professional Private Investigators Association of Colorade; Indiana Coroner’s Training
Board, DNA Security, Inc. Open House; Palm Bay Palice Dept., Palm Bay, Florida; CGEN 5200,
Expert Testimeny in Forensic Science, University of North Texas Health Science Center, F1.
Worth, TX; Tennessee Association of Investigators; Mississippi Society for Medical
Techrolopy; La. State Coroners” Association; Jefferson Parish Coroner’s Office Eighth Annual
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Death Investigation Conference; Southern University Law Center, La. Stale University
Chemistry Department Seminar; Chemistry 105, Southeastern Louisiana University, University
of Louisiana at Lafayetie Biology Club; Louisianz Division of the Intemational Association for
ldentification; U.S. Department of Justice La. Middle District Law Enforcement Coordinating
Commitiee Crime Scene Investigation Workshop; La. State University’s Law Enforeement
Training Program Scientific Crime Investigator's Institute; La. State University’s Continuing
Law Enforcement Education School; La. State Police Training Academy’s Advanced Forensic
Investigation School; La. District Atomeys Association; La. Southeast Chiefs of Police
Association; Acadiana Law Enforcement Training Academy; Caddo Parish Shesi(f's Office;
Mystery Writers of America - Florida Chapter; NALI Continuing Education Seminars; TALI:
Lafayetie Parish Sheniff's Office; Iberia Parish Sheriff's Office; Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office
Training Acidemy; Kenner Palice Dept.; St. Charles Parish Sheriff*s Office; Terrebonne Parish
Sheriff’s Office; East Feliciana Parish Sheriff's Office; East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff*s Office;
Vermilion Parish Sheriffs Office; West Baton Reuge Parish Sheriff's Office; Washingion Parish
Rape Crisis Center Volunteers; Mississippi Professional Investigators Assaciation; East Baion
Rouge Stop Rape Crisis Center Volunteer Physicians; Stuller Place Sexual Assauit Response
Center Volunteers; Evangeline and St. Landry Parish Rape Crisis Volunteers; Tri-Parish Rape
Crisis Volunteer Escorts; LPIA; La. Foundation Against Sexual Assault; Louisiana Society for
Medical Technoiogy; Baton Roupe Society for Medical Technology; Baton Rouge Palice Dept.
Sex Crimes Unit, Crime Scene Unit, and Traffic Homicide Unit; Violence Apainst Women
Conference; Famity Focus Regional Conference; Our [ady of the Lake Haspital Emergency
Room Personnel; St Martinville Chamber of Commerce; New iberia Optimust Club; Sexual
Assault: Effective Law Enforcement Response Seminar; La. State Police Training Academy; La.
Association of Scientific Crime Investigators (LASCI}; LAFS; and the Basic Police Academy
(La. Probation and Parole, La. Dept. of Public Safety, La, Motot Vehicle Police, and La. Dept of
Wildlife and Fisheries).

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Intermational Society for Forensic Genetics

International Association of Bloodstain Pattern Analysts (Full Membser}

American Board of Criminalistics (Molecuiar Biclogy Fellow)

AAFS (Fellow)

American Society for Testing and Materials Coramittee E-30 on Forensic Sciences
AFDAA (Chairpersan 2004-2005)

Association for Crime Scene Reconstruction

SAFS

LAFS ( Editor of Nanogram, the official publication of LAFS - July 1994 10 May 1998, President
- 199G, Vice President - 1989)

LASCI

OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Analyzed evidence and issued a report in the 1991 La. State Palice investigation of the
September 8, 1935 assassination of U. S, Senator Huey P, Long.
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Contributing author to the Forensic Medicine Sourcebook, edited by Annemarie S. Muth.

One of several technical advisors to the non-fiction books Blood and DNA Evidence, Crime-
Solving Science Experimenss by Kenneth G. Raints, 0.J. Enmuasked, The Trial, The Truth. and
the Media by M.L.Rantala and Pocke! Partner by Dennis Evers, Mary Miller, and Thomas
Glover.

One of several technical advisors ta the fictional books Crusader 's Cross by James Lee Burke,
Company Man by Joseph Finder, Savage Art by Danielle Girard, and Bonmes in the Backyard by
Florence Clowes and Lots ). Blackbumn.

Featured on the “Withowt a Trace™ and "Through the Camera's Eye" episodes of The New
Detectives television show that first aired on the Discovery Channel, May 27, 1997 and June 11,
2002,

Featured on the “No Safe Place" episode of Forensic Files that first aired on Court TV, lanvary
3, 2007.

Recipien of Ihe second Young Forensic Scientist Award given by Scientific Sleuthing Review.
Formerly a columnist for Southern Lawman Magazine.

Authored and managed two federal grants that awarded the La. State Police Crime Lab $147,000
and $237,000 to set up and develop a DNA laboratory.

A member of the La. State Police Crime Lab’s ASCLD-LAB acereditation preparation
comumittee,

Featured in the books The Bone Lady: Life as a Forensic Antiropelogist by Mary Manhein, Rope
Burns by Robent Scott, Similin Acres: The Angry Victim by Chester Pritchett, An Jrvisible Man by
Stephanie A. Stanley, and Soff Targers, A Woman's Guids to Survival by Detective Michae] L.
Vamado.

Featured on an episode of Split Screen that first aired on the Independent Film Channel, May 31,
1999,

Featured a5 a character on the “Kirstin Lobato Case” episode of Guilty or Innocent? that first
aired on the Discovery Channel, April 1, 2005,
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CURRICULUM VITAE

JOHN E. HIATT, PHLD.
| iy
EDUCATION :

Oceideneal College, Los Angeles. California 1959.1963
A. B. Degree with honors in chemisiry.

Yale University Graduate School, New Haven , Connecticut 19631968
Ph.D, in organic chemistry.

POSTDOCTORAL 'IMING

Department of Chemistry, Stanford University

Swnford, California 94304 1968-1970 ¢
Posinon: Postdoctoral Research Fellow in

Organi: Chemistry

Clinical Leberatory, University of California
Medical Center, San Francisco, Califomia 24122 1971-1973
Position: Postdoctoral trafnee in Clinical Chemistry

EMPLOYMENT

Quest Diapnostics, formerly known as Associated 1975 - Present
Pathologists Laboratories and American Medical

Laboretories, 4230 So. Burnham Awve., Suite 250,

Las Veges, NV 39119,

Position: Forensic Chemist: Responsible for Analytical

Protocols, Dats Review, Client Consultation and

Expert Testimony, Solution of technical problems in

all areas of the laboratory.

Yalley Clinical Lahomatarias, 74-040 El Paseo, 1973-1976
Palm Desert, CA 92260,

Position: Climical Chemiss and Assigtant Laboratary

Director - Responsible for methods, instrumemation

and guality conrol.

i
OTHER |
I

Qualified as an expert witness in the Digtrict Courts of
Clark, Dovgles, Elio, Lyon, Nye and Washoe Coumnties

of the State of Nevada on the subject of analyses of drugs
and alcobol in Biclogical fluids and interpretation of same.
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PROFESSIONAL VITA
BARRY T. BATES
PRESIDENT PROFESSOR EMERITUS
Human Performeance & Wellness, [nc. University of Oregon
3265 Chambers Street, Suite 200 Eupene, Oregon 97403-1240
Eugene, Oregon 97405-6004 c-mail; hpwigimail.com
{541) GB2-1935; (702} 450-4838 www, hpwbiomechanics.com

EDUCATION

Princeten University; Princeton, NI, 1960: B.S.E.

East Strowndsburg State College; East Stroudsburg, PA; 1970; M.Ed.

Indiana University, Bloomingten, IN; 1975; Ph.D.
*Undergraduate Major Area: Engineering
*Graduate Major Area: Human Performance: Biomechanics/Kinesiology
*Grraduate Minor Area: Motor Leaming, Compuier Science, Statistics and Design

FROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2000- Adjunct Professor: University of Nevada-Las Vegas; Las Vagas, NV
1997- Professor Emeritus: University of Oregon; Eugene, OR

1%96- President: Human Performance & Wellness, Inc.; Eugene, OR

1985-1996 Professor: University of Oregon, Director: Biomechanics Laboratory; Eugene, OR
1991-1996 Head: Dept. of Exercise and Movement Science: University of Oregon; Eugens, OR

1984 President: BioDynamics Foundation; Eugene, OR

1984-90 Viee President: Bio-Dynamics Corporation; Eugene, OR

1962 -84 Founder, President: Bic-Dynamics Corporation; Senior Scientisi; Eugene, OR
1979-85 Associate Professor: University of Oregon; Director; Biomechanics Lab; Eupene, OR
1973-79 Assistant Profeysor: University af Oregon, Direclar; Biomechanics Lab; Eugene, OR
1973-74 Assistant Professor: University of Massachusetis; Ambetst, MA

1970-73 Graduate Student: Indiana University; Rloomington, IN

L968-T0 Direcior of Athletics: Blair Academy; Blairstown, NJ

1964-7T0 Teacher of Mathematics: Blair Academy, Head Coach, Football; Blairstown, NJ
1963-64 Teacher of Mathemalics: Randor High School, Assistant Coach; Wayne, PA

1960-53 Officer: ULS. Navy

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

American Academy of Kinesiology and Physical Education

Amcrican Alliance for Health, Physical Educalion, Recreation and Dance
American Board of Forsnsic Examiners

American College of Spons Medicine

American Society for Testing and Materials

American Soziety of Biomachanics

Human Factors and Ergonomics Socicty

Inmtemationat Society of Biomechanics

[nternational Society for Biomechanics in Sports

Society of Automotive Enginecrs

B.T. Bates, B S E., Ph.D.
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SELECTED HONORS AND PROFESSIONAL RECOGNITION

Visiting Professor, Swiss Federz] Institute of Technology, Zarich, Switzerland, September, 1979,

Member, American College of Sports Medicine Commines on Internatiopal Relations Exlegation Lo the Soviel
Union, Mascow, U.5.5.R., Dcicber, 1979,

luvited Lecturer, Division of Sports Medicine, American Academy of QOrihopedic Surgeons, *Biomechanics of
Running: Mew Concepts”, San Francisen, CA, 1979,

tnvited Lecturer, American Crthopedic Foot Society, Inc., Tweifth Annual Meecting, Biomechanics of the Foo
and Shoe Selection”, New Orieans, LA, 1982,

Keynate Address, intemational Symposium of Biomecharics Aspects of Sports Frotective Equipmizn,
"Testing and Evaluation of Running Shoes”, Waterioo, Ontario, Canada, 1983,

Recipient, Runner's World "Sportsmedicine All-Star T'eam”, One of 25 intsrmational spurts medicine expens
named by peers for "contributions to the physical and emotional health of elite athietes and
recreational runners, and to rapidly advancing sponts medicine amd knowledge”, 1984,

[nvited Participant, NASA Glove Werkshap, Sponsor: NASA Tech. Applications Team, Houslon, TX, 1985.

Elected Member, American Academy of Kinesiology and Physical Education, 1986

Visiting Professor, Beijing Institute of Physical Education, Beijing, People's Republic of China, July, 1988,

Lifetime Member, President’s Associates, University of Oregon, 1992,

Keynote Speaker, Internationsl Society of Biomechanics in Sports, "Individual Accommodation Sirategies 1o
Running and Lending [mpact Forces”, Amherst, MA, 1993,

invited Lecturer, Biomechanics Academy Symposium, "Lower Extremity Functian: Injury and Performance
Faclars”, Partland, OR, 1995,

Invited Speaker, International Conference on Women, “Lower Extremity Function Druring Running and
Landing” and “Landing Models: Evaluation of Elite Volleyball Players”, Alexandria, Egypl, 1555,

Invited Speaker, American College of Sports Medicine, “Biomechenics of Running”, Cincinnati, OH, 1996

Invit=d Speaker, American Callege of Sports Medicine, “The Value of the Individual in the Research
Paradigm: Single Subject Methedology™, Cincinnati, OH, 1996

Invited Speaker, Eighth Netional Measurement and Evaluation Sympasium, “Experimental and Statistical
Design lssues in Human Mavement Research”, Corvallis, OR, 1996,

Selected as oremnber of ASICS Intemational Sport Science and Sports Medicine Forum, 1996.

Certified, Fellow of the American Board of Forensic Examiners, 1997,

Recipient, Ruth B. Glaszow Award, Contributions in Applied Biomechanics, Biomechanics Academy, 1999,

Keynote Speaker, Austraiasian Podiatry Conference, Methiven, New Zealand, 1999,

Invited Participant, Oregon State Bar Convention, “Using Expert Witnesses to Win®, Seaside, OR, 1999,

Scholar Lechurer, Texas Tech Univ, “The Hows and Whys of Lower Extremity Injury™, Lubbock, TX, 2001

Sehelar Lecturer, University of Nevada Las Vegas, “Individua] Accommeodalion to Running lnjury”, Las
Vegas, NV, 2002,

Hall of Fame Inductes, Muhlenberg High School, Reading, PA, 2002.

RESEARCH, PUBLICATIONS, PRESENTATIONS

Actively involved in research in the areas of human performance (biomechanics and human Factors) for 25
years, resuiting in mere than |20 academic pubtications and 200G preseniations.

Developed the Biomechanics Laberatory and co-developed the Biomechanics/Sports Medicine Labaratory,
Organized an interdisciplinary research team and was primary administrator for laboratory grants in excess of
one million dollars. For & comprchensive listing, pleasc see htip: fidarkwing o edu/~hrbalesfvita. hhn

B.T. Bates, B.5.E., Ph.D.
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Randall H. Pike = -
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Patricia Paim BRERR §F 51 il

Dep:gf Special Public Defender

MNevada Bar No. 6009

330 South Third Street, Suite §00

Las Vegas, NV 88155-2318
?32; 455-5265

702) 455-6273 fax
rpike@co.clark.nv.us
palmpa@co.clark.nv.us
Attorneys for O'Keefe
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, } CASE RO. C250630
. ] DEPT. NO. XViI
Plaintiff, )
}

¥a

BRIAN O'KEEFE #1447732
Defendant

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO REQUIRE THE COURT TO ADVISE THE
PROSPECTIVE JURORS AS TO THE MANDATORY SENTENCES REQUIRED
IF THE DEFENDANT IS CONVICTED OF SECOND DEGREE MURDER.

Pedemesom  obv
COMES NOW the Defendant herein, BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and through his
attorneys, DAVID M. _SEHIECK. Special Public Defender, RANDALL PIKE,
Assistant Special Public Defender, and PATRICIA PALM, BDeputy Special Public

Defender, and hereby offer the following motion to require the trial Court to

100196
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advise the jury as to the mandatory sentences required if the Defendant is

convicted of second degree Murder with use of a deadiy weapon.

NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff; and
TO:  PHILLIP SMITH, ESQ. Deputy District Attorney, Attorney for Plaintiff
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring on the
above and foregaing MOTION on for hearing on the /O day of March, 2009 at
the hour of 8:00 a.m., in Department No. XVI! of the above-entitied Court, or as

soon thereafter as counse! may be heard,

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

, STATEMENT OF FACTS
Brian O'Keefe and Victoria Whitmarsh ("Victoria"), the alleged victim in this

matler, enjoyed a fairly long, but tumultuous relationship together. They dated
and cohabitated on and off since 2001, after meating in a treatment facility.
During the relationship, in 2004, Brian was ultimately convicted of burglary {entry
inte the coupde’s joint dwelling with intent to commit a crime against Victorial. He
was given a sentence of probation for that crime, but he was later convicted of a
third offense domestic battery against Victoria. Me went to prison in March 2005,
When he was released from prison in March 2007, he initiated a relationship with
a woman named Cheryl Morris. (PHT 63) He separated with Ms. Morris several
months before the incident so that Victoria could mave into his apartment with
him. Ms. Morris testified at the time of the preliminary hearing that Victoria
voluntarily reentered into a relationship with Brian and began cohabitating with
him in his apartment. (PHT 74) Victoria had calied Ms. Momis several times and
disgussed her decision {0 return o Brian, {PHT 66}. At the time of the incident in
November 2008, he was 45 years old, Victoria was 54.
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She died of one stab wound to her side. (PHT 4) Ammbruster tried to go
towards Brian, whe tock a swing at Armbruster. Brian then returned to attend to
Vicloria. Armbruster described Brian as appearing to be intoxicated and
disoriented. (PHT 60} He was stumbling and not very steady on his feet. (PHT
61-62) Neighbars calied 911 at 11:00 p.m. (PHT 52) The police responded and
found Brian lying on the floor next to Victoria's dead body, cradiing and stroking
her head. (PHT 26-27, 43-44} Although he was unarmed, his behavior was
erratic, and al times ha was incoherent, PHT 24

Victoria and Brian were drinking pariners and were often seen drinking
tagether on the patio of the residence where the incident occurred. (PHT 60)
They had both been drinking on the date of the incident, and at the time of her
death, Victoria’s blood alcohol content was .24, (PHT 6) At the homicide offices
subsequent o his arrest, Brian gave a rambiing statement indicating that he was
not aware of Victoria's death or its cause. In the interview, which began at 1:20
a.m., he was emotional, crying, raising his voice, talking to himself, slurring,
belligerent, ridiculous, and detectives noled that he might be a "nut." (PHT 83-
85, 83) Detective Wildemann agreed that during the interview, Brian smelled
heavily of alcohol, and during photographs taken subsequent to the interview, at
about 3:55 a.m., officers held him upright ta steady him. (PHT 91-93) Detective
Wildemann agreed that it was “pretty obvious” that Brian had been drinking.
(PHT 94}

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

it is not uncommon for the members of a jury to misunderstand jury
instructions or to camry improper beliefs as to the impact of sentencing into the
Gourt. The Capital Jury Project, a national research endeavor funded by the

National Science Foundation, inlerviewed people who had served on death

N00198
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penaity juries from 15 states around the country. They found that approximately
50% of jurers interviewed decided what the penalty should be before the
sentoncing phase of the trial. This is before they have heard mitigating evidence
from the defense or received instructions from the judge about how to maka the
punishment decisicn. The Capital Jury Project found that most jurors grossly
underestimated the amount of time a defendant would serve in prison if not
sentenced to death, and the sooner that jurors belisved a defendant would return
ta society if not given the death penalty, the more likely they were to vote for
death. Recognizing this, it becomes clearer and clearer that juries shouid be
made aware of the "harsh mandatory minimum” sentencing rules in certain
cases—particularly homicides. The jury's required roke in finding facts necessary
ta support a caminal conyiction and a basis for sentencing enhancement is
prescribed by the Fifth and Sixth Amendments. The Sixth Amendment provides
that in criminai proceedings, "the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and
public trial, by an impartiai jury of the State and district wherain the erime shall
have been committed.” U.8. Const, amend. VI, The Fifth Amendment guarantees
that no one will be deprived of "life, liberty, or property without due process of
law.” LS. Const, amend. V. Together these Amerdments require "eriminal
convictions to rest upon a jury defesmination that the defendant is guilty of every
€lement of the crime with which he is charged, beyond a reasonabie doubt.”
United Stafes v. Gaudin, 515 U.5. 506, §10, 115 8. Ct, 2310, 132 L. Ed. 2d 444
(1995) (citing Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S, 275, 277-79, 113 S. CL. 2078, 124

L. Ed. 2d 182 (1983)}.
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Okeefe, you had an opportunity to see him both when hel

wasg scober and both when he was intoxicated, is thal

correct?
A, Yes,
2. And up te the time close to the time when yold

left, was he drinking more or less than he usually

gid?

A 1 would say that he was drinking a little bit
nore.

Q. What was he drinking usually?

A, Baer. But on occaslons he would drink vodka

and pretend as though I wouldn't know.

Q. When he was drinking or when you saw him
drink aleoholic beverages, did his general attitude
change?

A. When he was drinking beer he was okay, he
never really got violent. When it was hard liguor,
that was a different story. With wodka I had
experienced that situation with him.

Q. When you say you experienced that, vou saw

that his demeanor changed?

A ies,

Q. Did he become more or less violent?

A. More violent.

Q. Buring the time that you were residing with

MERCER & ASSOCIRTES
{702} 3RA-2973
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him or, excuse me, when you made the decision to move
cut and when you talked with Victoria, did she

indicate to you in the conversaticn that she had with
You that she was frightened of Mr. Okeefe in any way?

A. N .

2. And approximately how long prior to the time
that you became aware that she had passed away did
this conversation cccur?

a. There were several conversations with her

throughout, from June through, I think it was ABugust.

a. Were all of these over the telephone?
A. Yes,
Q. Did any of these relate to the angoing

relationship between her and Mr. Okeefe or you and Mr.

Okeafe?
A I don't understand,
Q. It was a poor questicn, 1'm sorry.
What basically were the conversations
about?
B, There was a time when he had spent the whole

week with her and he had actually come back to me
saying he no longer warnted to be with her, that he
wanted to be with me, she was poisocn, I was the good
person, or the good girl, is what he would say. And

that he did neot want to have énything to do with her.

WERCER & ASSOCTRTES 000101
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But there were tccasionse in between June through the
time that we had broke up that he had actually gone Lty
See her and he wouldn't come home for a couple of
days.

2. During that time, wvour conversation with Mrs.
Whitmarsh, did she indicate to you that she would
often initiate going back with Mr. QOkeefe?

MR. SMITH: Objection to relevance, Judge.
Either that or it's hearsay, under noc exceprion.

MR. PIKE: Certainly it is hearsay. The
exception is the State has brought forth hearsay
evidence to indicate their belief or their theory as
to premeditation, deliberation or mental intent at the
CLime that Ethis cccurred. If there was any sort of
plenning or questicn about planning, then this is in
direct response to that. It's reliable, there is a
general exception to the hearsay rule when the
evidence is inherently reliable. And it may involyve
the mental state of Mrs. Whitmarsh at the time they
were getting back together.

MR. SMITH: My reply would be her mental
state, whether or not she was going to get back with
him has nothing to do with the acdmissions that I've
elicited on direct testimony regarding premeditation

or deliberation or planning.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
(702) 358-2973 nouo1on2
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THE COURT: The objection is overruled.

AsX the guestion again. You can answer
ME. PIKE:
Q. During the conversation did she ever talk

with you about her initiating, reconnecting with Mr.
Dkeefe?

a. One of the lengthier conversations she said
she did not want to have anything to do with him, that
she could not take care of him, that he was a grown
man and he could take care of himself. I asked why
she wanted to be with him and if whether or not she
loved him or not. And her reply to me, and I never
told Mr. Okeefe this, but her reply to me was "I just
¥eep him arcund becausa somebody has te lave
somekody . "

MR. SMITH: I'm just going to continue my
objection, for the record
MR. PIKE:
Q. Since the arrest of Mr. Okeefe, have you had

any contact with Mr. Okeefe?

A. Yes, I did.
Q. And what was that?
AL That was, I believe, two weeks agn I went to

visit him because a friend of nine had called and had

informed me that Bryan had sent a letter to his sister

(702} 388-2973
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stating that the district attorney had given him some
information and said things that I did not say. And I
went to Bryan ang I asked him about it, and that was
pretty much the conversation.

0. Since this has occurred, were you able to go
back in to the apartment after the police had cleared

it to get the rest of your personal items oot of the

apartment?
A, The items that I took -- yes, I did. I was
able to go back there. I do not remember when. But

I was able to go ahead and retrieve the key for the
car. The other key is missing, we don't know where
that's at, and some paperwork for the car and the car
itself.

Q. It doesn't indicate, according to the
records, that it was impounded?

A. No. I just had to take it back. I had to
turn it in because the car payments were behind.

Q. During the course of this have you had a
eppertunity to talk with any of the other neighbors

that were there at that tims?

A, Just what we saw outside when we all gathered
out there,
Q. At that point in time you shared what you

knew about the case and they shared what they knew

0“"01‘34

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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about the case?

A, They spoke about their feelings and why chey
were here.

Q. Without saying what they said, you guys Jjust
kind of talked about what you knew, what you felft
dbout the caze?

By Yexs,

Q. During the course of your canversations with
Mrs. Whitmarsh, did she talk to you about the two of
them drinking together?

I Yes.

. What did she say about that ?

ME. SMITH: Again, judge, I'd renew my
objection, hearsay, and I'd alsc add relevance.

THE COURT: Relevance?

MR. PIKE: Relevance would have to be with
whether or not mutuwal drinking, if both of them were
drinking together, if that precipitated any sort of
violence or if she felt threatened by his drinking?

MR. SMITH: It's not really tailored to
the night in question, it's more propensity thano
anything, which is specifically precluded by statute.
It's no different than us asking is a person a
habitual drug user.

MR. PIKE: I'll withdraw the guestion.

MERCER & ASSCUCLATES )11
(702} 388-2973
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Q. During the time -- during vour observations
when Mr., Okeefe was drinking, he became a little bit
louder, a little bit -- I guess meaner, would tha:t be
& good term? Or how would you describe it?

a, That would only be when he was drinking hard
liquor. When he was drinking beer, he was pretty
mellow person.

2. And you never -- during the time he was
intoxicated, although he may have said he was angry
about things, he was never physically vielent with
you?

B, He hit me a c¢ouple times, once in the arm,
and pinned me up against a wall,

MR. PIKE: I have no further guestions.

MR. SMITH: Briefly,.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SMITH:

o Ma'am, you said scmething on
cross—examination, I just want t£o make sure it's
clear, Do you recall telling Mr. Pike that Miss
Whitmarsh had said something to you about I better be
careful because when he gets mad he hurt me?

A, Correct.

MERCER & ASSOCLIATES
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Q. She stated to you that she had betfter be
careful or else Mr. Okeefs would hurt her or

A. No, she stated that I would need to bhe
careful because if I got Mr. Okeefe upset, that Mr.
Ckeefe would hurt me.

Q. 50 she did pet say to yvou that she had better
bée careful or Mr. Okeefe would hurt her?

B, Ng.

. And one final guestion. 50Cl El Pargque, is
that in Las Vegas, Clark County, Wevada?

A Yes, it is.

ME. 3MITH: No further guestions.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

MR. FIEKE:
2. When you were demanstrating the physical act
and you said in the rib cage, would that be in the

sternum, or front part of yaour chest?

A Right here,
Q. For the record, ycu're pointing directly?
F Off to one side, closer to the heart.

Q. But in the front?
A, Carrect,

MR. PIKE: Thank you. That's all.

MERCER & ASSUCIATES
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THE COURT:
morning.
MR. SMITH:
State's going to rest.

call the detective,. T

are calling him as their witness I will permit them to

lead.

THE COURT:
Witnesses?

MS. PALM:
Wildemann.

{fWhereupon,

THE CLERK:
record, and spell 1it.

THE WITHESS:

W i-l1-d-e-m-a-n-n.

CIRECT EXAMINATION

You're gxcused.

Thank you for your time this

Judge, at this point the

I do understand they want to

have agreed; even though they

State's rested, Any

We are calling Detective

the witness was duly sworn.)
for the

State your name,

Detective Martin Wildemanrn,

MS., FALM:
. Good merning, detective?
A. Good morning.
Q. You were working on the morning of November
E & &5 IATES

{702) 388-2973
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B, 20087
A, Yes.
Q. And at that time, that morning, did you have

an gpportunity to interview my client, Mr. Okeefe?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And that was with Detective Keiger?
&, Yes.
2. I'm not going to ask you guestions about the

content of the interview as far as what he stated, I'A
just interested in the conditions of the interview?

A, Okay.

Q. And his condition.

Have you reviewed the video tape of the
interview?

k. I haven't recently, no, ma'am.

o, If the time stamp on it reflects it starts inl
the interview room at 1:20 in the morning, would that
be accurate?

Fi That wouid be accurate.

Q. Bo you know if he was there for a while
before the tape started rolling?

A I don't believe so. I think as he was baing
Placed in there I was trying to get the equipment
situated and working,

Q. And 1f the time stamp shows, the official

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
{702) 388-2973

000179




10
11
12

13

13
16
17
1g
18
29
21
22
23
24

25

. . B3

interview shows at the time you came in and started
recording and give Miranda was about 1:45, does that

sound acourate?

A. That's what I recall, yes.

Q. During the interview Mr., Ckeefe is shackled?

A, I believe he had one handcuff to a bar, ¥yes,
ma'am.

Q2. And he's drinking coffee?

A. Tasx,

Q. Bbout three cups during the ¢ourse of the

interview he right?

A, T don't know. He definitely had more than
one, I can rememper that,

B In watching that video, would you agree that
he's sort of talking te himself or to nobedy in

particular prior to the recording of the interview?

A. Yes, there's times when he's talking alone ing
the room.
0. And during the course of the interview with

You he's also emoticnal?

A. Yes,
At times he cries?
Yes,

Other times he raises his voice?

» o P oo

Yes,

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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Q. And would you agree that he's slurring his
words?

A At times.

Q. And at the beginning of the interview you had
told him that she was unconscious, is that correct?

A. Can vou refer to it for me? That would be
great. Like I said, 1 have not looked at the
interview recently.

Q. Would you agree you hadn't told him she's
dead.

A. That I hadn't? I don't believe I told him
right away that she had passed away, no, ma'am.

2. Do yeu recall that he was kind of talking
about her in the first person without gaying what he
said?

A. Without saying what?

Q. I'm not asking you what he said, but he was
referring to her in the first person, as if shets
gtill present?

&, Yes.

Q. At times during the interview he was

belligerent with you?

A. Yes.
Q. And he's not really answering your Jquestions,
is he?

RC & SOCIAT
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A.

Q.

tangenkts

Q.

couple tines because he's not being interviewed well?

A.

2.

ridiculous a couple times?

&

Q.

by you actually walking out; is that correct?

A.

Q.

that will help you refresh?

A,
with me.
g.
A,
.
Keiger?

A,

Neg.

And you even make a note hey, you go off on
easily?

Yes,

2nd it's hard to get any information from

Yes,

And you actually threaten to walk out a

Right, ves, ma'am.

Do you recali telling him he's being utterly

Yes.

When the interview terminated, it terminated

I'm not positive on that.

I can show you the end of the transcript if

Just tell me the page number, I have mine

Page 347

Did I just get up and walk out?

Kind of looks like it, you and Retective

okay.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
{702) 388-2973
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Q. Is that accurates
A, It looks 1ike, I don't make a2 formal

statement, but it looks like I pretty much terminated

it.
Q. You got frustrated and walked out?
A Yes.
Q. Do you recall telling Detective Kelger, "You

might want to leave the door open beczuse he might be

a fucking nug"?

A I bhelieve I said that te the officers
cutside,
. And that's based on his erratic interview

during the entire interview?

A, Yes, his aggressive behavior.

Q. He wasn't being physically aggressive,
Correct?

E. He got up and made very, you know, aggressive
gestures with his arms and things like that. I recall

telling him what you're doing right now, that's not

smart.
0. He didn't come at you, did he?
A, No, he did not try to hit me, if that's what

you're asking.
Q. And you became aware during the course of the

interview that he had been in rehab in the past?

MERCER & RISOCIATES
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A. I don't recall that. 1Is there a page you're

locking at?

Q. I can direct you to page 8, 15 and 16.
A, I'm en eight,

Q. Toward the bhottom?

A Okay, talking about a sponsor, yes.

Q. S50 you're aware he'd been in rehab?

A, Tes.

0. And you became aware that there was a

purchase of alcohol by Miss Whitmarsh during the day
of the incident?

A, I believe that's what he stated,.

Q. Did you ever follow-up on that, check for
recelipts’?

A. I did not at the scene, I wasn't there. I'm
not sure if my partner was able to find anything like
that or not.

2. And you became aware during the interview
that the couple had been at the Paris Hotel during the
day?

A. That's what he stated, yes.

| Did yau ever recover video tapes of

surveillance tapes at the Paris Hotel?

A, No, ma'am.
o, Have you requested it?
MERCER & ASGOCIATES
(702) 388-2973 N0g114
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A, No, ma'am,

Q. You asked him during the interview how he got
the marks on his face?

A, Tes.

Q. I'm showing you what's been marked as Defens%

Exhikbit C. Is that how his face looked when you saw
him?

i Yes.

Q And that injury was already there?

A, Yes.

Q Did you have any information that told you

when that injury occurred?

A. No .,

Q. Did you have any infoermation that he was
injured during his arrest?

A. I did have information regarding that, ves.

Q. That he was injured?

A, Well, he was tazed. I didn't know the extent
of injuries that that caused or what happened, if he
struck his head, I didn't know that.

2. And you looked at the ¢rime scene photos in
this case?

&, Yes,

2. And this picture in particular, do you know

who's helding his head up?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES 0115
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R That's me.
Q. This picture did not appear to be taken

during any interview room. Was that at the scene?

L. I believe we took photos at the scene also.,
Q. You were at the scene also?

A, Yes.

2. 30 thisg is your arm helding his head?

A, Yes. That has to be at the scene, because

I'm wearing a jacket,
THE COQURT: Which Exhibit is that?
MS. PALM: This is Defense C.
Q. If the time stamp on the video reflects that

the interview concluded at 3:28, woguld that be about

accurate?
A. I doubt the interview concluded. Once again,
I'd have to review that. [t might have been when we

were done processing him., Is that the last time stamp
before it shuts off?

Q. No, that would be 3:55 you come back in wich
C.3.A. Ford. It looked like the interview concluded
at the 3:28 time?

A, Okay. 1I'm going to have to go with you on
that, I haven't reviewed the video.

i You had to take kind of a long break during

the middle of the interview, is that true?

{702} 388-2973
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A,

2.

recall coming back in with C.5.A.

Yasi

Se after the interview was concluded do you

other officers for photagraphs?

A,

Q.

Yes.

I'm showing vou what's been marked as Defense

Exhibits A and B, Do you recall when these

photographs were taken?

A, Yes.

Q. And that's in the interview room after wvour
intarviaw?:

A Yes,

Q. 53¢ around 3:55 in the morning?

A Yes.

Q. Do you know who the person is that's holding

Mr. Oksefe upright?

A.

That's an offircer, and I don't know which

efficer that is.

Q.

A,

Q.

So it's not you?

That is not me, no.

And is that how you recall Mr. Okeefe looking

at the time?

A.

-

that Mr.

Yes.

During the photographs do you recall noting

Okeefe had severel injuries on him?

Dan Ford and some

MERCER & BSSOCIATES
(702} 388-2973
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A, Yes.

2. Including kruises and scratch marks?

Fi Yas.

Q. Those were also photographed?

&, Yes,

g. And one of the reasons you do that is because

you understand you have to Freserve exculpatory

evidence also?

4. Yes.

Q. It might be exculpatory that he hkas those
injuries?

A, Yes, ma'am.

0. During that process of photographing him you

also check his clothing?

A, Yes.

2. Do you recall who impounded that clething?

A It woeuld have been C,S5.A. Ford.

Q. S0 he should have an impound report from
that?

A, Yes, ma'am.

o, Mr, Okeefe 1s cooperative during thié

process, is that true?

A, Somewhat, vyes.
Q. You ask for a penile swah?
A, Yes.
MERCER & ASSOCIATES :}001 1 8
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Q. He mentioens he might need an attorney but he

glves you a penile swab?

A, Yes.

Q You ask for buccal swabs and he does that?
A Yes.

2. Did you have a warrant for those?

B MNo.

i Do you recall helping hold him upright while

he dressed, kind of to steady him whim he's putting onl
the white jump suit?
A I do recall that., T don't know if it was me

perscnally,

0O, If it lopks like you on the video?
A, Is5 it me? Qkay.
Q. And do you recall helping him put his litcle

bootie on right because it was not put on correctly?

A. Yes.

Q. What 1s the protoeol, if you can tell e, far
Metrc whether you determine when teo take or offear a
suspect a blood or breath alcohol test?

A, Ask that again, I'm sorry.

Q. Does Metre have a protocol, especially in
homicide cases, when an officer cr detective would
offer a suspect a blood or breath alcohol test or take

one’z

MERCEE & ASSOCIATES
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A. We don't have a protocol for that.

Q. You do i1t in some gcases?

A, I can't think of one that I've done it in.

Q. Are you aware of other cases where it's heen
done?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. Have you reviewed the reports of the

arresting officers inm this case?
A, You mean,; the patrolmen?
Q. Actually, I'm sorry, the recording
conversations of the cofficers who were on scene?
A. I have net reviewed them recently, no, ma'am,
Q. If Mr. Okeefe was described by some of them

as smelling heavily of alcohel, would you agree with

that?
A, Yes.
o. 30 he smelled heavily of alcohol in the

interview room?

A. Yes,

. And as you said, he was a little slurred in
his speech?

A. Yas.

2. You asked him one guestion whether he was
drinking and he never really answered that, did he?

P That's what I recall, not answering it.

MERCER & ASGOCIATES
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Q. Was it pretty obvious to you that he had been

drinking?

A. Yes.

2. How long have you been a homicide detective,
officer?

i, Detective seven years.

2. As a homicide detective, are you aware of

Case law saying a person's voluntarily intoxication
could negate a person’'s liability from first to second
degrees?

B, I'm not --

ME. SMITH: Object, relevance.

ME5. PALM: 1It's relevant to this
investigation, also relevant to the Miranda watver in
this case.

THE COURT: OQverruled.

THE WITHNESS: I'm not aware.

M5. PALM:
Q. foun're not aware of that case law?
A, No.
Q. Did you request any forensic testing on the

evidence in this case?

A. Can I look at my book real guick.
o. Sure,
A, Tes,

1}

S
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Q. You did?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. Can you tell me what you requested?

A, We requested any latent prints be examined.

We requested a swab, blood taken at the scene to be
compared to that of Mr. Okeefe and Miss Rhitmarsh. We
requested an analysis of the knife and the blood on
the knife and to check it for prints. And a pair of
black stretch pants that were recoveared at the scens,
apparently they were covered in blood or had blood on
them, to be compared to the suspect and the victim.
We also requested an analysis of buccal swabs
callected, a sexual assault kit collected at auvicpsy
and a medical examiner's kit collected at auntopsy.

Q. Do you know if that medical examiners kit
included preservation of any material under Miss

Whitmarsh's fingernails?

A Yeas.

Q. So that was recovered, or material was
recovared?

A. The fingernails, I don't xnow if they were

ciipped or scraped, but that was done, yesg.

C. And you requested that testing?
A. Yas.
Q. Do you have any reports back yetb?

MERCER & ASSOCLIATES
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not be testifying this merning. The defense has ho

A. No, ma'am. Let me confirm that, I'm SOLrYy.
No, we don't.

c. And you would agree to provide the district
gttorney so defense counsel could have copies of your
requests for expert testing?

A Of the requests themselves?

2. Yes.

A Absolutely.

MS. PALM: No further gquestions.

MR. SMITH: Nothing, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you for your time today.

Anything else on behalf of defense?

MR. PIKE: We've advised the defendant of
his right to testify or not testify at the time of the

preliminary hearing. Upon advice of counsel he will

other witnesses.

THE COURT: Thank vou.

On behalf of the State?

HR. SMITH: I'm going to submit it.

THE COQURT: Argument?

MR, PIKE: We'll submit it.

THE COURT: It appearing from the amendad
criminal complaint on file and Cestimony adduced at

today's hearing that the crime of murder with use of al

WERCER & ASSOCIATES n00123
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deadly weapon has been committed, there's sufficient
evidence that the defendant, Bryan Okeefe, has
committed said offense, I hereby order he be bound
over and held te answer in the Eighth Judicial
District Court.

THE CLERK: January ©, nine a.m.,
Department Five, lower level, district court

arraignments.

ATTEST: Full, true and accurate transcript of

Proceedings.

TOM MERCER, C.C.R. No. 33

3
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DAVID SCHIECK
2 | Special Public Defender - ,
evada Bar No. 0824 W U2, P 5oy
3| RANDALL H. PIKE
Assistant Special Public Defender
4 f Nevada Bar No. 1940 .595[-—
PATRICIA PALM CLERK OF
5 | Deputy Special Public Defender “‘E COURT
Nevada Bar No. 6009
6 § 330 S, Third Street,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2316
7| (702) 455-6265
(702) 455-6273 fax
3 11-);1 ike(@co.clark.nv.us
almpa(@co.clark.nv.us
9 Atmmeys for O'KEEFE
10
DISTRICF COURT
El CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
12 THESTATE OF NEVADA, }
} CASE NQ. C250630
13 Plaintiff, ) DEPT. NO. XVII
)
14 § vs, )
)
15 | BRIAN O'KEEFE, )
}
[6 Defendant. )
Cr }
i f%‘ 17 }
18
PETITION FI}R WRIT OF HABEAS CORPLUS or [N THE ALTERNATIVE
19] MOTION TQ PRECLUDE, PROSECUTION FROM SEEKING FIRST DEGREE M
. CONYICTION BASED UPON THE FAILURE TO COLLECT EVIDENCE
DATE: /P~ L
21 TIME:
22{ TO:  The Honorable Eighth Judicial Dristrict Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of
23 || Clark:
< 24 The Petition of RANDALL H. PIKE, Assistant Special Public Defender for the above-
: 25 || captioned individual, respectiufly shows:
=
3 26 1. Petitioner is a duly qualified, practicing and licensed attomey and court-appointed
=
= 27 | counsel for Defendant BRIAN O’ KEEFE (hercinafter “O"KEEFE?).
28 2. That Petitioner makes application herein on behalf of her ¢lient for a Writ of Habeas
FMICIAL FUBLIC
PEFTNDER
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Corpus; that the place where Applicant is resirained of his liberty is the Clark County Deteation
Center; that the officar by whom he is restrained is DOUG GILLESHE, Sheriff,

3. That the imprnisonment and restraim of said above-captioned client of Petitioner is
uniawful in that the evidence adduced at the time of the Preliminary Hearing supports only
remanding the matter to the District Court for trial on the charge of second degree murder: That the
complaint charge of Open Murder is not supported by evidence.

4. That client of Petitioner waives the 60-day limitation for bringing said client to trial.

5. Thet client of Petitioner consents that if the Petition is not decided within 15 days
before the date set for trial, the Count may, without notice or hearing, continue the trial indefinitely 1o
a date designated by the Court;

6. That client of Petitioner consents that if any party appeais the Court’s rulings and the
appeal is not determined before the date ses for trial, the trial date is automatically vacated and the
trial postponed unless the Court otherwise orders.

i That no other Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus has heretofore been filed on behalf
of defendant on this particular issue.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that the Honorable Court issue an order directing the Clark
County Clerk to issue 2 Writ of Habeas Corpus directed to the said Sheriff, commanding him to
bring the above-captioned defendant befere your Honor, and return the cause of imprisonment.

DATED thiscR{e” day of January, 2009,

Respectfully submitted

_i‘-x)f’r_e

1] H. Pike
Assistant Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 1940
Patricia Palm
Deputy Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 6009
330 8. Third Street, Second Floor
Las Vepas, NV 89155
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i POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS or in the alternative
MOTION TO PRECLUDE STATE FROM SEEKING FIRST DEGREE MURDER
CONVICTION BASED ON FAILURE TO COLLECT EVIDENCE

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Brian O"Keefe and Victoria Whitmarsh (“Victoria™), the alleged victim in this matter,

2
3
4
3
6 | enjoyed a fairly long, but tumultuous relationship together. They dated and cohabitated on and off
7 | since 2001, after rueeting in a treatment facility. During the relationship, in 2004, Brian was

8 | ultimately convicted of burglary (entry into the coupie’s joint dwelling with intent to commit a crime
9 ¥ against Victoria). He was given a sentence of probation for that crime. but his probation was later

19 || revoked when convicted of a third offense domestic battery against Victoris. He went to prison in

11 ¥ Masch 2005. When he was released from prison in March 2007, he initiated 2 relationship with a

12 | woman named Cheryl Morris. (PHT 63) He separated with Ms. Morris several months before the

13 || incident so that Victoria could move into his apartment with him. Ms. Motris testified at the time of

14 the preliminary hearing that Victoria voluntarily reentered into 2 relationship with Brian and began

15 || cohabitating with him in his apartrment. (PHT 74) Victoriz had called Ms. Marris several times and

16 | discussed her decision to retumn to Brian. (PHT 66}

17 At the time of the incident in November 2008, he was 45 years old. Victoria was 54. On

13 || the evening of the incident, a neighbor who lived below Brian and Victoria's apartment, Charles
Toliver, reporied to Todd Armbruster that he thought the girl who lived above him was dead. (PHT

20 | 55) Armbruster went upstairs and saw Victoria lying on the ground. (PHT 55) She died of one stab

21 4 wound to her side. (PHT 4) Armbruster tried to go towards Brian, but Brian took 2 swing at

22 | Armbruster, and retumned 1o attend to Victoria. Armbruster described Brian as appearing to be

23 (| intoxicated and disoriented. {PHT 60) He was stumbling and not very steady on his feet. (PHT 61-
24§ 62} Neighbors called 911 at 11:00 p.m, (PHT 52) The police responded and found Brian lying an
25 ¥ the floor next to Victoria™s dead body, cradling and stroking her head. (PHT 26-27, 43-443

26 | Although he was unanmed, his behavior was erratic, and at times he was incoberent. PHT 24. He
27 || did not cooperate with commands to move away from his position of Iying with Victoria's body.

28 || After two TAZER shots he was handcuffed, removed from the premises and taken ta the homicide
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offices. (PHT 30-31, 45-47) He was in physical custody of law enforcement within twelve minutes
from the 91) call. (PHT 32)

Victoria and Brian were drinking partners and were often seen drinking together on the patie
of the residence where the incident occurred. (PHT 60} They had both been drinking on the date of
the incident, and at the time of her death, Victoria's blocd aleohol content was 24, (PHT 6) At the
preliuminary hearing. Medical Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified that the combination of Victoria’s
medications, as indicated by her toxicology screen and alcohol abuse could cause suicidal, violent or
combative behavior by her. (PHT 8} Additionally, although Victoria’s body showed multiple
bruises, Victoria had Hepatitis C and somewhat advanced Cirrkosis of the liver, which is known to
cause bruising upon slight bumping contact or other types of pressure to the body that is less that
what is normally required for bruising. {PHT 5-6)

At the homicide offices subsequent 1o his arrest, Brian gave a rambling statement indicating
that he was not aware of Victoria's death or its cause. In the interview, which began at 1:2¢ a.m., he
was emotional, erying, raising his vaice, talking to himself, slurring, belligerent, ridiculous, and
detectives noted that he might be a “nut.” (PHT 83-85, 93) Detective Wildemann agreed that during
the interview, Brian smelled heavily of alcohol, and during photographs taken subsequent ta the
interview, at about 3:35 a.m,, officers held him upnght to steady him. (PHT 91-93) Detective
Wildemann agreed thal i was “pretty obvious™ that Brian had been drinking. (PHT 94)

Brian was extremely intoxicated at the time of the incident, having recently relapsed into his
addiction to alcohel. The fact that the government was or should have been aware of Brian's
imoxication was shown by the preliminary hearing testimony of arresting officers, Homicide
Detective Wildemann and lay witness Todd Armbruster, and is also evidenced in the video recording
of Brian's interview with homicide detectives and the photographs documenting his arrest. The
strong ador of alcchol about Brian’s person at the time of his arrest is also documented in the
statement and preliminary hearing testimony of arresting officer Ballejos. (PHT 35) The defense is
not able to show what Brian’s blood alcohol level was because law enforcement did not preserve this

evidence by oblaining a test for his breath or blood alcohol level either before or after the interview.

4 000124
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In the present case, the Defendant™s actions duting amrest were erratic. (PHT 24) He did
apparently not understand officers’ demands or orders, and officers were required to use a TAZER and
subject him to two electric shocks. (PHT 27-31, 45-47) Some of the officers on the scene described
Mr. O’Keefe as “smelling heavily of alechol.” (PHT 35, 93) The interviewing Detecrive Wildemann
was questioned during the presentation of the Preliminary Hearing, and he noted that the Defendant
“smelled heavily of aleohol” in the interview room (PHT 93) and that he was a “Jittle slurred in his
speech.” (id.) Indeed, the Detective had to help him put a “bootie™ on his right foot because he had not

oo =] ch b B e D

i
=

put in on correctly, and officers helped steady him when his photographs were taken subsequent to the

s
—

interview. (PHT 90-92) It was “pretty obvious™ to the interviewing detective that Brian had been
drinking. (PHT %4)

b
£ R ¥ B )

The loss of matenial and potentially exculpatory evidence by a law
enforcement agency can deprive a defendant of the opportunity to corroborate
his or her testimony, thereby severely prejudicing the defense.

— g
=1 &£ Lh

Cook v. Siate, 114 Nev. 120, 124, 953 P.2d 712 (1998).

o

The govemment is flirting with the danger of reversal any time evidence is
lost or inadvetiently destroyed. When evidence is seized, the povernment
should take every reasenable precaution to preserve it.

United States v, Heiden, 508 F.2d 898, 903 n. | (9" Cir. 1974).

It bd B e
K = O WD

Inthe present case, Detective Wildemann provided some background on his training and service

: i
L

withip the LYMPD. He has served as a homicide detective for seven years. (PHT 94) He directed a

o)
-

seres of requests for forensic testing and supervised the collection of the evidence from the crime scene.

[ )
LA

This evidence included “latent prints. . a swab, blood taken at the scene to be compared to that of Mr.
| O"Keefe and Miss Whitmarsh. .. .analysis of the knife and the blood on the knife. .. 2 pair of black stretch

i

ST 5 ]
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pants that were recovered at the scene, apparently they were covered in blood or had blood on them, to

[
=]
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be compared to the suspect and the victim. We also requested an analysis of buccal swabs collected at
autopsy.” (PHT 95)

The detail in which the evidence was collected and processed seemed 10 stop at the collestion
of evidence likely to inculpate a defendant. Brian was “seized” when he was arrested, taken to homicide
offices, and interviewed. He cooperated in detective’s requests for photographs of his body and w
provide penite and oral swabs, (PHT 92, 95) Shockingly, despite the obvious exculpatory nature of
gvidence that would have shown that at the time of his arrest and interview, he hada high level of biood

or breath alcohol, and despite clear indicators that he was intoxicated, a decision was made to net offer

L'+ R - - R < S I O T I o ]

to or secure a bloed or breath sample from the suspect/oow defendant. The Count may iake judicial

Pt
o]

niotice that there is a Nurse on duty at the CCDC at all times fo collect blood from Defendants arrested

for DUI's. The reports as well as the testimony outlined above indicate the care with which other

—
[ g% ]

physical evidence was collected at the scene, yet a key piece of evidence, the defendant’s blood or urine

—
[+

which could verify the level of intoxication was “destroyed” or “lost” as a result of police action. When

—
f 8

given the question “Does Metro have 2 protocol, especially in homicide cases, when an officer or
detective would offer a suspect a blood or breath alcohol test or take one?’(PHT 92), the Detective

Pt
Ln

I6
|| indicated “we don’t have a protocol for that.” (PHT 93) The Detective indicated that he was “pot

¥ aware” of any of the case law regarding the effect of voluntary intoxication negating the mens rea of
IE murder from first to second degree. (PHT 94) However, he was aware of his duty to preserve potentially
= exculpatory evidence. (PHT 91)
A This becomes even more troublesome when the evidence adduced at the time of the Preliminary
2 hearing indicates that Metro has a policy to *‘call for medical assistance to check the health of somebody
2 who has just been tasered™ (PHT32) and A.M.R. (American Medical Response, a local paramedic and
E emergency service with paramedics) was already on the scene. (id.) Clearly there was no delay that
= would be occasioned by the Detective requesting that a bleod sample be taken.
% Specifically, the lepal effect and potential defense value of voluntary intoxication is
=6 addressed by statute:
27
2 |
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NRS 193.220. When volantary intoxication may be considered. No act commtitted

by a person while in a state of voluntary intoxication shall be deemed less criminal by

reason of his condition, but whenever the actual existence of any particular purpose,

motive or intent is 2 necessary clement to constitute 2 particular species or degree of

crime, the fact of his intoxication may be taken into consideration in determining the

purpose, motive or intent.

Although the defense acknowledges that voluntary intoxication is not a compiete defense, proof
of voluntary intoxication may serve as a basis for a verdict less than first-degree murder. In addition,
courts have recognized that extreme intoxjcation may mitigate a first-degree murder to the extent thai
the intoxication indicates the killing was not planned but was a reaction to an emotionally charged
confrontation. Seg Chambers v. State, 113 Nev. 974, 944 P.2d 805 (1997); Daniel v. State. 119 Nev.
498, 78 P.3d 890, 905 (2003).

A canviction may be reversed when the State loses evidence if the defendant is prejudiced by the
loss or the State acted in bad faith in losing it Sparks v. State, 104 Nev. 316, 316, 759 pP.2d iB, 152
(1988). To establish prejudice, the defendant must show that it could be reasonably anticipated that the
evidence would have been exculpatory and material to the defense. See Boges v. State, 95 Nev. 911,
913, 604 P.2d 107, 108 (1979).

Further, the State cannot benefit from its failure to preserve evidence, and therefore, dismissal
of the first degree murder charge is proper. Sparks at 319, 320.

[n the present case, the loss of evidence severely prejudices Mr. O Keefe's case by depriving
him of the opporfunity to present empirical, scientific evidence regarding his extreme intoxication. The
lack of this evidence also inhibits the defense’s ability 1o impeach witness testimony. In addition to the
above, as the Defendant has prior felony convictions, it prevents the defendant from establishing this

defense without his being required to take the stand and testify. This confluence of loss of evidence as

well as the established prejudice by the showing the lost evidence could have been reasonably

90013
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anticipated to be both exculpatory and material, clearly shows that this defendant meets the requirements
of Cook, (1d. at 127).

Just as in cases wherein the Nevada Supreme Court has reversed a conviction where the lost
evidence was material to the identification of the defendant. See Howard v, State, 95 Nev, 580, 600 P.2d
214 (1979), the present evidence i5 50 essential to the defense regarding the specific mens rea, intent,
or ability for premeditation and deliberation, that the appropriate curative action would require allowing
the prosecution to proceed on the second degree murder case alone.

[n the alternative, if this Honorable Court finds insufficient cause for dismissal of the first degree
prosecution, the Defendant herein requests that proper corrective instructions be given the jury regarding
the lack of ability on the part of the defendant to form the necessary specific intent to commit first degree
murder due to intoxication. See Sanmborst v. State, 107 Nev. 399, 812 P.2d 1279 {19%1) {where
mishandling of a gun resulted in loss of evidence as to blood and fingerprints, and thereby prejudiced
defendant, he was entitled to a jury instruction setting forth the conclusive presumption that the victim
had held and fired a gun}.

CONCLUSION

Defendant BRIAN G’ KEEFE tespectfully requests this Court find that the loss and/or destruction
of the intoxication evidence regarding the homicide be material and exculpatory; and that said loss
and/or destruction of the intoxication evidence is prejudicial to the defendant’s case. Defendant further

requests based on the foregoing that the court grant this Motion to Dismiss the finding of the first degree




1§ portion of the “open murder” information, allow fur the prosecution of the case as a second degree or
¢ tower homicide, or, in the altemative allow for appropriate corrective instructions.
3
i DATED thiM}f of January, 2069
5 Respectfully submitted:
é
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g Assistant Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 1940
9 Patricia Palm
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ; CASE NO. C250630
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DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney CLERK Cf THE COURT
MNevada Bar #002781
PI-i]lLl]E)N. SM;TH, JR.
Deputy District Attorne
N:Ead); Bar # 10233 4
200 Lewis Avenute
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
g;'ﬂE) 6/1-2500
tate of Nevada

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of Application,

of Case No. C250630
BRIAN O'KEFEFE
#1447732, Dept No. XVII

for a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

™ gt g S e " i gt

RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
DATE OF HEARING: 2/10/2089
TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 A.M.

COMES NOW, DOUG GILLESPIE, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada, Respondent,
through his counsel, DAVID ROGER, District Atwomey, through Phillip N. Smith, Ir,
Deputy District Attorney, in obedience to a writ of habeas corpus issued out of and under the
seal of the above-entitled Court on the 26th day of January 2009, and made returnable on the
1Oth day of February, 2009, at the hour of 8:00 o’clock A.M., before the above-entitled
Court, and states as follows:

I. The allegation(s) in Paragraph 1 of said Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus do not
require admission or denial.

2. The Pefitioner is in the constructive custody of Doug Gillespie, Clark County

Sheriff, Respondent herein, pursuant to an Information, a copy of which has been attached to
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said Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus as Exhibit B and is incorporated by reference herein.

3. Respondent admits the allegations of Paragraph 7 of said Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus.

3. Respondent denigs the allegations of Paragraph 3 of said Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus.

4. The allegations in Paragraphs 4, 3. and 6 of said Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus do not require admission or denial.

Wherefore, Respondent prays that the Writ of Habeas Corpus be discharged and the
Petition be dismissed.

DATED this day of January, 2009.

Respectfully submitted,

DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar # 002781

BY /s/ PHILLIP N. SMITH, JR.

rHILLIP N. SMITH, JR.
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010233
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PROCED BACKGROUND

Brian O’Keefe, hereinafter “Defendant” was charged by way of a Criminal
Complaint filed on November 5, 2008 with one count of Murder with Use of a Deadly
Weapon. The Defendant was arraigned on November 10, 2008, and a status check for a
potential conflict of interest was set for November 12, 2008. On November 12, 2008, the
Special Public Defender's Office was appointed to represent the Defendant, and a
preliminary hearing was set for November 26, 2008. On November 26, 2008, both the State
and the Defendant agreed to a continuance due to seme outstanding discovery. The
preliminary hearing was reset for December 17, 2008. On December 17, 2008, after the
preliminary hearing was held, the Defendant was held to answer to the criminal complaint
{as amended). The Defendant was arraigned in District Court on January 20, 2009,
whereupon both he and the State invoked the 60-day rule. The matter is presently set for
trial before this Court on March 16, 2009. The Defendant filed the instant petition / motion
on Jaauary 26, 2009.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Victoria Whitmarsh, a fashion model in New York City, met and married David
Whitmarsh, a fashion photographer, in 1985. They had a child, Alexandria. They were
planning on having another child, but Mrs. Whitmarsh was diagnosed with Hepatitis € in
1996. Physicians initially gave her five (5) years to live. The Whitmarsh’s subsequently
moved to Florida. hoping to spend Mrs, Whitmarsh's final vears in a warmer climate, The
terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001 had an adverse effect on Mr. Whitmarsh's business
{which was based out of New York City); consequently, they moved to Las Vegas. Mrs.
Whitmarsh began working at Merck-MEDCQO, a local pharmaceutical company, Not long
after, she met Brian (’'Keefe (the Defendant). Mrs. Whitmarsh ultimately decided she no
longer wanted to be with her husband and began to pursue a dating relationship with
O’Keefe. Mrs, Whitmarsh and O'Keefe had what could best be termed as an “on-again, off-
again’’ relationship,

Perhaps most importantly, it was a relationship that was rife with domestic violence
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upon Mrs. Whitmarsh at the hands of "Keefe. This all culminated on November 5, 2008 at
approximately 11:00 p.m., when LVMPD dispatch received a @11 call from Robin Kolacz,
the manager of the “Casa Salvatore”™ apartments located at 5001 El Parque Avenue, Robin
stated that the female in apartment C-35 was lying inside the apartment and there was blood
everywhere. Police officers and medical personnel responded to the apartment complex.
Patrol officers arrived at the apartment and found the front door open. Officers challenged
the apartment and a male, later identified as O'Keefe, yelled at them to come in. The officers
cleared the front roon and could hear O'Keefe talking from the master bedroom. Officers
continued to talk to O"Keefe, attempting to get him 0 come out of the bedroom; however, he
refused. (¥ Keefe’s actions made officers believe O'Keefe was attempting to “bait™ them into
the room for a confrontation. Officers from the Crisis Intervention Team approached the
bedroom and observed ('Keefe holding the victim, identified as Victoria Whitmarsh.

Officers could see that there was blood on the bed. O'Keefe first tald officers Mrs.
Whitmarsh was dead, then stated she was alive and demanded officers enter to help her.
O'Keefe still refused 1o move away from the victim. Not knowing if Mrs. Whitmarsh was
still alive, officers entered the bedroom to expedite the removal of O'Keefe, so medical
could render aid. O’Keefe refused to comply with officer’s orders 10 move away from Mrs,
Whitmarsh; he therefore received one cycle from an electronic control device (ECD).
O’Keefe still refused to comply and received an additional cycle from the ECD.
Subsequently, O’Keefe complied with the officers” commands and was taken into custody
and removed from the bedroom, enabling medical personnel to enter and attend to Mrs,
Whitmarsh. Medical personnel determined Mrs. Whitmarsh was deceased. Medical
personnel and officers exited the apartment, The area was cordoned off with crime scene
tape, and hemicide detectives and criminalistics personne] were requested to the scene,
Homicide detectives arrived and a telephonic warrant was requested.

Mrs, Whitmarsh appeared to have z stab wound on her right side under the arm pit
area, an iryury to the middle knuckle of her left hand, ard an injury to her right index finger.

Mrs. Whitmarsh was lying on her back on the floor and was nude from the waist down. The

C:'.Prcﬁmm Fites:heevian, ComDaciment Converter temp 3048 1461034 THH

uOO!”ﬁ




MR =1 B b B b ) —

— e
—_— o

o] o b b2 [l b %) [ ] ot e — — — — [a— —
-] (=) 1 LA E ey b — & W0 o ~3 Lh Y L LR

ol

]

bed linens were saturated with blood and there was a bloody hlack-handled kitchen knife
{approximately 8 inches long} lying on the bed. O’Keefe was taken to the homicide office
and advised of |us rights per the Miranda decision, which he stated he understood. Homicide
detectives spoke with O'Keefe who stated he did not know what happened to Mrs.
Whitmarsh. O'Keefe stated only he and Mrs. Whitmarsh were in the apartment but he did
not know where all the blood came from. O'Keefe also stated he had been drinkine
throughont the day of November 5. 2008. Detectives spoke to Charles and Joyce Toliver,
who live directly below O’Keefe. Joyce stated she heard loud thumping noises m the
apartment above that began around 10:00 p.m, The noises continved and eventually woke
up Joyee’s husband, Charles, Charles used a broom 1o strike the ceiling in an attempt to have
the upstairs neighbors, O"Keefe and Mrs, Whitmarsh, quiet down.

When the thumping noise continued, Charles went up to apariment C-35. Charles
found the front door of the apartment open and yelled in to Q'Keefe. O'Keefe called for
Charles 10 “come in and get her, she’s dead.” Charles entered the apartment and walked to
the master bedroom, Charles only saw Mrs. Whitunarsh and O'Keefe in the apartment.
Charles looked into the bedroom and saw O'Keefe standing over the body of Mis.
Whitmarsh. O’'Keefe was attempting to lift Mrs. Whitmarsh at the waist. Mrs. Whitmarsh
was naked from the waist down and did not appear to be moving. Charles could see blood
all over the bed and there was a black-handled knife lying on the bed. Charles ran from the
room to the apariment manager’s apartment, spoke to Todd Armbruster (Robin’s boyfriend)
and told him to call the police. Jimmy Hathcox, who lives in apartment 36, next to Q' Keefe
and Mrs. Whitmarsh, alse heard loud thumping from apartment 35 at approximately 10:00
p.m. Hathcox stated he went outside of his apartment and saw O'Keefe standing outside of
his apartment. O'Keefe looked at Hathcox strangely and walked back into his apartment,

Hathcox stated the next thing he heard was people yelling and he opened the door and
saw Charles Toliver and Todd Armbruster standing in front of O'Keefe’s door. The men
told Hathecox, “he killed her and there’s blood all over the place.” Todd Ammbruster stated

that Charles Toliver came to his door and told him to call the police. Toliver told Todd that
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he thought the girl in apartment 35 was dead. Todd went up to apartment 35, entered the
apartment, and saw O'Keefe bent over Mys. Whitmarsh and biood on the bed. 'Keefe
looked up, saw Todd and toek a swing at him and told him 1o “get the fuck out of here” (or
words to that effect). Todd left the apartment, went to apartment C-37, and phoned the
police. Detectives noted a large amount of blood on O'Keefe’s clothing and hands, an
incised wound on his right index finger and two abrasions on his forehead. O"Keefe also had
several long scratch marks on his back at the belt line. O’Keefe was photographed and his
clothing was impounded. O'Keefe was arrested and transported to the Clark County
Detention Center, where he was booked for Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On November 6, 2008, at approximately 9:060 a.m., an autopsy was performed on the
body of Mrs, Whitmarsh at the Clark County Coroner’s Office by Dr. Jacqueline Benjamin.
Mrs. Whitmarsh had several bruises on her body including three on her left upper arm. Dr.
Benjamin noted a single stab wound just under the victim’s right arm pit, The wound looked
to have been made by a single edged knife with the sharp edge of the knife pointed towards
the victim’s back. Dr. Benjamin concluded that the wound was approximately 4.25 inches
long and traveled downward and forward. Lipon completion of the autopsy, Dr. Benjamin
found that Mrs. Whitmarsh died from a single stab wound and the manner of death was a
homicide. During the interview of O'Keefe, ('Keefe was insistent he had called 911.
Detectives checked all the phones at the scene and none of them had a call to 911 or to the
non-¢mergency police number.

On November 20, 2008, Cheryl Morris gave a statement to the detectives assigned to
the case. Cheryl Morris stated she had a dating relationship with O’Keete prior to Mrs.
Whitmarsh moving in with him &t the 5001 El Parque address, Ms. Morris stated she and
(O"Keefe dated for several months (starting in early 2008) and in June or July of 2008 she
and O’Keefe moved into the El Parque address. At this point, the relationship was going to
be platonic. Ms. Morris said she slept in the master bedroom and O’Keefe skept on the
couch, Ms. Meorris said she and O'Keefe had an agreement that they would share the

apartment as roommates, and after four (4) days O'Keefe called her and said he was bringing
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Mrs. Whitmarsh home to live with them. Ms. Morris, not amenable to such a living
situation, left the house and only returned to recover her property. Ms. Morris said that
during the course of their relationship, O'Keefe would always talk about his prior
relationship with Mrs. Whitmarsh and how he loved her and couldn’t live without her.

Ms. Morris stated when O'Keefe would drink he would become angry and abusive,
and he would also talk about how Mrs. Whitmarsh had ruined his life and would state that he
wanted to kill her (specifically because she had testified against him and “sent [him] to
prison” in case C207835) and that she (Mrs. Whitmarsh) was “poison.” She stated that he
said this several times over several different occasions. ('Keefe also told Ms. Morris that he
liked Mrs. Whitmarsh because she was “submissive.” Ms. Morris related how O Keefe
would te]l her about his training in the military and how he would demonstrate on her how
he could kill someone easily using a knife. Ms. Morris also indicated that in a conversation
with O"Keefe subsequent 1o the murder, he stated to her that “all he remembered” was him
being asleep on the couch and being woken up by something sharp poking him in the side
and Mrs. Whitmarsh standing over him, “and the next thing he knew, she was bleeding” (or
something to that effect).

ARGUMENT
Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus essentially argues that the Defendant

should not have to answer to the charge of Open Murder as charped in the Amended
Criminal Complaint because the State “lost” or “destroyed™ evidence., According to the
Defendant, the evidence that the State “lost™ or “destroyed” is the Defendant’s blood-alcohol
tevel. It should be noted here that such evidence was aever in the custody of the State. All
of the cases cited as support by the Defendant involve the State actually seizing and
impounding tangible evidence and subsequently losing it or breaking the chain of custody.
The Defendant here would impose an affirmative duty to actually seize and impound
“exculpatory” evidence. As will be illustrated below, this is not what is reflected in the case
law. The State has a duty 10 preserve evidence that it hus afready seized. That is not what

happened in the instant case. Here, the sttuation would be different if the State had actually

LPo Files: v eevin Com Document {onvanperetnp 29043 -6 10704 DO

000141




bl

WDgE o~ N b et

conducted a blaod-alcohel test on the Defendant, impounded the blood or the breath strip
and produced a report, and then subsequently lost or destroyed the evidence and the report.
The State submits that it never lost or destroyed the evidence which the Defendant presently
complains about. because the State never bad the “evidence” in the first place.

While the State by no means concedes that the “evidence™ here was in fact “lost” or
“destroyed,” even assuming arguendo that it was, the Defendant’s argument nevertheless
still fails. In Sparks v. State, 104 Nev. 316. 759 P.2d 180 (1988), the Nevada Supreme Court
stated that in order for a conviction to be reversed due to a “loss of evidence.” the defendant
must prove either (1) that be has been prejudiced by the loss, or (2) the evidence was “lost™
in bad faith by the government, The evidence adduced at the preliminary hearing (i.ec.,
testimony from percipient witnesses who observed the Defendant’s demeanor and testified
that he was clearly under the influence of alcohol) as well as evidence presently in the
Defendant’s possession (e.g., the video recording of the Defendant’s interview) could easily
establish that the Defendant was intoxicated. Therefore, the State submits that there is no
prejudice.

The Defendant will still be able to claim that he was too intoxicated to formulate the
intent for first-degree murder, and there is still evidence that is available that he ¢an use in an
attempt to corroborate that claim. Furthermore, the Defendant certainly has not illustrated
that the evidence allegedly “lost™ was done in bad faith by the government. The Defendant
in this case was not arrested for an alcohol-related offense; he was arrested for murder.
Whether or not the Defendant was intoxicated was not a fact required for determining
whether there was probable cause to arrest tum. It is therefore certainly not unusual that a
blood draw was not completed. While the Court in Sparks did indeed hold that the State
cannot benefit from its failure to preserve evidence, that case is easily distinguishable from
the facts of the instant case. In Sparks, the defendant was convicted of Second Degree
Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon. The deadly weapon was a handgun. Specifically,

the police found a loaded .357 caliber revolver at the crime scene in a felt bag in the master
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bedroom closet, The police visually examined the firearm and the bag for blood and hair.
and found none. Furthermore, no chemical tests were performed.

Although the firearm was initially booked into evidence, the firearm and the felt
bag were released shortly thereafter to the victim's son. The State had therefore clearly
broken the chain of custody of the weapon, even though it was aware of the defendant’s
intent on claiming self-defense and the fact that the weapon was an integral part of her
defense. The firearm was retrieved and rebooked inte evidence almost five (5) months later,
The State subsequently examined the weapon for blood and fingerprints. Finding none. the
State used this fact during opening and closing arguments, uitimately securing a conviction
based in part on these facts. The Court determined that the break in the chain of custody
may have resulted in the loss of evidence, and consequently held that under those
circumstances, the State improperly bemefited. The Court therefore overurned the
conviction.

Clearly, this is different from the instant case. where the “evidence™ at issue here was
never seized, booked into evidence, released, comaminated, or destroyed. This is a material
fact, as indicated in Cook v. State, 114 Nev. 126, 953 P.2d 712 {1998)—also a case cited by
the Defendant. In Cook, the defendant was convicted at trial of Sexual Assault. Pursnant to
the preliminary investigation inte the crime. the police department took photographs of the
crime scene, photographs of blood at the scene, photographs of the defendant taken on the
day of his arrest, and impounded the victim’s clothing in order to perform blood and hair
analysis. All of this evidence was lost and unavailable for trial. Furthermore, a detective’s
report with notes pertaining to the interview he conducted with the defendant was also lost.
The Nevada Supreme Court held that this evidence was material and potentially exculpatory,
and that the defendant’s case was “unduly prejudiced.” However, the Court went on 10 note:
“We do not suggest that the Sparks Police Department had a duty to collect evidence.
Rather, we base our holding that Cook’s defense was unduly prejudiced solely on the
evidence that was gathered and then subsequently lost by the Sparks Police Department.”
[Emphasis added.] Cook, 114 Nev. at 126, 0. 6, 953 P.2d at 716, n. 6.
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Since the Defendant is claiming that the State “lost™ the Defendant’s evidence of his
blood-alcohol level, but this evidence was never in the actual possession of the State to begin
with, the Defendant’s argument is clearly based on the premise that the police had the duty
to collect the Defendant’s blood-alcohol level. The Nevada Supreme Court has made it clear
however, that the police are under no such duty. Consequently, in this case, the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department was under no affirmative duty to collect 2 blood-aleohol
sample from the Defendant, and that because the evidence was never gathered, it was never
“lost.” Federal courts (including the United States Supreme Court) have also reached the
conclusion that the government’s duty to preserve evidence does not impose a duty to obtain
evidence. See, e.g., Miller v. Vasquez, 868 F.2d 1116, 1119-20 {9th Cir. 1989) (relying
upen Californig v. Trombetia, 467 U8, 479, 488-90, 104 S.Ct. 2528, (1984)): sec also
Arizona v, Youngblood, 488 U.8. 51, 38, 109 S.Ct. 333 (1988) (holding that the
“fundamental fairness” requirement of the Due Process Clause, does not impose on the
police a duty to retain and to preserve all material that might be of conceivable evidentiary
significance in a particular prosecution),

The Defendant’s present claim is witheut merit and therefore must fail.

CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests this Court deny Defendant’s

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

BATED this day of January, 2009,
Respectfully submitted,

DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar # 002781

BY /s/ PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR,

PHILLIP N, SMITH, IR,
Deputy District Attormey
Nevada Bar #)10233
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CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

I hereby cenify that service of RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS, was

made this 20th day of January, 2009, by facsimile transmission to;

DAVID SCHIECK
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
FAX #{702) 455-6273

/s! Terry Schessler

secretary [or the District Afiomey's

Office

l.':'.l’r‘ig,rm Files:hieevia, Uam: Doctment T ioverteruamp 35048 | 361034 OC

noo145




LHNOD 31 40 M3

()

6802 O € Ny

CLARK COUNTY
NEVADA

WO =1 N th Ja i pg

- =

—r
[ %)
—_—

13
14
15
16

l?“
18
9
20

® ORIGINAL © Y
o ILED Y

DAVID M. SCHIECK
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER

Nevada Bar No. 0824 A 30 P F 19
Randall H.SFike e S ared

Assistant Special Public nder -

Nevada Bar No. 1840 é__/;" m I .
Patricia Palm i

Dapu&y Special Public Defender CLERS OF THE COURT
Nevadaa Bar No. §009

330 South Third Street, 8" Fioor
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2316

{2) 455-6265

02) 455-6273 fax
pke@co.clark.nv.us
palmpa@ce.clark.nv.us
Aftornays for O'Keefe

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, } CASE NO. C2506830
Piaintiff, DEPT, NO. XVl
¥s. i
BRIAN O'KEEFE,
Defendant.
RECEIPT OF CQPY

DATE OF HEARING: 2-10-09
TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 am

RECEIPT of a copy of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Is hereby ackrowledged.
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|| DISTRICT COURT
GLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

!
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ; ggg$ I':I% g&ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ
Plaintiff, }
Vs,
H BRiAN O'KEEFE, }
Defendants. ;
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Date of Hearing: 2-10-09
Time of Hearing: 8:00am

T0: CLARK COUNTY SHERIFF
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

GREETINGS:

We command that you have the bedy of the abave-captioned person, by you

imprisoned and detained, as it is alleged, together with the time and cause of such

imprisonment and detention, by whatever name said above-captioned person shall be

calied or charged, before the Honorable MICHAEL VILLANI, District Court Judge, at his
| Chambers or his courtroom in the Reglonal Justice Center, 200 §. Lewis, City of Las
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| || Vegas, County of Clark, State of Nevada, on the 10th day of Eebruary. 2009, at the hour of
2 || 8:00 a.m., fo do and receive that which shall then and there be considered concaming the
3 | said above-captioned person and have you then and there this Writ.
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DATED AND DONE this .32 %5

SUBMITTED BY:

DAVID M. SCHIECK
SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER

n
Assistant Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No_ 1941}
Patricia Palm
Deputy Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 6009
330 Sauth Third Street, Suite 800
las "\fegas NV 88155-2316
(702) 455.6265

day of , 2009,

COURT CLERK

By: j%-\_,_\ /&:&_ ”

.
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DAVID M. SBCHIECK
2 i SPECIAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
Navada Bar No_ 0824
3 | Randall H. Pike
Assistant Special Public Defender
4 | Nevada Bar No. 1840
I Patricia Palm
Deputy Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 6008
330 South Third Street, Suite 800
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2318
702) 4555265
702) 4558273 fax
rpike@co clark.nv.us
palmpa@co.clark.nv.us
Attomey for O'Keefe
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THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;

Plaintiff, }
VS, )
BRIAN O'KEEFE

Deferndant
]

ORDER
Date of Hearing:

® ORIGINAL

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. C250630
DEPT. NO. XVl

Time of Hearing 8:00am
The Petition of BRIAN O’'KEEFE, by and through his attorneys, DAVID M.

@
FiLED
W% JN30 P E20

CLERY OF THE COURT

LT

-10-08

| SCHIECK, Special Public Defender, RANDALL PIKE, and PATRICIA PALM, Deputy

§2 20
E & :\'?1 | Special Public Defenders, having been filed in the above-entitled matter.
21 )
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giving @ statement the early morning hours of Novembern
6 at 1:37 a.m., a recorded statement?

A Yes.

Q. Do you recall indicating in that statement

that O C spray was of no use in a case like this?

B Tes.

2. Is that because ¢f the close quarters of the
room?

B, No., What 2t is, there's two reasons

acktually. To use something like the ocleoresin capsturn
on Mr. Ckeafe, Victoria would have alsc been
contaminated, We didn't kaew at this point what her
conditicon was, S0 to basically punish her while she's
already injured. The othar thing is the paramedics
and A.M.R. have te handle her to tTreat wounds or
whatever. And to contaminate those injuries with
something as painful as 2 oleoresin capstun wasn't
reasonable,

Q. From your training are you aware 0.C. spray
might not be as effective on somebody under the

influence of alecochel or drugs?

A, Yes.,
2. Did that cross your mind at the time also?
A I didn't know if he was under the influence

of any substance et cetera so no.

MERCER & ASSUCIATES

(702) 388-2973 NoaNso
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. Is it fair to say from some of the things he
was yelling that he was acting erratically?

a. Yes.

(. You indicated that Kahn entered the bedroom
first and then yourself and then Officer Taylor and
possibly a forth person, yeou're not sure who that was?

A. Like I said, I found ocut later who it was but
at the time I ¥knew we had stacked up.

Q. Was that Sergeant Newberry?

A Sergeant Newberry, from what I rememher, is
the one -- he went aheéad to a position where he could
peek around the door and see exactly what the layout
of the room locked like, how many bodies were inside
and 1If he saw any weapons. Fe indicated when we did
go in where we would find Mr. Okeefe and Mrs.
Whitmarsh. And then he noticed the knife on the bed
also.,

Q. Sergeant Newberry did net go in the room?

A, I don't know. When I go in my main target,
I'm the non-lethal option. %S¢ I was watching

primarily where Mr, Ckeefe's hands were placed,.

Q. Yes or no is fine,
A. I want to explain,
Q- Mr. Smith can help you explain your answer

later if necessary.

{702) 3B8-2373
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THE CQURT: Just wait for another
guestion.
M5. PALM:
0. Sc yvou don't know if Sergeant Newberry went
in to the room is the anawer?
A, My goal is to --
2. Yes or no?
A. His actions and lethal cptions.
MS. PALM: Could you instruct the witness
to answer yes or no guestion with ¥es oOr no.

THE COURT: Answer that particular

guestion.
M5. FALM:
Q. The answer is you don't know if S3ergeant

Newberry went inte the room?

A, Ho .

Q. And you indlcated Sergeant Newberry told you
when he took his guick peek he didn't see any weapons
and he saw both Mr. Okeefe's hands?

A, He saw the knife cn the bed and he saw wheare
they were positioned. Mr. Dkeefe is at the edge of
the bed, the wvictim is at the gdge of the bed.

Q. And he toléd you that he saw both of Mr.
OKeefe's hands and there was no weapons in his hands?

F. Yeah.

VERCER & ASSOCTATES 100052
[702) 288-2873
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Q. As you enter the room it's at least three of
you in the room that have made entry. How far a4are youl
away from Mr. Okeefe at that peoint?

A, Probably within -- maybe five feet.

. And you indicated he's laying on. the floor
with Miss Whitmarsh's body?

A Yes.

Q. Was he doing anything that you saw to harm
her during that time?

A, Ne. It looked like at that point whatever
damage had been done was done.

Q. And he was partially covering his body with
his left knee but his right leg was on the floor?

A, That's right.

30 that would mean he was facing you?

A, Uh-huh,

Q. So you could see his face and ses his hands
at that time?

A Tas.

Q. Was he basically face-to-face with Miss

Whitmarsh's bady?

A, Yeah, I would say so.
Q. What was he doing with his hands before the
whole waving, trying -- I think you indicated he was

waving his hands, saying "don't look"?

(702} 388-2973
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A, He was saying simultanecusly don't look at
her, don't look at her and was covering up her tarso.

68 50, basically, trying to cover the naked part
0f her body with her shirt?

B, Her torso. From her waist down was totally

exposed, the T-shirt wouldn't have covered it.

2. And he was pulling on her shirt during that
point?

A, Yeas.

2. Now, you indicated that you did the first

E.C.D. cycle and it wasn't fully effective bu: two

prongs had entered?

A. As far as I know, yes.

Q. And Mr., Okeefe is still laying down at that
point?

B, Yeah, his right side is down, his right arm
is free. After the -- after the first cycle completes

and Officer Taylor has one hand behind the back.

Q. 3¢ you wolld estimate you were about seven
feet away from him, so you do the E.C.D. cycle and
then is it just Officer Taylor that goes over to Lry
and take physical custody of Mr. Okeefe, or do other
cfficers joinm him?

A, I don't know,

o. Are you standing back looking at the whole

MERCER & ASSOCIETES
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thing because you're the one firing?

A, My Job at that point, when I deploy that
C.D., I'm married in a éense, my whole responsibility
is Mr. Okeefe, monitoring his actions. I know Officer

Taylor steps in because he's right there. Other
cfficers I can't vouch for exactly how many are in
there. My total responsibility is him, if he's not
complying or becomes violent or a weapon comes out of
somawhere, I need to be able to assess that.

. The only officer vou indicate is trving to
Cake physical custody is Officer Taylor, you don't

dispute that's correct, do you?

A, Ne. There was wery small guarters back
there.
Q. In fact, where Mr. Okecefe is laying on the

floor there's probably about :wo feet behind him and
the closet wall, so there's not a iot of room to
operate on the other side?

A, Na,

Q. 8¢ from you to the body is seven feet, Mr.
Okeefe is on the other side of the body and then you
have two more feet. So if Officer Taylor is going
over there he has to step over the victim's body?

A He steps from pehind Ckeefe's fesat. He's not

over the body at all.

MERGER & BSSOLIATES
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Q. But he last to actually get over the body

somehow =0, .

A, There was space off to the right side to
maneuver.
Q. Is there a dresser right below her fest,

pretty close to her feet?

A I never poticed that.

. Do you know from vour training on tazer use,
do you have to be certified to use a tazer?

A, Yes.

. From your training, are you told whether a
Lazer is less effective on z2omebody who's under the
influence of alcohol or drugs?

A It can be. Like I said, I had no knowledge
cf any alcohol or drug use.

Q. So, basically, Officer Taylor could not get
both arms so¢ you decided to do a second cycle?

A, Exactly. There was a lot of blood. We was
informed as we were getting to the house that the
victim may have tested positive for AIDS or hepatitis
C. 30 exposure to that blood was also a concern. So
Lo get down there, you know, wrastling with him, we
wanted te get him out as quickly as possible so she
could be treated.

Q. What type of E.C.D. device do you use, is it

MERCER & BSGOCIRTES
{702) 388-2973
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M6 or X267

A. It's the X26.

0. Do you know how many volts of electricity
that delivers?

A, Not right offhand, no.

2. It basically has two probes per use, so when
you fire it two probes are ejected?

A. Right. Those probes are the same probes that
remain intaect for the second cycle. So it's not an
additional set of probes. It's the seconds cycling.
There's a thousand volts that are conducted in the two
lnch spread. It's not the volrs that are conducted inl
to the person, it's the amperes., I think it's two
point two amperes that are inflicted on the Ferson ko
bring them under contrel or disrupt their muscular
control,

Q. Se after the first five second cycle of the
tazer, that's the ordinary cycle, five seconds?

A. Right.

Q. Aftfer the first five second cycle, Mr. Okeefe
still wasn't incapacitated?

A. Na. It was kind of strange. 1t happens
sometimes, 1f you're in close within less than five
feet, 1f the spread is not large enough it will not

incapacitate the entire body. So to have a spread

MERCER & ASSUCIATES 000057

(702 388~2973




10
131
12
3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Jl

that maybe goes from under the arm pit to the waist

you're not going to get full compliance from the

subject. What is more ideal is raybe & shot, & praobe
that hits in the upper body and one in the lower body.

Q. And you also have said you might not get full

compliance if somebeody is under the influence of
alcohel or drugs, that might affect complianca?

A. Any nen-lethal tool, drugs and alcohol can
also be a factor.

Q. Does Metre have a department policy on the

use of tazar force when the subject is unarmed?

A. Yes,

Q. Is it a written policy?

A. Yes,

0. Is there a department policy using when the

subject is apparently under the influence of alcohol
or drugs?

A, No. TIf they are pregnant, elderly, those

types of situations, handcuffed. 1It's not to be used

in any type of punitive, just punishing somebody or
meving somebody off a park bench.

Q. Sure. Does the policy say not te use this
force repeatedly unless there's a great threat to

somebody?

A. Yes. In that situatien there definitely was.

MERCER & ASSUCIATES
(702) 388-2973
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Q. Is it possible that bacause Mr. Okeefe fell
on his right arm, that that was part of the reason
Officer Taylor couldn't get his right arm behind him?

MR, SMITH: 1I'd object, speculation.

THE COQURT: QOverruled.

THE WITNESS: No. That arm was free,
because after the cycle completed he was physically
able to move that arm and as they were trying to grab
it he was moving it away.

(038 S0 after the first time that you used the
tazer, at that point you could see hoth of Mr.

Okeefe's hands, he had no weapons, is that correct?

A. Eight.

Q. And there are at least four officers in the
room?

A, Yes.

a. Do you know whether Metro has a policy to

call for medical assistance toc check the health of

somebody who has just been tasered?

A, Yes. They were already on the scens.

Q. That was A.M.R.7

A, Yes.

Q. Tou talked about taking Mr., Ckeefe out of tha

room. Do you recall who specifically took him out of

the room?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
{702) 388-29713
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A, I remember Officer Taylor kept in control of
his arms. He was moved out in to the bedroom so they
could get control of both arms and both legs because
he just went dead weight and weouldn't cogperate. We
needed Lo get that path cleared because it was the
main walkway to get in to the apartment and in to the
bedroom. Se he went dead weight on us so they moved

him out in to the living room, grabbed at his limbs

and moved him cuf to the catwalk. I don't know which
officers.

Q. Dld you see Mr. Qkeefe being placed on the
catwalk?

A. Yes,

. Was he put on his belly on the catwalk?

A, Tes.

0. Do you know whether any injuries occcurred to

Mr. Qkeefe during that proccess?

A, No, I don't. There was no complaint of
injury.
2. I'm showing you what's been marked as Defense

Exhibit C. Does that appear to be how Mr. Okeefe
looked after his arrest that night?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall whether that injury was present

on his forehead when you encountered him in the

MERCER & ASSOLIATES
{702) 388-2973
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they used four pecple as opposed to two Lo take him

bedroom?
A. No, I don't.
Q. So it could have happened during the arrest?
A, I have no idea.

Q. During the arrest did you ever see him put o
his face in the bedroom?

& Yes. They were trying to move him, he went
dead weight and wasn't cooperating. He wasn't put oan
his face, he wormed his way out of the held. Sg he

fell down, they pulled him out there and that's why

out the rest of the way. Like I said, that's what was
the strange Thing about it. It was not a person --

MS. PALM: Officer, there's no guesticn
before you right now,.

THE COURT: Do you have any other
quiestions?

MS. PALM: Court's indulgence.

o, Officer, you indicated in your statement that
you had actually tried to speak with Mr. Okeafe
subsequent to him being taken into custedy?

A. Not prier to him keing taken in custody.

Gnce we were out on the catwalk.
Q. Were you assigned that duty, to try and

interview him at the scenpe?

MERCER & ASSOCLATES
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& I'm a C.I.T. officer, He was very angry.
Q. That's a yes or no question?
A. I den't think it is, ma'am. Honestly.

MS. PALM: Your Honor, could vou direct
him to answer yes or no. I asked if he was assigned
the duty to interview him.

THE WITHESS: Then yes,

THE CQURT: Any other questions?

M5. PALM: Yes, Your Honaor.
How long did you talk to Mr. Okeefe outside?
I'm not sure.
Do you know how long he was on the catwalk?
Just a few minutes,

Was that when &Z.M.R. checked him gut?

P :‘PL'J .',E'CI

He walked under his own power down the
stairs, out inte the court yard.

0. Was he put into your car or somebody elsa's?

A. After he stood ocutside for a while and then
went into a patrol car.

0. You again had tried to talk to him
downstairs, is that correct?

A. Yes,

Q. And you indicated in your statement that he
smelled heavily of alcohol at that time?

A Tes.

(702} 388-2973
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Q. Do you have training on the detection of

whether somebody's under the influence of alecohol or

drugs?

A. No, 1t was just an observation.

Q. Have you ever been a part of any D.U.I.
arrests?

A. Tes,

Q. Do you know what the symptoms of being under

the influence are?

A, Glossy-eyad, redness of the eyes, slurred
speech, unsteady gaze, odor of alcochol.

- 50 in additien to the odor of alcohel, which

other of these affects did you notice?

A, Just what I remember was the odor of alcohol.

Q. You don't recall whether his speech was
slurred?

Ay No.

Q. And you never asked him 1if he had anything tg|
drink?

A, No.

s Would it have been your responsibility or

somebody else’'s to determine whether to give him a
test for fthne use of alcohal?
A. It wasn't a D.U.I. so0 I don't know that theré

would have been any type of blood draw or breath test.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
(702) 388-2973 noQneé3
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Q. If it was somebody's determination to make it
wasn't yours?

A, Right.

Q. And did you indicate in your statement Mr.
Okeefe was really hard to talk to during the time you
had talking to him?

A, He was very standoff-ish. He wouldn't answar
any gquestions or respond appropriately to any
question. When I tried to solicit his name or
Victoria's name so A.M.R. c¢ould have that information
to know blood type, approximate age, he 3dust kept
saying, “You guys are mad at me, you guys are mad at
me."

(8 In fact, he got the name of Victoria wrong,
didn't he? When he first told you her name he said

Veronlica?

A, Yes.

. Did it seem to you he was a little
disoriented?

A, 1t seened to me it was kind -- he didn't want

us to know her name,

. Angd did you have any further contact with Mr,
Okeefe beyond the downstairs conversation?

A, On the catwalk,

Q. After that, after he had qone downstairs?

RCER & SCCIATES n00n64
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B No?

Q. After you talked downstairs he was taken intg
custody. Did you have any further contact with him?

A, No. I was goling to talk te him one more time
but he was asleep.

Q. Did you write a written report?

A. I did a use of force report and was --
homicide did a taped interview with me.

o, Do you know how long it took him to be
transported from the scens?

E. T don't,

MS. PALM: ©No other guestions, Your Honor,

thank you.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MR, SMITH: Real brief, Judge. I promise
BEEDIRECT EXAMINZTION
ME. SMITH:
Q. Two guestigns for you. You've diready

testified that you saw & knife inside the bedroom, is
that correct?
A, Yas.
Where did you see that knife?

A, On the bed,

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
(702} 388-2973
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Q. Showing you what's been admitted as State's
Exhibit 2, is that a photograph of the knife ¥you saw?

A, Yes.

Q- Does there appear to be apparent dried blood
on that knife?

A. On the tip and on the handle.

Q. Finally, officer, you testified there was
seme concern regarding a communicable disease that
Miss Whitmarsh may have had, do you recall testifying

about that?

A Yes.

Q. Where did you receive that information from?

A. Over dispatch. And from downstairs
neighhors.

MR. SMITH: No further guesticns.
THE CQURT: Anything else?
MS5. PALM: Nothing further.

THE CQURT: Thank you for your time today

(Interruptior in proceedings.}

THE COURT: Recalling Bryan Okeefe,
DEF23248X.
The State may <all their next witness.

ME. SMITH: State ecalls Dfficer Sean

MERCER & ABSOCIATES
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Taylor.
{Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn.)
THE CLERK: State vour name, for the
record, and spell it.
THE WITKESS: Sean Tayler, S-e-a-n.
T-a-y-l-c-r,.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
ME. SMITH:
Q. Mr. Taylor, how are you presently employed?
A I'm a2 patrol officer with Las Vegas

Metropolitan Police Department.

Q. Were you working as patrol officer back an
Nevember 5, ZO0O0B?

A Yes, I was,

Q. Did you have occasion to be dispatched to

3001 E1 Parque?

Fu. Yes, sir.

Q. You responded to that scene?

A Yes.

Q. When you responded to that scene, did you

come into contact with a person later identified to

MERCER & BASSOCIATES
(702} 388-2373
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You &as & Bryan Qkeefe?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you zee Mr. Qkeefe present in court today?
M5. PALM: Stipulate to identification.
THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. SMITH: ©On that 1I'1l1 pass the witness.
CROSS EXAMIMATION

M5, PALM:

c. Lo you recall giving & statement to DEtECtiVﬂ
Vaughn on November 6, about 1:38 in the morning?

A, Tes, I do.

2. And you had indicated when you entered
Officer Kahn, the C.I1.T. officer, was in the Iiving
reom yelling in to the back northwest bedroom?

A. Tes.

Q. De you recall if the lights were on or off
when whether you entered the apartment?

A, The lights in the living room were not on at
the time. The lights in the hallway were on and the
lights in the bathroom were on and the lights in the

back bedroom that he was yelling into were on.

Q. S50 the other bedrgoom was dark?
A, Yes, ma'am,
MERCER & ASSOCIATES N00NEE8
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dark.

Q.

And the kitchen was dark?
Yes, 1t was.
And the living room?

Yes, the living room we were standing in was

So after your entry you stack up behind

Officer Kahn?

A.
-
bedroom?
A
Q.

you?

L
Ballejos

Q.

A,
know who

Q.

Yes,

And eventually you make entry in to the

Yas.

Do you recall who else entered along with

Yes,

Who was that?

Officer Kahn was first in the stack, Officer
was second and I was third,

Sc the three of you entered or is it four?

I was the third persen in the stack, I don't
was behind me.

Do you recall whether Sergeant Newberry went

in to the room or not?

B

During the time we went in with the stack T

don't recall if he was behind me or not. When I went

in I didn't Iook behind me,

MERCER & BSSOCTATES |
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Q.
see Mr.
A
Q.
hands?
A.
5.8
the body
A,
Q.
that tim
A
.
A.
he was s
her.
.
AL
know why
Q.
on the g
Can see
AL
was look
his feet

When you first entered the bedroom, do you
Okeefe right away?
Yes, I do.

Coeuld you see that he had no weapons in his

Yes.

He's basically laying on the floor next to
of the female victim?

Beside the body, yes.

And is he doing anything with his hands at
e?

Yes, he was,

What was he deoing?

He was rubbing her scalp and the otber hand

ort of ceovering her, hovering his hands over

Was that to shield her from your view?

I don't know what he was thinking. I deon't

he was hovering his hand over her.

S¢ the way he was laying, his right hip was
round and he's facing vou, at that time you
his face?

I can see his face. MHe wasn't facing me, he
ing down at her. His head was to the west,

were to the sast.

{702) 388-2973
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2. 50 he's face-to-face with her sort of?

A. He's looking at her, then looking at us when
we were shouting commands, then looking back at her.

Q. And you never saw him with a weapon at that
polint, did wvou?

A At that point he did not have a weapon,

2 You never saw him make any movement toward
the female as if to harm her?

B, He was rubbing her scalp and I really wanted

him to stop, just because of the way her body was

loaoking.
Q. He was not hitting her scalp?
B, He .
0. And he never made any verbal threats to you

at that time?
A, No.
Q. o Officer Kahn is yelling commands to get

away from her?

A, Yes.
. He's basically staring at her and rubbing her
head?

A. And shouting at us, yes.

. And Ballejos indicates he's going to use the
Lazer?
A. Yes,
MERCER & ASSOCIATES L1}
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. And how far away were you from him when the
tazer was deplaoyed?

A. I didn't measure or anything like that. &
few feet away. I was prepared to go hands-on,

. Prior to firing the tazer, when at least the

three of you enter the room you're all together?

A, Yes.

g. Standing kind of side by side?

A. We were stacked up behind each other.
Q. It's a pretty small bedroom?

a4, Yes.

Q. 2And the distance from you to the females hodwy
at that point, can you estimate?

A I would estimate 2 few feer, I didn't
measure it, TIL{ was really quick. I can't give you an
exact number,

Q. 30 during that tazer cygle you indicated in
your report or in your statement that Mr. Ckeefe's
body didn't completely tense up and he still weuidn't
listen te commands to get off the body?

B. Correct.

Q. And mever got off the ground at that point,
80 he's still laying there next to the baody?

A Yes.

Q. And during that first tazer cycle you could

M ER & AS IATES
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see he could still move his arms?

F. Yes. At that peoint he wouldn't give me his
right arm, even though I could %ell he could still
move 1t hecause he was moving it.

Q. S0 if vou indicated in your statement that
¥ou didn't try to cuff him until after the second
tazer statement, is that incorrect?

A, No, that's not ingcorrect. I was telling him
put his arms behind his back and he wouldn't give me
his arm.

o, So the first tazer cycle, do you gpproach him
during that cycle or after that cycle?

A, I approached him during that cycle and
starting to give commands to put his arms behind his
back, lay flat on his stomach.

Q. At that peoint you haven't laid your hands on
him?

A I don't bhelieve I touched him during the

first cycle.

Q. You were waiting for him to tense up
completely?

A Yes,

2. So after the second tazer cycle is when you

tried to get his arm into cuffs and vou were finally

able Eo?

{702) 3B8-23973
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A, After the first cycle, either during the
second cycle or after that he still wouldn't give me
that right arm. I was putting the left arm into a
lock and then I was finally able to get the other arm.

Q. After he was tasered twice he still wasn't
fully cooperative?

B. I have tg grab his arm, his other arm and put

it behind his hack.

2. Was he still tensed up because of the tazer
firing?
A. When I finally got the other arm handcuffed,

the tazer cycle was over, both cycles were offer.
Q. 50 you actually had your hands on him during

the second tazer cyclez

A Near the end of it I believe I had his left
arm.

Q. And that's about a five-second cycle?

A. Yes. That's what we are told during
training.

Q. Do you recall who took him out of the room at

that point?

A, I was one of the people that took him out of
the rooem. I grabbed his legs, QOfficer Kahn grabhed
his torso.

o. So the two of you c¢arried him?

{702) 388-2973
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A Yes.

d. I imagine you had te step over the female
body ¢n the floor, because he was on the side of har?

A. I didn't step over the body, I don't know if
Officer Kahn did. I was at the feet because I grakbbed
nis legs and he's taller than the female. I stepped
around the body.

Q. How many officers had to go arcund the body
to take him into physical custody?

B, I don't recall what Qfficer Kahn did, if he
stepped over her or lifted him over. I grabbed his
legs because his legs were further down than hers and
T picked his legs up.

o, That area, from her body to the far wall
where Mr. Okeefe was basically, there's about two feet

until you hit the wall, right?

A I didn't really look at the far wall.

Q. Is it a pretty small room?

A. What would you call a small room?

. It's not a very big space?

AL It wasn't a large space, no.

2. Do you recall whether Mr., QOkeefe was injured

when you were taking him into custody?
A, I couldn't tell if he was Injured or not.

There was far too much blood everywhere.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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J- Cfficer, I'm showing you what has been marke
as Defense Exhibit C. 1Is that how Mr. Okeafe appeare

to yeu on the evening in guestion?

A That's definitely Mr. Okesefe, but I
remember -- I don't remember if this was on his head
or not. I remember I just was loocking around and I

saw blood everywhere, all over his arms.

Q. Wounld you have noticed an injury on kis head
when you first observed him?

A, I didn't look at his face. Once I had him
handcuffed and we were carrving him he was face down.

Q. fou wouldn't have noticed it when you were
standing five feet from him telling him get away from
the bed?

A, I was focused on his arms. I was trying ro
get him away from the female.

G. Was he put on his stomach in the bedroom
during the arrest process?

A No, ma'am. He was still on his side when I
got his arms and Officer Kahn hooked his arm and I
grabbed both of his legs. Once we finally got him off
the ground he was then facing towards the ground but
he wasn't on the ground.

Q. Did you take him out te the balcony or was

that another officer?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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A. I was one of the officers that did take him
out to the balcony. Officer Kahn and I laid him on
the living room floor and another officer, Officer
Ratchet, picked hin up because 1 started yelliug,
medical couldn't get through him in the living room
and Officer Hatchet picked him up and we carried him
on to the terrace and set him up on the terrace.

Q. Did you ever lay him in such a position that
he would have sustained this injury to his forehead 7

B, Ng, I did not.

Q. When Mr. Okeefe was on the stairwell or the
terrace, you left; is that correct?

. Tes. I got orders from a sergeant to start
doing other things on perimeter, so I did laave.

Q. Cfficer, do youn have any training in
recognizing whether a person is under the influence of
alcohel or drugs?

A I am trained to use an evaluation process to

determine if a person is impaired. ves.

Q. You make D.U.I. arrests, I assume?
A Yes.
Q. Can you tel) me what the symptoms are if

somebody is under the influence of alcohol?
A. Staggered gait, odor of alcoholic beverage onf

their breath, red watery eves, slurred speech.

(702} 388-2973
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Q. Pupils dilated?
A. Yas, they could.
Q. And Mr. Qkeefe smelled heavily of alcohol

that evening, correct?

A, I don't recall what he smelied like.

Q. Did you spend very much time with him?

A. No, I didn't,

Q. 30 you basically arrested him and dropped haim

sff?

A. That's correct.

o. Were you present when A.M.R. arrived to check
out Mr. Okeefe?

A, Yes, I was.

Q. And how long did it take them to arrive?

A. I den't recall how long it took. I thought
they were somewhere waiting, a block or twa away. I
assume they were waliting a block or two away like they
usually are for us to tell them to ¢ome in.

Q. Basically, do you agree that the incident was
reported around 11:01 in the evening and Mr. Okesafe
Was in custody by 11:137

A, I don't recall the exact times. I didn't
check my watch.

Q. Well, 12 minutes from the initial call to in

custody, does that sound correct to you?

MERCER & BSSOCIATES )}
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A, I don't know. I do know from the moment T
got there to the time he was in custody there were 2
minute or two maybe. I never locked at the printout
Lo know the esxact times.

Q. Would it help refresh yvour recollectiocn if I
showed you the dispatch log?

A, Sure.

Do you recall what time the call went aut?

A It went out just after 2300 hours, at 2313 we
said he was in custody.

Q. S0 12 minutes from initial call that he was
in physical custody?

A. Yes, ma'am.

0. Do you recall how long he sat cutside before

he was taken from the scene?

A. I don't.

Q. Rere you there when he was taken from the
sCene?

A, No. After I left him on the terrace T was

there while paramedics were walking up the stairs.
Sergeant Castor approached me and started giving me
commands onh what te do on perimeter and I left and
fallowed those orders.

Q. Did you write any written reports regarding

this incident?

MERCER & AGSOCIATES 000079
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A, I did fill out an occupational illness form
because of the amount of blood, and I was bare handed.
It's just our protacol.

Q- Pid you complete a vse-of-force report
because of the use of tazers?

A. Mo, I did not complete the uyse-of-force
report, another officar did.

M5. PALM: No more guestions. Fass the
witness.

MR. SMITH: Nothing further,

THE COURT: Thank you for your time.
You're excussd.

The State may tall their next wet.

MR. SMITH: The State calls Todd

Armbruster, A-r-m-b-r-u-s-t-s—r,

{(Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn.)

THE CLERK: State your name, for the
record, and spell i%t,

THE WITNESS: Todd Armbruster,
A-r-m-b-r-u-s-t-g-r,

MR. SMITH: Mazy I proceed?

THE COURT: Pleasa proceed.

MERCER & ASSOLIATES
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

MER. SMITH:

Q.
reside?
AL
Q.
A,
Q.
locatian

A,

2

2

o ¥ e poo

Q.

Mr. Armbruster, wiere do you presently

5001 El1 Parque, Number Two.

What zpartment number?

Humber Two,

Incidently, do you kind of work at that
as well?

Yeah, maintenance.

45 a maintenance person?

Yes,

Who deo you reside with?

Robin Kolacz, XK-o-l-a-c-z.

What's her Job function at that place?
Manager—~tvype.

Kind of like on-site supervisor?
Uh-huh.

Iz that a "yes"?

Tes.,

I want to draw your attention to November 5,

2008, approximately eleven o'clock p.m, Did anything

unusual happen that day at that time?

A.

At that time, ysah, Cockie, who lives in

MERCER. & ASSOCIATES !']00{\31
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number 29, come running deown the apartment saying 1
need to call 9-1-1. He said he thought this girl was
dead in the apartment above him.

Q2. You said cookie Tolliver?

A Charles.

Q. Charles?

AL Yeah.

Q. I wanted you to do me a favor,

A. Say yes?

2. He's taking deown everything you say so I want

you to wailt for me te ask the gquestion before you
answer it?

A, Uh-huh.

a. Is that yes?
A, Yos.
Q. Charles Tolliver runs down and what does he

de? Bang on your door?

A, No, he was yelling,

a. You can hear him?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. As a result of what Charles Tolliver told
vou, what did you do?

A. I told Robin to call 8-1-} and I ran up to
the apartment he was talking about.

Q. What apartment was that?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES noons2
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» o ¥ o0

the door

A,

hedroom.

Q.

35

Is that directly above wvou?
Directly above him.

Directly above Charles Tolliver?
Yes.

50 would this pe the third floor?
Second floor.

Sco when you go upstairs to the apartment, is
open?

The door was wide cpen,

Do you go inside?

Yes.

What do you see upon entry?

I didn't see anything upntil I went in to the

30 when you walked in the apartment, yvou walkl

in to the living room first?

A,

> o ¥ o0 F o

Right.

You didn't see anything?

No.

S0 then do vyou progress into the bedroom?
Yas,

What de you see then?

Saw the bed with & bunch of rags on top of

it; Bryan standing at the end of the bed and the lady

HMERCER & ASSOCIATES ‘1'}
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laying on the floor.

2. Bryan being Brvan Okeefe?

A Yes.

Q. Do you see Mr. Okeefe present in court today?
A Tes.

M3. PALM: Stipulate to identification.

ME. SMITH:

2. S0 what happens next?

A, HE was bending over, telling her, asking her
ta get up.

G. He, being Bryan Okeeafe?

A, Yes., Thenr he turned arocund and saw me,

started to take a swing at me and stopped what he was
doing, told us to get the hell out of his apartment.
We turned around and left and called the police.

Q. Did you know -- strike that.

When you walked in to the apartment do vou

also see a female.laying inside the bedroom?

A. You can't until you get in to the bedroom.

Q. That's my question. Did you see a2 female
laving on the ground when you walked inside the
bedroom?

A, Yes.

Q. Did she look to pe deceased to you?

A. She wasn't moving. She didn't appear to be
MERCER. £ BSSOCIATES 000 ['134
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breathing.
Q. Did you knew that female?
A. I didn't know her personally. I never reallw

met, no, I didn't know her.

Q. 50 your testimony is when you made entry in

to the bedroom, the defendant took a2 swing at you and

told you to get ocut of there?

¥es,

And you subseqguently did in fact leaves
Yas.

What did you do after you left?

o ¥ o p

I went to Apartment 37, which was two doors
down, and called the police on a land line.

MR. SMITH: Fass the witness.

CROS55 EXRMINATION

MR. FIKE:

Q. We've had an opportunity to speak% before. In
fact, you ware kind enaugh to take us around the
dpartment complex where all this occcurred?

A Right.

Q. Tou have responsibilities at thacg complex,
you're like an on-site manager?

A, Maintenance.

Kl ¢
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Q. And you reside in a building that is kind of

at almost at 2 right angle to the apartment where this

happened?
A Correct.
Q. The apartment where this happened is on the

second story of a two-story building, and it's en the

end of that bullding, is that correct?

A, Yes,

Q. And Mr. And Mrs. Tolliver live underneath
that?

A. Yes.

Q. And there's stairs that go up to a catwalkx or

kind of a balcony that's out in front of thnat

apartment?
B Correct,
1 And being a maintenance individual or having

that job with that apartment complex, vyou have an
opportunity to go arcund and get to know the Feople
that are in the apartment complex?

A Right.

Q. You kind of know who belongings there, who
doesn't belong there, in case anybody is doing any
damage or if they are just good tenants?

A. Right.

. And you had occasion to see Bryan and

{(702) 3BH-2973
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Victoria often while they were living there?
A, Yes.

Q. And you had occasion to see them bath up on

the catwalk, sitting outside drinking?

A. Right.

0. You're obviously over 217

AL Tes.

Q. And you‘}e familiar, you drink alcoholic
beverages?

A. Cccasionally.

Q. And so you have some experience with whether

or not somebody is getting to the point where they ars
intoxicated or not intoxicated?

A, Right.

02, And on the night that this happened when you
came in and you saw Bryan, were you able to form an
opinion, based upon your observation, as to whether or

not he was intoxicated?

A, To me he appeared Intexicated, yes,

2. Did he seem discriented as to what was going
on?

A, Yes,

£ When yecu saw him in thkere, ean you kiand of

tell me how he was in relationship to the bady of

Victoria»

]
(o ]
@
X
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A. At heyr feet.
. Was he talking to her?
a. Yes.
Q. Do you recall what he was saying?
MR. SMITH: Objection, calls for hearsay.
MR. PIKE: Present sense impression, facts
upen which he's basing whether or not he was
intoxicated. Evidence not for the truth of the matter
as to the content, but his reaction and his
interpretation of the present sense based upon his
reaction to the police officers and te Todd.

THE COQURT: Owerruied,

MR. PIKE:
Q. What did he say?
A. Like I said, he beant you down with the hand

on her knee and her hand, "Come on, baby, get up,
don't do this to me, get up."

2. At the time you saw him get up, did he have
any sort of a weapon?

A. Nao.

Q. Did you see any sort of a weapon anywhere on
the bed or anywhere in the apartment?

A, Na, I didn't.

Q. Rfter he took the swing at you, did it Appear

he was stumbling or was not very gteady on his feetr?

) MERCER & ASSOCIATES 200088
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A, Yoas,

Q. And after he took the one swing he didn't
follow you cut when vou left the Apartment?

A Ma.

Q. In fact, he turned around and went back to¢
the body of Victoriaz

AL Yes,

Q. She wasn't moving, you were doing everything
that you could to get the police there and medical
help a5 quickly as possible?

A. Yes.

Q2. Had you seen Victoria when she was
intoxicated prior to this time?

A, No.

Q. Did you ever have an opportunity during the
course of all of this to see how long Mr. Okeefe was
cut on the catwalk before the police took him away?

A, No. He wasn't on the catwalk that night.

Q- Did you personally heasr any noises conming out

of that apartment?

2, No, I didn't.

Q. Other than conversations or what you heard
Mr. Okeefe 2ay and what you saw when you went in, was
there anything else that you heard him say or do that

evening?

MERCER & RASSOCIATES
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MR. PIKE: Thank you very much.
MR. SMITH: MNothing further.
THE COURT: Thank you for your time.

You're excused.

MR. SMITH: State next calls Cheryl

Morris.

{Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn.!

THE CLERK: State your name, for the
record, and spell it,
THE WITNESS: Cheryl Morris, C-h-e-r-y-1,

last name M-g-r-r-i-s.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SMITH:
Q. Miss Morris, do you know a persan by the name
of Bryan Okeefe?
A. Yes, I do.
MR. PIKE: Stipulate te the identity af
Bryan Okeefe,

ME. SMITH: Thank you.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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C.

Mr. Okeefea?

? [ o T o ? o P ?

Q.

Ckeefe, did you ever come or become aware of a pELSon

named

A.
Q
R
Q.
A
Q
2008,

A.

Sara Jane Lane.

98

A

Were you ever in a dating relationship with

Yes, T was.

When did that bagin?
January 7.

Of this year?

Of this year, vyes.
When did it endz
September &,

Of this year?

Yes.

While you were in a relationship with Mr.

Vietoria Whitmarsh?

Yes.

How did that occur?

He used to talk about her all the time.

He being Bryan Okeefe?

Bryan used to talk about her all the time.

When the relationship started in January of
where were you living?

I was living at a friend's house just off of

Where was Mr. {keafe living?

Mr. Okeefe was living in a trailer just off

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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of Hinson Street.

Q. AL some point subsequent to that did you guys
share a residence together?

A. Off and on I would stay the night, yes.

Q2. How soon after the relationship began did yod
gﬁys reside together?

A, Prebably, I wasn't really residing there
because I never kept anything there, I just pretty
much stayed the night and I'd go off and do my owin
thing during the day.

Q. At any paint did you and him kind of move
inte your own place?

A, We did. That was, I belleve, in August.

o

August of 20087

A. I believe s0. August 2008, yes.

And what was the location of this place?
5001 El Parque Avenue.

3001 E1 Pargue?

Yes.

Apartment 357

EHOOOO oo e o

Apartment 35, yes.

Q. When youn and Mr. QOkeefe moved into that
apartment, was there anyone else living there at the
cima?

A, Na.

{702) 388-2373
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Q.

At some point subsequent to you moving in

there, did Mr. Okeefe express a interest in having

someone else move in with you guys?

A, Ho, actually I got a phone call.

Q. From who?

A, From Mr. Qkeefe.

Q. And what was the substance of that phone
call? Specifically in regards to your living
drrangements?

A. He just called, said he wanted to come home

and he was going to bring Victoria.

Q.

> o » o ¥ o p

Victoria Whitmarsh?

Yes.

Were you amenable to that relationship?
NG.

Because of that, what did you do?

I moved cub that night.

And approximately when was this?

I think it was a Saturday or Sunday of that

weekend, the weekend of the 6th of September.

2.

Now, after September 6, 2008, did you sver

reside with Mr. COkeefe again?

A

Q.

No.

Do you know whether or not Miss Whitmarsh

moved in to the 53001 E) Parque, Number 352

MERCER & ASSOCIATES

(T02) 388-29873

000093




10
11
12

13

T:H

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

e . 67

A. Yes.

Q. How did you become aware of that?

A, I still had the key to the apartment and I
had kept contact with the owner and told him I was nat
golng to return the kay until 2 brand new lease was
made up and my name taken off of the lease.

Q. Do you know how long Mr. Okeefe knew Mrs,
Whitmarsh?

A Since 2001,

0. How did you become aware of that?

A, Mr. Okeefe told me.

L Do you recall at any point coming into
contact with pelice detectives doing an investigation
in to the death of Miss Whitmarsh?

A. Only contact I eactually had is when I was
¢alled in to make a statement.

Q. And did you glve a statement to a Detective
Bunn and/or Detective Wildermann?

A. Yes.

Q. That statement take place at the homicide
section of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Pelice

Cepartment?

A, Yes, on Qakey.
Q. Would that have been November 20, 2008 2
A, Yes,
MERCEE, & ASSOCIATES
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Q. Now, do you recall the police officers asking
you guestions about statements the defendant made in
regards to how he could kill somebody?

A Yes.

Q. Did the defendant ever make any statements
like that to you?

A Yes,

MR. PIKE: Objection, Your Honor, hearsay.

MRE. SMITH: 1 would submit it's not
hearsay 1f it's the defendant's own statement. I'm
proffering it to establish motive.

THE COURT: Overruled.
ME. SMITH:

2. What did Mr. Qkeefe say about his ability to
kill somebody?

B, He actually said that he could do that
because that was part of what he had to do in Grenada
in special ops.

o. Let me ask you specifically, did he ever make
any statements about his ability to kill somebody witq
a2 knifa?

A, Just the fact that that's how he would have
to survive.

Q. Did he ever demonstrate teo you how he could

kill somebody with & knife?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES

(702) 388-2973 0000as I




10

i1

12

13

14

15

-16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

£4

25

"' ||' 69

A. Yes.

G- Explain that, please?

A, He would stand in front of me and he would
show me, he would hold me onte cne shoulder and say hJ
could take the kpife and shove it right into my mid
section and just sort of pull up. And that's how you
would kill someone.

. Into your rib cage area?

A. Yes.

Q. Did Mr. Okeefe ever make any statements to
you regarding what he would do to you 1f he found out
that youn were cheating on him?

Al On occasions he would say he would kill me if
he found cut I was cheating.

0o. Finally, do you ever recall having =a
conversation with Mr. Okeefe where he expressed
displeasure with Victoria Whitmarsh because of
something she may have done to him?

A, Yes,

Q. Can you explain that?

MR. PIKE: Request ongoing cbjection.

THE CGURT: Objection noted and overruled.
YoUu can answer that.

THE WITNESS: He would stay up nights and

we would talk, reminisce. When it got tao the point he

MERCER & BSSOCIATES
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couldn’t take too much he wauld actually just say he

would -- he would actually -- he hated Victoria.
e. Did he say why he hated Victoria?
A In his own words he said because Victoria pu b

him in jail, took three years of his life, that he
wanted to kill the bitch.

Q. Just so the record’'s clear —- incidently, canl
You give me a time frame of when these conversations
would have taken place?

A. They took place throughout the time I was
with him.

Q. Did he make these statements on wmore than cn%
occasion?

A. Tas.

g. And for the regord, it was he was upsat with

her for sending him to prison?

AL Yes,
Q. And he wanted to kill her because of that?
A, Yasg.

MR. SMITH: Pass the witness,

CRO35 EXAMINATION

ME. PIKE:

Q. Miss Merris, good morning.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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In relaticonship to the time frame that you
and Mr. Okesfe were invclved with each other, vou had
actually lived together -- you spent same evenings,

you said, spent some nights together. Aand based upon

dnswering the guesticons from the State, I take it that

the apartment that you were in had a joint lease or
was with Mr. Okeefe or was it in your name?

A. It was supposed to bea in our name, both of
oUr names.

Q. In relatienship to that the two of you alsg
bought a vehicle together?

A, Correct.

2. In fact, Mr. Okeefe had used your credit to
buy a car, so you were still obligated undar the note
on that car at the time this happened?

A Carrect.

Q. You kept a key te the apartment complex or
the apartment that you and he shared. Did you ever go
pack into that apartment prior to the death of
Victoria?

A, Yes.

Q. What did you go back there for?

B, To go pick up the rest aof my things, what was
left there. I couldn't pick up the two large boxes

that were left there, so he actually took them and

"MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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dropped them off at a friend's house.

g. Whether you say he?

A, I'm serxy, Bryan.

Q. During the course of that time, did you ever
have an opportunity to meet Victoria Whitmarsh?

&, Victoria reguested that ! meet with her. I
thought about it and I declined.

Q. When she requested that she meet with you,
did you talk with her on the phone?

b, Yes, sevearal times.

O, What was the general content of that
conversation?

A, The general content of that conversation was
why she was still seeing Bryan, why I was still seeing
Bryan. Also, the fact that if I made him upset, 1f I
got him mad, that he would and could hurt me. Because
she said he had done that to her.

Q. During the time tkat you were with Mr.
Okeefe, he didn't hutt you physically, did he?

ME. SBEMITH: QObjection, relevance,

THE COURT: The relevance?

MR. PIKE: In response to the cbservations
of whether he was intoxicated. Let me rephrase the
guestion.

Q. During the time that you resided with Mr.

MERCER & QCIA ] ]
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INDEX
(¥Keefe, Brian

Document Page No. |
{Ex Parte) Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 12/06/13 4698-4700 "
“Amended” Exhibits to “Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by
a True Pretrial Detainee filed on 10/03/14 3008-5036
“Evidentiary Hearing Request” {Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus Pursuant 1o NRS 34.360 Exclusive | Based on Subject-Matter of
Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by Notice of Appeal then
“COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy Violation with No Remand Jssued
Since) filed on 10/03/14 4995-5007
“Reply” to State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro
Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Prsuant to NRS 34.360 filed on

10127114 5052-5061
“True Pretrial Detainee’s™ Reply to State's QOpposition(s) Admitting the
State has a Jurisdictional Defect by the Aung of a Notice of Appeal
Which Diveste Jurisdiction of the Matter Appealed: i.e., O'Keefe's
Pretrial Habeas Matter Appealed to the 9™ Circuit on the Subject Matter
of the Amended Information Already Named a Double Jeopardy
Violation filed on 10/01/14 49894994
Affidavit of Matthew D. Carling, Esq. filed on (6/29/15 5447-5453
Affidavit of the Honorable Michael P. Villani filed on 09/24/14 4981-4983
Amended [nformation filed on 02/10/09 0175-0177
Amended Notice of Appeal filed on 10/29/15 5565-5568
Appendix of Exhibits for: Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of
the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause,
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentionat
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Banery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on 03/16/12 3225-3406
Case Appeal Statement filed on 03/14/14 4850-4851
Case Appeal Statement filed on 04/11/14 4862-4863
Case Appeal Statement filed on 05/21/09 0334-0336
Casze Appeal Statement filed on D8/04/15 5476-5477
Case Appeal Statement filed on 08/12/15 5484-5485
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/02/14 4925-4926
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/04/12 3536-3537
Case Appeal Staternent filed on 09/24/12 4625-4628
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/20/15 3547-5548
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/21/13 5554-5556
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/04/15 3572-5573
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/24/14 5070-5071
Certificate of Mailing filed on 05/03/11 3048
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Certificate of Service filed on 06/29/15 | 5454
Clerks Certificate Judgment Reversed and Remanded filed on 05/06/10 1623-1027
Criminal Bindover filed on 12/26/08 0004-0020
Criminal Order to Statistically Close Case filed on 07/31/13 4662
Defendant O’Keefe’s Opposition to Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence

of Other Bad Acts Pursuant 1o NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic

Violence Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/18/11 2877-2907
Defendant’s Brief on Admissibility of Evidence of Alleged Victim's

History of Suicide Attempts. Anger Outbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation (With Knives andn Scissors), and Erratic

Behavior filed on 03/20/09 0293-0301
Defendant’s Motion to Require Court to Advise the Prosepective Jurors as

to the Mandatory Sentences Required if the Defendant is Convicted of

Second Degree Murder filed on 03/04/09 0196-0218
Defendani’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 03/24/09 0317-0322
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0302-0316
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed en 08/23/10 1335-1393
Defendant’s Submission to Clark County District Attomey's Death

Review Committeg filed on 12/31/08 0021-0027
Defendant’s Supplemental Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 | 0290-0292
Defendant’s Supplements] Notice of Withesses filed on 08716710 1294-1296
District Court Amended Jury List filed on 03/19/09 (245
District Court Jury List filed on 03/16/09 0239

Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion and Motion to Chief Judge to Reassign

Case io Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit 3:14-CV-00385-RCJ-

WGC Against Judge Michael Villani for proceeding in Clear “Want of

Jurisdiction™ Thereby Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 08/28/14 4903-4912
Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion filed on 08/28/14 4913

Ex Parte Application for Order Requiring Malerial Witness to Post Bail

filed on 03/10/09 0232-0236
Ex Parte Motion for an Order Shortening Time filed on O8/16/10 1292-1293
Ex Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to NRS 34.750

filed on 09/15/14 4950-4952
Ex Parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 06/30/10 1037-1043
Ex Parte Motion for Production of Documents (Specific) Papers,

Pleadings and Tangible Property of Defendant filed on 01/13/14 4714-4720
Ex Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Legal Cost of Faretta Canvassea

Defendant to Above Instant Case filed on 12/13/13 4701-4707
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3041-3042
Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 06/24/15 5438-3441
Exhibits to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by a True Pretrial Detainee

filed on 0%/15/14 4954-4980
Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Iacidental Costs Subsequent the

Court Declaring Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Paupenis filed

on01/21/14 4722-4747
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| Ex-Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 01/28/14 4764-4767
Filing in Support of Motion to Seal Records as Ordered by Judge filed on
04/19/12 3438-3441
Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed on [0/02/15 5528-3536
Information filed on 12/19/08 G001-0003
Instructions to the Jury (Instruction No. 1) filed on 09/062/10 1399-1426
Instructions to the Jury filed on 03/20/09 0246-0288
Judgment of Conviction (Jury Trial} filed on 09/05/12 4623-4624
Judgment of Conviction filed on 05/08/09 0327-0328
Judicial Notice Pursuant NRS 47.140(1)-NRS 47.1 50(2) Supporting Pro-
Se Petition Pursuant NRS 34.360 filed on 03/12/15 3082-5088
Jury List filed on 06/12/12 3456
Jury List filed on 08/25/10 1396
Letters in Aid of Sentencing filed on 05/04/09 0324-0326
| Motion by Defendant O Keefe filed on 08/19/10 1329-1334
Motion for Complete Rough Draft Transcript filed on 04/03/12 3430
Motion for Judicial Notice the State’s Faiiure to File and Serve Response
m Opposition filed on (2/24/14 48004809
Motion for Judicial Ruling filed on 05/24/10 i1628-1030
Motion for Leave to File Supplemental Petition Addressing All Claims in
the First Instance Required by Statute for Judicial Ecenomy with
Affidavit filed on 06/15/15 3420-5422
Motion for Relief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for 1.S.
Court of Appeals has not lssued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittitur
filed on 07/23/14 4871-4889
Motion to Continue Trial tiled on 06/01/12 3450-3455
Motion to Dismiss Counsel filed on 10/03/11 3164-3168
Motion to Modify and/or Correct lllegal Sentence filed on 01/27/14 4749-475%
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 10/26/11 3169-3182
Moation to Place on Calendar filed on 11/28/11 3184-3192
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel filed on 04/29/1 3044-3047
Motion to Withdraw Counsel] filed on 11/28/11 3193-3198
Motion te Withdraw Counsel for Conflict and Failure to Present Claims
when [LA.C. Claims Must be Raised Per Statute in the First Petition
Pursuant Chapter 34 filed on 06/08/15 5148-5153
Motion to Withdraw filed on 09/14/10 1434-1437
Notice of Appeal filed on 03/13/14 4843-4849
Notice of Appeal filed on 04/11/14 48584861
Notice of Appeal filed on 05/21/09 0332-0333
Notice of Appeal filed on 07/31/15 5467-5472
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/11/15 3478-5483
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/29/14 45234924
Notice of Appeal filed on 19/21/15 5552-5553
Notice of Appeal filed on 11/03/15 5569-5571
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Notice of Appeal filed on 11/21/14

3067-506%

Notice of Change of Address filed on 06/06/14

4864-4865

Netice of Defendant’s Expent Witness filed on (2/20/09

(180-0195

Notice of Defendant’s Witnesses filed on 03/06/09

0224-0227

Notice of Eutry of Findings of Fact, Conclusicn of Law and Order filed
on 10/06/15

3537-5546

Notice of Expert Wimesses filed on 03/05/09

0222-0223

Natice of Motion and Motion by Defendant " Keefe for a Reasonable
Bail filed on 09/24/10

1441-1451

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O"Keefe for Discovery filed
on 08/02/10

i211-1219

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant (" Keefe for Evidentiary
Hearing on Whether the State and CCDC have Complied with Their
Obligations with Respect to the Recording of a Jail Visit Between
O’Keefe and State Witness Cheryl Morris filed on 08/402/10

1220-1239

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’Keefe to Admil Evidence
Pertaining to the Alleged Victim’s Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Atternpts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Errratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1064-1081

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant 0" Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaimng to the Alleped Victim’s Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Attempts. Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutiiation and Erratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1099-1116

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence
Showing LYMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Aleohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/02/10

119%-1210

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and,
Alternatively, to Preclude State's New Expert Witness, Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’Keefe to Preclude Expert
Testimony filed on 08/16/10

1284-12091

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Intreducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1047-1063

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introdueing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/03/11

1682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant Q" Keefe to Suppress his
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[Statements o Police, or. Altemnatively. 10 Preclude the State from

Introducing Portions of his Interrogation filed on 08/02/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court to File Motion for

Rehearing - Pursuant to EDCR. Rule 2.24 filed an 08/29/14 4614-4921
Naotiee of Metion and Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad

Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence

Pursuant to 48.081 filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on

02/02/09 0150-6165
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph

Examination Results filed on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of the

Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause,

Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res

ludicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States

Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional

Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended

Information filed on 03/16/12 3201-3224
Notice of Motion and Motion to Seal Records filed on 03/22/12 3416-3429
Notice of Motion and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of

Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 4695-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

(K/23/15 5517-5519
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attomey of Record filed on

09/29/13 5525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Notice of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748
Netice of Motion filed on 01/27/14 4760
Notice of Motion filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Motion filed on 03/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 06/08/15 53154-5160
Naotice of Motion filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on D8/29/14 49322
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/03/09 0166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/17/09 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judgment Affirmed filed on

G2/06/15 5072-5081
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Affirmed filed on

07/26/13 4653-4661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

(6/18/14 4866-4870
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

03/12/15 5089-5093

NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgrnent Dismissed filed on
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09/28/15 5520-5524
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on
10/29/14 5062-5066
O’Keefe's Reply to State’s Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence
Showing LVMPD Hemicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath
Alcchol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts filed
on 02/06/(9 0165-0172
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 0219-0220
Cnrder Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork
Limit filed on 08/13/15 5486-3488
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Mation for Reimburserent of
Incidental Costs Declaring Defendant Ingigent and Granting Forma
pauperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgment Based on
Lack of Jurisdiction for U.8. Court of Appeals had not Issues any
Remand, Mandare or Remittatture filed on 09/04/14 4927-4929
| Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 04/11/12 3434-3435
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Seal Recoreds and Defendant's
Motion to Admit Evidence of Plygraph Examination filed on 05/24/12 3448-3449
Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the
Alternative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to
Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of Mandamus: Order Denying
| Defendant's Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on (1/28/14 4761-4763
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The
State’s Failure to File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 | 4855-4857
QOrder Denying Defendant™s Pro Per Motion for Leave to File
Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on
07/15/15 5464-5466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Correct
Illegal Sentence filed on03/25/14 48524854
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motjon to Withdraw Counsel for
Conilict and Failure to Present Claims When [.A.C. Claims Must be
Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
(7/15/15 5461-5463
Order Denying Matthew D. Carling’s Motion 1o Withdraw as Attorney of
Record for Defendant filed on 11/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Motion to Disqualify filed on 10/06/14 5037-5040
Order filed on 01/30/09 0149
QOrder filed on 11/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Preduction of Inmate Brian O'Keef filed on 05/26/10 1032-1033
Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/11 3183
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Order for Transeripts filed on 04/30/12 | 3442
Order Granting and Denying in Part Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for

Production of Documents {Specific) Papers, Pleadings. and Tangible

Property of Defendant filed on 02/28/14 4818-4820
Crder Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-1045
Order Granting Request for Transeripts filed on 01/20/1] 2966-2967
Order Granting Request for Transeripts filed on 04/27/11 3043
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1431
Order Granting Request for Transcripis filed on 09/16/10 1438-1439
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying. in Part, Motion by Defendant

O’Keefe for Discovery filed on 08/23/10 1394-1395
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant

0’Keefe to Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Other Act or

Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or

Would Violate his Constitutional Rights filed on 09/09/10 1427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other 3199-3200
Bad Acts filed on 03/13/12

Order Releasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3039-3040
Order Requiring Material Witness to Post Bail or be Committed to

Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-023]
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Coram

Nobis filed on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or in the Alternative Motion o

Preclude Prosecution from Seeking First Degree Murder Conviction

Based Upecn the Failure to Collect Evidence filed on 01/26/09 0125-0133
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive |

Based On Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth

Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on & Double Jeopardy

Viclation with No Remand Issued Since filed on 09/15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner’s Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Argument Scheduled by the

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for November 17, 2014, Courtroom #1

filed on 10/01/14 49843988
Pro Se "Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant's Pro Se Motion to

Modify and/or Carrect lllegal Sentence filed on 03/04/14 48214832
ProSe “Reply™ to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion

for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring

Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/24/14 47924799
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/0% 0134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/09 0146
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/(6/09 01568
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Receipt of Copy filed on 03/04/09 0221
Receipt of Copy filed an 03/24/09 0323
Receipt of Copy filed on 05/24/10 1031
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/13/11 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/30/10 1036
Receipt of Copy filed on 0R/02/10 1240
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1243
Receipt of copy filed on OR/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/21/10 1440
Receipt of File filed on 07/01/10 1046
Reply in Support of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
{Post-Conviction) filed on 08/25/15 5500-5510
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction

Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on 06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Supplemental Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 3489-5499
Reqgeust for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 10/21/15 5549-5551
Reqguest for Rough Draft Transcripts filed en 07/17/12 3458-3460
Request for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed on 09/09/09 (0772-0723
Request for Rough Draft Transcript filed on 05/21/09 0329-0331
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629-4631
Retumn to Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 01350145
Second Amended Information filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s {Ex-Parte) “Mation for Reimbursement

of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declating Defendant Indigent

and Granting Forma Pauperis” filed on 02/07/14 4768-4791
State's Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for a Reasonable Bail filed on

09/27/10 1452-1461
State’s Opposition 1o Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice — The

State’s Failure to File and Serve the Response in Gpposition filed on

G3/10/14 4834-4839
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21/12 3407-3411
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from

Iniroducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State’s Opposition 1o Defendant’s Motion 1o Seal Records filed on

04/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Oppesition to Defendant’s Motion 1o Suppress his Statements to

Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from Introducing Portions

of his lnterrogation fited on 08/17/10 1306-1319

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When [LA.C. Claims Must be

-0,
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Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/15

3442-5446

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Moticn for Leave of Court io
File Motion. . .Rule 2.4 filed on 09/12/14

49354939

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Chief Judge to
Reassign Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear *Want of Jurisdiction” Thereby
Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 09/12/14

4930-4934

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or
Correct lilepal Sentence filed on 02/24/14

4811-4817

State’s Opposition to Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respect to
the Recording of a Jail Visit Between O'Keefe and State Witness Cheryl
Motris filed on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State’s Opposition to Motion 1o Admit Evidence Pertaining to the Alleged
Victim's Mental Health Condition and Histery, Including Prior Suicide
Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

State’s Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence Showing LYMPD
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohel Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/10/10

1248-1252

State’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, 1o Preclude
Expert and Argument Regarding Domestic Violence filed on G1/18/11

2008-2965

State’s Opposition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
08/18/10

1320-1325

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss Defendant’s Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not lssued any Remand, Mandare or Remittatture of filed on 08/07/14

4891-49072

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based on
Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on a Double jEopardy Violatio
with No Remand Issued Since (Post Conviction). Amended Peition and
Accompany Exhibits, Opposition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing, and
Opposition to Pro Per Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 10/10/14

3041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motien to Preclude the State frem
Introducimi at Trial Other Bad Acts er Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfaitly Prejudicial or Would Violate his Contitutionsal
Rights filed on 08/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant’s Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in
the Alternative Writ of Coram and Response to Motion 1o Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31/13

47084713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/02/15

3145-5147

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Supplemental Petition for Wit

- 14 -
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary Hearing Reguest, "Motion for Leave ta
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit.” “Reply to
State’s Response to Defendant's Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus,” and “Supplement with Notice Pursusnt NRS 47.150(2);
NRS 47.140(1), that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-
10093) the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 USC 2241(c)3)
from the Mooting of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subseguent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending” filed

on 07/09/15 5455-5458

State’s Response to Defendant’s Reply in Suppart of Supplemental Post-

Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/05/15 53511-5516

State’s Response to Defendant’s Supplement to Supplemental Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction} filed on 07/31/15 5473-5475

State’s Supplemental Opposition to Motion to Seal Records filed on

04/17/12 3436-3437

Stipulation and Order filed on 02/10/9 0173-0174

Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/29/10 1034-1035

Supplement t¢ Supplemental Petition for Wit of Habeas Corpus {Post-

Conviction) filed on 07/13/15 53459-5460

Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150 (2); NRS 47.140 (1), That

the United State’s Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-10093) The Pretrial

Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 U.5.C.§ 2241 €(3) From the Mooting

of Petitiener’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in

Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 5433-5437

Supplemnental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus Exhibits One (1) Through Twenty Five (25} filed on 06/12/15 5161-5363

Suppiernental Notice of Defendant's Expert Witnesses filed on 07/29/10 | 1117-1151

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witness filed on 05/17/12 3443-3447

Supplemental Notice of Expert Winesses filed on 01/03/11 2756-2760

Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/10 1266-1267

Supplemental Notice of Expent Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1297-1305

supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875

Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/10/09 0228-0229

Supplemental Notice of Wiinesses filed on 03/11/0% (0237-6238

Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) filed

on 04/08/15 5094-5144

Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/15/15 5364-5419

Verdict filed on 3/20/09 0289

Verdict filed on 06/15/12 3457

Verdict Submitted to the Jury but Returned Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-13498
| Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/30/09 0147-0148

-11-
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TRANSCRIPTS

{ Document Page No.
Transcript — All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2996-3038 |
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 67/10/09 D351-0355
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript — All Pending Motions on 07/10/09 (348-0350
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2968-2973
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 08/30/12 3520-3535
Transcript — Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine to Present Evidence of
Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transcript — Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post
Conviction) filed on 10/29/15 3560-3564
Transeript — Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Upon
Violation(s) filed on 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript - Defendnat’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 07/19/09 0342-(345
Transcript — Enury of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/10/09 0356-0358
Transcript — Jury Trail — Day 1 filed on 10/14/09 0724-1022
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 (582-0635]
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day | filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day | filed on 09/04/12 4278-4622
Transcript = Jury Trial ~ Day | filed on 11/23/10 1579-1602
Transcopt - Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 (0515-G381
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 11/23/10 1603-1615
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transcript — Jury Trial ~ Day 3 filed an 07/10/09 0462-0514
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 on 09/04/12 3779-4000
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 07/10/09 0408-0461
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 1739-2032
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 on 09/04/12 3600-3778
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 5 filed on 07/10/09 03590407
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 09/04/12 3538-359¢9
Transcript - Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 6 filed on 11/23/10 2282-2507
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transctipt — Jury Trial — Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 1469-1470
Transcript - Jury Trial - Day 9 filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transcript — Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of
Record tor Defendant filed on 10/29/15 5557-55359
Transcript — Motions Hearing — August 17, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1479-14%9
Transeript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed an 11/23/10 1500-1536
Transcript — Motions Hearing — Augnst 20, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1537-1578

-12-
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Transcript — Notice of Motion and Mation by Defendant O Keefe to
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/11 2974-2589
Transeript — Partial Transcript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 03/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript - Petrocelli Hearing filed on 05/19/11 3049-3162
Transcript — Proceedings filed on 01/02/09 0028-0124
Transcript — Sentencing August 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Transeript — Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transcript — Sentencing filed on 07/10/09 0337-0341
Transcript — Status Check: Availability of Dr. Benjamin for Trial fled on

02/04/11 29%(0-2995
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DAVTD ROGER

Clark Count}%ols trict Attomey SERREOFTHE GolRT
Nevada Bar #(002781
PHILLIP N. SMITH, IR.
Deput District Attomey
ada; Bar #0010233
ZDI] Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) §71-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

1A, 01/06/09 DISTRICT COURT
500 AM CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA. )
Plaintiff, % Case No: (250630
% Dept No: v
~V5-
BRIAN KERRY O'KEFFE, %
#1447732 INFORMATION
Defendant.

STATE OF NEVADA i

COUNTY OF CLARK
DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark. State of

Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That BRIAN KERRY O'KEFFE, the Defendant(s) above named, having committed
the crime of MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)
(Felony - NRS 200.010, 200,036, 193.165), on or about the 5th day of November, 2008,
within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes
in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
ft}
it
1
1l

CAPROGEAM FIESNEEVLA COM\DOCT MENT CONYER TER TEVF- 37784 6.
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VICTORIA WHITMARSH, a human being, by stabbing the said VICTORIA
WHITMARSH, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a knife.

kw0 Resger

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this

Information are as follows:
NAME
ARMBRUSTER, TODD
BALLEJOS, JEREMIAH
BENJAMIN, JACQUELINE DR
BLASKOQ, KEITH
BUNN, CHRISTOPHER
COLLINS, CHELSEA
CONN. TODD
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS
FORD, DANIEL
FONBUENA, RICHARD
HATHCOX, AMMY
HUTCHERSON, CHRISTOPHER
[VIE, TRAVIS
KYGER, TERESA
KOLACZ, ROBIN

ADDRESS

5001 OBANNON DR #34 LVNY
LVMPD #8406

ME 0081

LVMEPD #2995

LVYMPD #4407

LVMPD #9235

LVYMPD #8101

CDC

LVMPD COMMUNICATIONS
LVMPD RECORDS

LVMEFPD #4244

LVMPD #6334

3001 EL PARQUE AVE #C-36 LVNV
LVMPD #1299

LVMPD #6403

LYMPD #4191

5001 EL PARQUE AVE #38 LYNV

C:RPRDEI{A\-I FILES\NEEVIACOMDOCU MENT CONYERTER TEM M 2371045

anane2.
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LOWREY-KNEPP, ELAINE
MALDONADO, JOCELYN
MORRIS, CHERYL
MURPHY, KATE
NEWBERRY, DANIEL
PAZOS. EDUARDG
RAETZ, DEAN
SANTAROSSA, BRIAN
SHOEMAKER, RUSSELL
TAYLOR, SEAN

FINIO, NORMA
TOLIVER, CHARLES
TOLIVER. JOYCE

WHITMARSH, ALEXANDRA

WHITMARSH, DAVID
WILDEMANN, MARTIN

DARORE23348X/1s
LVMPD EVH0S110653918

(TKD)

DISTRICT ATTORNEY INVESTAGATOR
LVMPD #6920

UNKNOWN

LVMPD #9756

LVMPD #4956

LVMPD #6817

LVMPD #4234

LYMPD #6930

LVMPD #2096

LVMED #8718

2992 ORCHARD MESA HENDERSONNY
5001 EL PARQUE #29 LVNV

5001 EL PARQUE #C-29 LYNV

7648 CELESTIAL GLOW LVNV

7648 CELESTIAL GLOW LVNV

LVMPD #3516

F:\PR(EIRAM FILESWEEVIA COMDOCTMENT CONVERTER TR WA TT046
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Dept. 9 . .

JUSTICE COURT;LASVEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

i (2026 A %39
N7 el
STATE OF NEVADA, 2y iﬂw caseNo: (¥ A5 06 %0
Plaintiff, Wl e i
ELooY SR Curt Case No.: 08F23348%
ve. )
)
O-KEEFE, BRIAN KERRY, )
Defendant(s) i
)
}
CERTIFICATE
Lhereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the proceedings as the
same appear in the above case.
Dated this December 18, 2008
Justice of the Peace, Las Vegas Township

8007 94 330
G3AI303d
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Dept, 9 . .

JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, ) Distriet Court Case No.:

Plaintiff, )

3 Justice Court Caze No.: O8F23348X
vs. }
)
O-KEEFE, BRIAN KERRY, )
Defendant(s) ;
}
)

COMMITMENT and ORDER T APPEAR
An Order having been made this day by me that O-KEEFE, BRIAN KERRY be held

to answer before the Eighth Judicial District Court, Department 5 upon the charpe(s) of
MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER), committed in said
Township and County, on NOVEMBER 5, 2008.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Sheriff of the County of Clark is hereby
commanded to receive the above named defendant(s) into custody, and detain said defendant(s)
until he/she can be legally discharped, and be committed 1o the custody of the Sheriff of said
County, unti] bail is given in the sum of SNO BAIL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that said defendant(s) is/are commanded to appear in the
Etghth Judicial Distriet Court, Regional Justice Center, Lower Level Amaignment Courtroom
“A”, Las Vegas, Nevada at 9:00 on the 6 THday of IANUARY, 2008 for arraignment and further
proceedings on the within charge(s).

Dated this December [ 8, 2008

e R

Justice of the Peace, Las Vegas Township

<l- ﬂﬁﬂ
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Justice Court, Las Wegas Toumship

0BF23348X
PAGE TWO
STATE V5. OXEEFE, BRIAN KERRY —
DATE, JUDGE
OFFICERS OF
CONIRT FRESENT APPEARANCES — HEARING CONTINUED TO:
DECEMBER 17, 2008 TIME SET FOR PRELIMINARY HEARING 146409 500 DT
1. BONAVENTURE DEFENDANT PRESENT 1N COURT **IN CLSTOD Y+ ARBAIGHMENT
P. SMITH, DA STATE FILES AN AMENDED CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 1IN OPEN COLIRT
P. PALM, SPD MLRDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)
R. PIKE. 5PD ADVISED OF CHARGES
T. MERCER, CR STATE WITNESSES —JACQUELINE BENJAMIN
M. KRAUS, CLK JEREMLAH BALLEM)S - DEFENSE STIFULATES TDID
SEAN TAYLOR - DEFEMSE STIFULATES TOID
D AR MBS PER—DErENSE S TP LA TEE-TO-1E
CHERYL MORRIS — DEFENSE STIPULATES TG 1D
STATE RESTS
DEFENDANT ADVISED OF HIS STATUTORY RIGHT TO MAKE A SWORN OR
LINSWORN STATEMENT, TO WAIVE MAKING A STATEMENT, AND/OR OF
HIS RIGHT TO CALL WITNESSES
DEFENDANT WAIVES HIS RIGHT TO MAKE A STATEMENT
CEFENSE CALLS WITNESSES
DEFENDANT WITNESS - MARTIN WILDMAN
DEFEMSE REATS
SUBMITTED WITHOUT ARGUMENT
DEFENDANT BOUND OVER TG HMSTRICT COURT #5 AS CHARGED
DEFENDANT TO APPEAR [M THE LOWER LEVEL ARRAIGNMENT
COLRTROOM A
DATE SET
DEFEMDANT REMANDED TO THE CUSTODY OF THE SHERIEF
EVIDENCE - #1 - #3 - PHOTOS - OFFERED - ADMITTED
HA - #T — PHOTOS - OFFERED — ADMITTED
s W a
00 0h6 —
BC-1 (Crioionl)
Rrw. 1055




Justice Court, Las Wegas Township

OKEEFE, BRIAN KERRY

1. BONAVENTURE

DEFENDANT PRESENT IN COURT **IN CUSTOBRY **

STATE VS, CASE NO. CBF23348X
DATE, JUDGE
OFFICERS OF
COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES — HEARING CONTINUED TO:
NOVEMBER7,2008 | CRIMINAL COMPLAINT FILED:
MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
SDF
NOVEMBER 10,2008 | INITIAL ARRAIGNMENT FIA12/08 730 #9
A. SILVER FOR DEFENDANT PRESENT IN COURT IN CUSTODY
). BONAVENTURE DEFENDANT ADVISED OF CBARGES/WAIVES READING OF COMPLAINT
R. BLAZE, DA PASSED BY COURT FOR STATUS CHECK ON POSSIBLE CONFLICT
A. LUEM, PD
APPOINTED DEFENDANT REMANDED TG THE CUSTODY OF THE SHERIFF
T. MERCER. CR
_S FISHER (LK _DIAC
NOVEMBER 12,2088| DEFENDANT PRESENT IN COURT-IN CUSTODY {1726/08 9:00 # 9
1. GUBLER, FO& MOTION BY DEFENSE TGO WITHDRAW AS ATTORNEY OF RECORD BUE TO
1. BONAVENTURE CONFLICT- MOTION GRANTED ocG
R, BLAZE, DA PRELIMINARY HEARING SET
A. LUEM, PD
R. FIKE, Bee €00 DEFENDANT REMANDED TO THE CUSTODY OF THE SHERIFF
(APPOINTED)
T. MERCER, CR
— S PISHER-CER:
NOVEMBER 26,2008 | TIME SET FOR PRELIMINARY HEARING 12417708 9:00 #9

P. SMITH, DA PRELIMINARY HEARING CONTINUED BY STIPULATION OF COUNSEL  GASE :
P. PALM, SPD DATE SET AT COUNSEL'S REQUEST FORVARDED T
T. MERCER, CR 222 5
M. KRALS, CLK DEFENDANT REMANDED TO THE CUSTODY OF THE SHERIFF v &
3
o ORI
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H THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
CASENO: 08F23348X
-
DEPTNO: 9
BRIAN OKEEFE, aka,
Brian Kerry Okeefe #1447732, AMENDED
Drefendant. CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
I The Defendant above named having committed the crime of MURDER WITH USE

OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.036, 193.1635),
" in the manner following, to-wit: That the said Defendant, on or about the 5th day of
November, 2008, at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, did then and there
wilfully, feloniously, without autherity of law, and with premeditation and deliberation, and
with malice aforethought, kill VICTORIA WHITMARSH, a human being, by stabbing the
l' said VICTORIA WHITMARSH, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a knife.

All of which is contrary to the form, force and effect of Statutes in such cases made
and provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada, Said Complainant
|| makes this declaration subject 1o the penalty of perjury.

| RSN

08F23348X/ch
LVMPD EV# 0811053918
(TK9)

000008
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JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

cLAR do
THE STATE OF NEVADA, u?ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬂu
Plaintiff ) e
JA 5 THITCASENO:  08F23348X
-."Fs-
DEPTNO: 9
BRIAN O'KEEFE, ka,
Brian Kerry Okecfe #1447732,
Defendant. CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

The Defendant above named having committed the erime of MURDER WITH USE
OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165), in the manner
following, to-wit: That the said Defendant, on or about the 5th day of November, 2008, at
and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, did then and there wilfully, feloniously,
without authority of law, and with premeditation and deliberation, and with malice
aforethought, kill VICTORIA WHITMARSH, a human being, by stabbing the said

VICTORIA WHITMARSH, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: with an unknown object.

All of which 15 contrary to the form, force and effect of Statutes in such cases made

and provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant

makes this declaration subject to the penalty of perjury.

117772008 -~

08F23348X/ch
LVMPD EV# 0811053918
(TK9)
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NOTICE OF WITNESSES
INRS 174.234]

TO: Defendant or attomney of record;
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses:

NAME AD S8

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
Communication

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses noted in the discovery or other
documents provided.
DATED this 7th day of November, 2008,

000010
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‘ MmMﬂﬁMnnﬂmnmnwmm Officats stiempiad to contact he

£.25. The male, ister identified as Brian O'Rewfe, 1DI447732, efumad to

ppactment
come o the door, mmmummm,mmhﬂthmudu
pedroem, ' Ksefa refused %0 coma out of the bedreom, Officers upprashed the bedrocm and
mammmm.umnmmnmm,m:nm
fhem was biood ak over the bad. Officars stempied o expadiie the removal of O'iKesfe from the
mu-.anmnmnmwhmm.wn,mmmmmmMmh
A pogl of blood, tyreete maved slightly wwsy from tha viclim and receivad ona gycie from the
E.C.0.(Elaatronic Cantrol Device). Crikaafe SR refused ts comply ard received one Rdditienal oycle
from thaE.C.D. ummmmmmmmﬂmmmm
mmmmmmwwmﬂwwmmﬁmmm Madioal
parsoti] found the viekm. Victors Whitmarsh desd on tha fioor in the mestes bedroom of the

mmmmm-wmm“mmmwm

1o harve B atab wound on the fight side under the amm pit area, =

Whitmarsh
hﬂumbhnﬁdhmwuauerhﬂhlndlndmlnjwmhlr index fingar. Whitrnarelh wis
mmmbﬂmhﬂmrMMnﬁlMWMMdm. e Enens wers saturated in
bt snd there was lmdybhnkhuﬂbdmmmmﬂﬁ:{-p 8- Inches) lying
on the bad, The scens was Siocessed and photographed and the anos impounded by Crime

o«mmmmm-wmmra Huteherzon, PR12606: " seear to
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CONTINUATION REPORT
Hftivent Mumber:  OR1103:2510 Page 202
Whimazsh, 'Keate staied only he and Whkmarsh wera in the spartmant but he did not know whers

ol the binod ceme from.

MMHmmmTM,mMMMWM Joyos stated she
mmmmmmmaM~mmm eround 2200 hows. The noles
mmmmmw-m,chﬂm. Charies vsad the broom o strike the
WMthmﬂHumwm, Okeefe and Whitmarsh quist dowr, When the
Mnmm,mmmmmmm. Charies found the front deor of the
mmmwmalutmu'm._mwmcmmmmmmmmh
dead”. Charies entered the apsrment end waked to the master bedraom. Charios onily Saw
Mmhmwmmmmmwmmmmmmmﬂmm
tver the of Whitmarsh. O'Kesle was gitempiing to R Whitrarsh sl the waiel, Whnitmersh wis
viaicad] from wesist down and dld not appaer to be moving. Charies could ses diood afl over the bed
and thers wes » bieck handiad kmife fing on the bed, Chares ran from the room and called the

peiica,

Sy wha fives in apartment 38, next to O'Kesfe and Whitmarsh, heard ioud thumping et
mpproaimataly hours. Hethoox siwind Me wont outslde of his aparinent and sew O'Keste
standing ciuneide of hin apartment, O Kaefe locked st Hatheox Strangely and waliad back into hie
sparbnant Rathoox statud e nea thing he heard wes pesople yalling snd he ogened tha door and
sew Churios Tolver ake “Cookie” and ancthet neighbor, Tocd Amnbrustar, standing in from of
(’Keafe’s door, The men toid Hathaax, *he klled her aind thers's tiood el over the place”.

Todd Armbruster stated Charies Totiver, who he knews as “Ceokia”, carne 10 hia door and toid him
fo call the pofice. Toiver tokd Todd thet he thought the girl in apartmant 35 wae dead. Todd's

Robin Kolecz, cafled the police and Todd went up to apartment 35. Todd entersd the
mﬂmmanunmwmmmbhumum. O'Weedo locked up Snd saw
Tatd ond took a swing &t fim. Todd lefl the spartment and the poiics amived,

Dstactives noted 8 lange smount of biood on O'Koafe's and hands, an incieed wound on the
right Indiao: finger mnd two abmsions oft his forehead, O'Kesle hud seversl fong seratch marka on
hig back st the beh ine. CriKeefe vss photographed and his ciothing was impounded.
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JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

PRETRIAL SERVICES INFORMATION SHEET

CASE # DEPT # REQUESTED BY:
08F23348X JC-9

NAME: ID #

Brinw ('Kecfe 1447732

CHARGES:

MURDER WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

CURRENT BAIL:

SIC

VERIFIED: ADDRESS: NOT INTERVIEWED,,,
WITH WHOMMHOW LONG: /

YERIFIED; EMPLOYMENT STATUS: /
LENGTH:

YERIFIED: RELATIVES- LOCAL: WOT LOCAL:

FELONY/GROSS MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS: 05 OH DESERTION
04 NV BURG; 05 NV BATT DV 3RD

MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS: 6 (06, 04, 04 BATT DV)

FAIL TO APPEAR: 5

COMMENTS: ALSO I/C ON PROBATION YIOLATION,

RECOMMENDATION:

DATE: 121072008 PRETRIAL SERVICES: Anna Vasquez

CONFIDENTIAL
000015




JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHI®

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

PRE SERVICES INFORMATION SHEET

CASE # DEPT & REQUESTED BY:
08F23348X JC-9
NAME: 15 #
Brian O'Kesfe 1447732
CHARGES:
MURDER WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
CURRENT BAIL:
NO BAIE

L . — T . T

VERIFIED: ADDRESS: NOT INTERVIEWED,,,
WITH WHOM/HOW LONG: /

YERIFIED: EMPLOYMENT STATUS: /
LENGTH:

VERIFIED: RELATIVES - LOCAL: NOT LOCAL: ,

FELONY/GROSS MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS: 05 NV BATT DV 3*P; 4 NV BURG;
03 OH DESERTION

MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS: 6

FAIL TO APPEAR: 5§

COMMENTS: ALSO I/C ON PROBATION VIOLATION

RECOMMENDATION:

DATE: I1/21/2008 PRETRIAL SERVICES: Anna Vasgoez

SR IDENTIE
000016
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CONFIDENTIAL
JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

PRETRIAL SERVICES IN

CASE #
OBF23348X

NAME:
Brian O'Keefe

CHARGES:
MURDER WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

CURRENT BAIL: NO BAIL

DEPT # JC9

ID #
1447732

o

TION SHEET

REQUESTED BY:

VERIFIED: ADDRESS: NOT INTERVIEWED,,,
WITH WHOM/HOW LONG: !/

VERIFIED: EMPLOYMENT STATUS: /

LENGTH:

VERIFIED: RELATIVES- LOCAL:

S

NOT LOCAL:

FELONY/GROSS MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS:

04 NY BURG; 05 OH DESERTION
MISDEMEANOR CONVICTIONS: 6

FAIL TO APPEAR: 5

ALSO IC: PROBATION VIOLATION

05 NV BATT DV 3°%;

RECOMMENDATION:

DATE: 11/09%/2008

PRETRIAL SERVICES: Cheryl Allen

000017
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JUSTICE COURT, LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARIGEOUNTY., RéukinalZ 10 it T8
WSTEE COURT

. hebq%ﬁlgrs ¥

THE STATE OF NEVADA, } CA
Plaintiff,

VS.

BRIAN O'KEEFE,

Defendant. DATE:
TIME:

ARTE APPLICATION AND ORDE NEP

COMES NOW, Defendant BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and through his attomeys, DAVID M.
SCHIECK, Special Public Defender, RANDY PIKE, Deputy Special Public Defender, and
PATRICIA A. PALM, Deputy Special Public Defender, and heraby requests this Gourt Order
the Defendant be transported from ClanéCounty Detention Center to the offices of Ron Slay,
1920 5. Maryland Parkway, Las Vegas for a poiygraph test.

Counsel for Defendant avers that all of the Detention Center rules, regutations and
protocol will be followed in regards to the number of transport officers, the presence of the
officers directly outside the secured room used for the polygraph. The secured room will be
inspected and approved by comections officers prior to said examination. The officers shall

approve and follow their protocol of securing the inmate at all times both during transportation

ANON18
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and during the examination itself to ensure the safety of civilians present at the offices of Mr.

| Slay during the time of the appointment.

The date of the test is December 28, 2008 at 1:30 p.m. and is expected 10 last 2 hours.
DATED: December 15, 2008

1 SUBMITTED BY:
DAVID M. SCHIECK
SPECIAL PUBLIC D

PATRICIA A. PA.M
330 5. Third Street, Ste. 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
guz} 455-8265

ftormneys for Defendant

ORDER TQO TRANSFPORT

Clark Caunty Detention Center
Fax: 671-3763

-]
Q

This matter having come on by Ex Parte Application, the matter having been fully
reviewed, and gocd cause appearing therefor,

IT 15 HEREBY ORDERED thatt _t't:e Clark County Detention Center transpost Brian
O'Keefe, No. 1447732 to the offices oi-ﬁon Stay, 1920 5. Maryland Parkway, Las Vegas.
Nevada for the purpose of a polygraph examination on December 29, 2008, at 1:30 p.m. All
of the Detention Center rules, regulations and protocol are to be followed in regards to the
number of transport officers, the presence of the officers directly outside the secured room
used for the pelygraph. The secured room will be inspected and approved by corrections

officers prior to said examination. The officers shall approve and follow their protocol of

0ponts




securing the Inmate at all imes both during transpartation and during the examination itself

—

to ensure the safety of civilians present at the offices of Mr. Slay duning the time of the
appointmeant.

DATED and DONE: Decadsy 11,2004
SUBMITTED BY: : E

Y H.
PATRIGIA A, PALM
330 5. Third Street, Ste. BOG
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
10§ (702) 455-6265
Attomeys for Defendant
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DAVID SCHIECK

Special Public Defender

Nevada Bar No, 0824

RANDALL H. PIKE

Assistant Special Public Defender

Nevada Bar No. 1940

Peputy Special Public Defen
ecial Public Defender

Neva asépar No. 6009

330 5. Third Street,

Las Vegas, Nevada 88155-2316

[?GZ; 455-8265

(702) 4556273 fax

rpikeg@co.clark.nv us

paimpa@co.ciark.nv.us

Attorneys for O'KEEFE

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS,
BRIAN O'KEEFE,
Defendant.

el e " T T gt

Oate of Hearing: 1/Q7/09
Timea of Hearing: 1:30 p.m.

COMES NOW, Defendant BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and through his counsel DAVID M.
SCHIECK, Special Public Defender, RANDALL H. PIKE, Assistant Special Public Defender,
and PATRICIA PALM, Deputy Special Public Defender, and submits the following to the Death
Review Committea and moves this Henorable Body to not recommend that a Notice of Intert

to Seek Death Penalty be filed int this case.

This submissigqrispadaEd based upon the attached Memorandum, the papers and
pleadings onfile in thig case ‘apthany argument deemed appropriate and necessary if allowed

CLEHA w1 wwufl

CASE NO. C250630
REPT. NO. Il

SILED |\

HRoEC3l P 339
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before the Committee.
] 3¢
DATED this-2/_‘day of December, 2008.
Respectiully submitted

S Bt ot 2B

Randall B. Pike,

Assistant Special Public Defdnder
Nevada Bar No. 1840

330 5, Third Street, Second Floor
Las Vegas, NV B9155

MEM UM

In presenting the following facts and arguments, Defendant Brian O'Keefe (“Brian™} is
reiying upan the facts as contained within the police reports, generally, as welf as those
contamed within the witnesses’ statements. Additionally, Brian will rely upon some of the
testimony offered at the time of the preliminary hearing in this matier. Any reliance upon the
evidence set forth herein does not constitute a concession that any such evidence is
accurate, rediable, or admissible in any judicial proceedings. Nordoes such reliance constitute
a waiver of attorney/client privilege.

FACTS

Brian O'Keefe and Victoria Whitmarsh {"Vietoria"}, the alleged victim in this matter,
enjoyed a fairly long, but turnultuous relationship together. They dated and cohabitated on
and off since 2001, after meeting in a treatment facility, Duning the relationship, in 2004_ Brian
was ultimately convicted of burglary {(entry into the couple’s joint dwelting with intent te commit
a cnme against Vicloria). He was given a sentence of probation for that crime, but his
probation was later revoked when convicted of a third offense domestic battery against
Victoria. He wentto prison in March 2005. Brian did well in prison and incurred no discipline.
When he was released from prison in March 2007, he initiated a relationship with a woman
named Chery! Morris. He separated with Ms, Mormis several months before the incident so
that Victoria could move into his apartment with him. Ms. Morris testified at the time of the
preliminary hearing that Victoria voiuntarily reentered into a relationship with Brian and began

: 000022
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cohabitating with him in his apartment. Victoria had called Ms. Morris several times and
discussed her decision to return ta Brian. Victoria's daughter and husband expressed to her
their apposition to that decisian; however, Victoria nevertheless made the choice to retumn to
the man she loved.

Brian had completed his parole in March 2008, and at the time of the incident in
November 2008, he was 45 years old. Victoria was 54, On the avaning of the incident, the
neighbors wha lived below Brian and Victoria's apartment, Mr, and Mre. Toliver. heard loud
banging noises for close to an hour. Mr. Toliver went upstairs and found Brian holding
Victoria, who was Yying dead on the ground. She died of ane stab wound to her side. Another
neighbor, Todd Armbruster, entered the apartment and tried to go towards Brian, but Brian
took a swing at Armbruster, and returned to attend fo Victaria. Neighbors then called 911,
The police responded and found Brian lying on the floor next to Victoria's dead baody, cradling
and siroking her head. Although he was unarmed, his behavicr was erratic, and at times hs
was incoherent. He did not cooperate with commands to move away from his position of lying
with Victoria's body. After two TAZER shots he was handcuffed, remeved from the premises
and taken to the homicide offices. There, he gave a rambling statement indicating that he was
nat aware of Victorna's death or its cause.

Brian was extremely intoxicated at the time of the incident, having recently relapsed into
his addiction to alcohol, The fact of Brian's intoxicatian was shown by the preliminary hearing
testimony of Homicide Detective Wildemann and lay witness Todd Armbruster, and is aisc
evidenced in the video recording of Brian's interview with homicide detectives and the
photographs docurmenting his arest. The strang odor of alcohoi about Brian's person at the
time of his amest is also documented in the statement of arresting officer Ballejos. The
defense is not abia to show what Brian's blood alcohol level was because law enforcement
did not preserve this evidence by obtaining a test for his breath or blocd alcahol leve! either
before or after the interview,

Victona and Brian were drinking partners and were often seen drinking together an the

patio of the residence where the incident oceurred. Meighbors were shocked to leamn of the
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ncident because the couple always seemed to be very in tove with each ather. They had both
been drinking on the date of the incident, and at the time of her death, Victoria’s biood aicohol
content was .24, Atthe preiiminary hearing, Medical Examiner Dr. Benjamin testified that the
combination of Victoria's medications, as indicated by her toxicology screen, and aicohol
abuse could cause suicidal, violent or combative behavior by her. Additionally, aithough
Victoria's body showed multiple bruises, Victoria had Hepatitis C and somewhat advanced
Cirrhosis of the liver, which is known to cause bruising upon slight bumping contact or other
types of pressure to the body that is fess that what is normally required for bruising.

PRESENTLY AVAILABLE MITIGATION EVIDENCE

NRS 200.035 indicates that first-degree murder may be mitigated by certain statutory
mitigating circumstances, including, inter alia, that “[{jhe murder was committed while the
defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance,” as well as
by “any other mitigating circumstance.” Brian O'Keefe submits that at the very least, the
following mitigating circumstances are present:

(1) Btian wa the infi of ax e mental por

Brian has a long histary of addiction to alcohoi. He has, in the past, sought out
treatment for his addiction. Brian has had numerous admissicns to hospitais and treatment
canters dating back to 2001, and has repeatedly suffered physical withdrawal symptoms each
time, but has not been strong enough to maintain sobriety, He and Victoria actuaily met in
2001, when the two of them were undergaing inpatient treatment, Although both bad periods
of recavery, they had nonetheless relapsed at the time of the incident in guestion and were
extremely intoxicated at the time of the incident.

Although the defense acknowledges that voluntary intoxication is not a complete
defense, proof of voluntary intoxication may serve as a basis for a verdict less than first-degree
murder. In addition, couris have recognized that extreme intoxication may mitigate a first-
degree murder {0 the extent that the intoxication indicates the killing was not planned but was

4 16007




1 || a reaction to an emoticnally charged confrontation. See Chambers v, State. 113 Nev. 974,
2 || 944 P.2d 805 (1597).
3 Additionaily, although Brian is awaifing expert evaluations, at the time of his
4 | incarcaration, the doctors at Clark County Detention Center determined that he required
5 | medication for his mentai anxiety. Initial contact with farmily historians and others indicates
6 || that Brian may be suffering from PTSD, as a result of his military service, which is addressed
7] below. He was also underweight at birth and family members report possibie birth
8 complications. Accarding to his siblings, he also has a family history of mental health
9 | disorders, including bipolar disorder, and his alcohol dependency may have resulted from self-
1G § medicating thesa afflictions.
11| {2) Brian § ted Vi i) Un ta's Mifitary. Brian voluntarify joined the

12 | United States Army when he was 18 years ald, in 1981, He was a paratrooper during this time
13 [} and he served on active duty until his Honorable Discharge in 1985. He was decorated during
14 ) hig service with an Ariny Service Ribbon, an Army Good Conduct Medal, an Armed Forces
15 § Expedition Medal and a Bronze Star Medal far \aior.

16 | (3) Brian is remorgeful. From the time that Brian was arrested until today, he continues to
17| be emotionally distraught over the death of Victoria, his partner of several years.

18
19| children (ages 13, 21, and 25) and two minor children {ages 8 and 9), and these children will
20 | undoubtedly be adversely affected if their father were executed.

21 | {5} Brian's other family members wilf bg harmed by his execution. Brian's mother, father,
22 H step-mother and four living siblings care about Bran and will be adversely affected i he is
23 | executed.

24 | (6) Brlan maintained gai e jgnifican his life. After the

25 | military, and prior to suecurnbing to his alcohol addiction, Brian was steadily employed as a

pr. Brizn has three adult

26 | computer technician. After moving to Nevada in 1996, his employment became sporadic due
27 | to his drinking. Subseguent to his incarceration, however, he undertook study to become a

28 § journeyman, through a construction laborer's union, and was completing thal program just
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1 || prior to the incident.

2

3 | an early age, Brian's father, who was a traveling musician took him and hig siblings on the
4 | road, exposing him to an inappropriate environment of bars and adult entertainment clubs and
5 || transient housing arrangements.

6 TIME CONSTRAINTS ON MITIGATION PRESENTATION

& Counsel for Brian ('Keefe has been diligently reviawing both the eviderce as well as
8 | the possible existence of mitigators on his behalf. Because of time constraints, this
% | investigation remains at its early stages; however, the defense feels confident that as other
10 | records are obtained, additional mitigating evidence will become available.

B
F—a

NEED F DEQUA RTIO EVi
In order to protect against arbitrariness in capital sentencing, the State of Nevada

—
(8 ]
=

13 | shouid ensure proportionality in capital cases. Because proportionality is better achieved at

14 § the front end rather than the back end, a capitai case review cornmitiee as it exists within a
15| prosecutor's office exercises final discretion as to whether the death penalty may be sought.
16 || The Nevada Supreme Court has been {pathe to conducta cemparative proportionality review,
17 § in which it compares the death sentence under review with sentences imposed on similary
18 | situated defendants. during the direct appeal stage of capitai cases. Thus, to encourage
13 || transparency and the even application of the death penalty, prosecuting agencies should have
20 " wiitten policies for identifying cases in which to seek tha death penalty. Under the current

21 } caonstraints regarding access to such information, the dafense must rely upon the discretion

22 || of the Death Review Committee. The defense requests that this Honorable Body strive to
23 (| ensure the proportional application of the death penalty, and recognize that this penaity is not
24 || appropriately sought in this instance.
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CONCLUSION
For the reasons set forth abave, Counsel, on behalf of Brian O'Keefe, asks that this

Honorable Commiitee determine that this is not an appropriate case to seek death,
=
DATED this.ui day of December, 2008.

PATRICIA PALM

330 S. Third Street, Suite 800
Las Vegas, NV 89155
Altorneys for O'Keefe

EiPT OF COPY
RECEIPT of a copy of the foregeing Submission to Clark County District Attarney's

Death Review Commitiee is hereby acknowledged thisé 3} day of December, 2008,

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

5 Ave.)
Las Yegas NV B9155
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IN THE JUSTICE'S COURT OF LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLABRK COUNTY, NEVADA

ORIGINAL s
W2 25y

THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
i } F .
Plaintiff, ) il -l
1 LEFr - .'__l:ﬂUﬂr
vSs. }JC Case QBFZ23348X
yDepartment IX
BRYAN OKEEFE, ¥
)
Defendant. )
)

REFORTER'S THRANSCRIPT
or
PROCEEDINGS

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JQE BONAVENTURE
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

Taken on December 17, 200%
At 9:00 a.m.

APPEBRANCES;

For the State: PHILIP SMITH, E3Q.

Deputy Distric: Attorney

For the Defendant: BANDALL PIKE, ESC.
PATRICIA PALM, ESC.

Special Public Defender

Reported by: TOM MERCER, CCR No. 33
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Las Vegas, Nevada, December 17, 2008
9:00 a.m.
¥k ok 4
PEOCCEEDINGS

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Bryan
Ckeefe, 08F23348X.

Mr. Okeefe is present, in custody,
represented by the specilal public defender's office.

This is the time set for preliminary
hearing., 1Is the defense ready to procesd?

HMR. FIKE: We are, Yo¢ur Honor.

THE COURT: State?

ME. SMITH: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Preliminary matters?

HMR. FIKE: We would inwvoke the
exclusicnary rule,

THE CCURT: The exclusionary rule is in
effect on the Okeefe matter. BAny witnesses on this
case please remain outside, Who is vour first
witness,

MR. SMITH: The first witaess is Dr.
Benjamin, Dr. Jacguelin Berndamin.

THE COQURT: I was Just handed a copy of
the original amended crimiral complaint. Counsel, did

700029
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You receive an amended criminal complaint?
MRE. PIKE: We did, Your Hohor. It Jjust
adds, identifies the deadly weapon. We have no

chijectlion to it being Filed.

(Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn.)

THE CLERK: State your name, for the
record, and spell it.
THE WITWNESS: Jacqueline Banjamin, J

a-c-g-u-e=-l-i-n-¢ B -e-n-j-a-m-i-n.

JIRECT EXAMINATIOR.

MR. PIKE: For the purposes of the
preliminary hearing, Your Honor, we are going to
stipulate to the doctor's gualifications, expertise
and that she's testified as an expert and would be
qualified to offer expert opinion; she performed an
autopsy and was able to determine the cause of death,
which was a single stab wound, and the identity of thq
deceased was Victoria Whitmarsh.

MR. SMITH: Are you also going to
stipulate the manner of death was homicide?

MR. PIKE: Yeg.

Fa
MERCER & ASSOCIATES 'j
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THE COQURT: Defense 1s also going to
stipulate that the manner of death was homicide?

MR. PIKE: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE CCURT: Those stipulations will be
noted.

MR. SMITH: With that, I have no guestions
for the witness. 1I'll pass the witness.

MR. PIKE: That's the fastest direct
testimony the doctar's ever had. I have a few
questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Please procead

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. FIEE:

Q0. Doctor, you had an opportunity to perform the
aukopsy in this matter, 1s that correct?

A, That is correct.

2. As I indicated in the stipulation, there was
@ single stab wound. Can you demonstrate for the
Court where that was located?

B On the right lateral body wall, at the level
of the nipple.

Q. And that went into the body about four and a

guarter inches?

MERCER & ASSULLATES t}
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A. Approximately.

. In relationship to the zutrepsy that was
performed, there were other significant findings
regarding medical condition, is that correct?

A, Yax,

= And that was cirrhosis of the liver?

A, Correct.

Q. How advanced was that?

A. The cirrhosis was fairly advanced. It would
be more described as moderate to advanced Etage.

2. In addition to that there was hepatitis C
that was alsg found?

A, On laboratory testing, that is correct.

Q. There was alsa a testing for HIV, which
turned gut to be negative?

A, That's correct.

. During the course of the physical
examination, the exterior examinaticon of the body,
there was some bruising that was present; is that
correct?

B, That's correct.

Q. Can you describe for the Court how cirrhosis
of the liver and hepatitis C would affect bruising or
the manifestation of bruising of the body?

. There are a number of causes of cirrhosis,

MERCER & AS TES ﬂ_UGUSZ
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one is hepatitis €. Anocther that we commonly see in
eur population is alcoholic abuse. The virus or
chemical alcohol éan cause damage to the liver, which
results in the liver regenerating with fibrous tissue.
When you develop cirrhosis the liver doesn't function
as it normally does, so it does increase things like
the clotting factors, =o you would bruise a lot easier
than a normal individual.

Q. And based upon your chservations, the
bruising that was manifested on the exterior
examination may have heen influenced by the hepatitis
Cr or manifested more predominantly as a result of thel
cirrhosis of the liver of the patient?

A She would bruise a lot easier.

20 In relationship te the chemical examination
that was performed, it's my understanding there was
blood drawn and request for toxicology and that
revealed the blood alcohol level. D¢ you recall the
blood alconol level?

A Yes, point 24 gram percent.

Q. That's approximately three times *he level of
intoxication, legal level of intoxication?

&, Yes,

. The deceased we are talking about was a

rather petite woman?

FERCER & ASSOCTATES 000023
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A. Correct.

Q. What was her height and weight, if vyou
recall?

A. She was 65 inches and 108 pounds.

. For the record, the document you're leoaking

at 1s your autopsy report prepared by yourself,
dictated and then transcribed?

A Yes.

2. Also in relationship to that, there was an

indication there was venlafaxine within her system?

A. Tes.

0. And that is an antidepressant?

A Correct.

Q. Is there a2 counter indication, or help me

with the word I'm looking for, what would be some
pPossible adverse side effects from the combipation of
an antidepressant with that amount of alcohol?

A, Sgme of the side effects of venlafaxine are
nausea, dizziness, sleepiness and the alcohol iz alsec
a depressant, so the tws in combinatiocn can cause tg
be drowsy.

3. Ir relation to that, is there some reports ir
relationship to the manufacturer of the drug Effexor
indicating there may be easy bruising or bleeding as a

result of taking the anti depressants?

MERCER & BSSOCIAIES
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A. I don't recall that specifically, I would
have to lock that up.

0. I didn't have a chance to talk with You
before court today. Are the effects of this drug
something that you'd be more prepared for if you had a
chance to research it prior to coming in here?

&, Yes.

Q. And if I indicated there was alsg a side
effect with some sort of change in persanality, such
as agitation, aggravation, suvicide or possible
physical aggressiveness vyou wouldn't have ANy reason
te doubt that, would you?

A. No, I don't. Those are some of the side
effects.

MR. PIEKE: Thank you. Ng further

questions.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
ME. SMITH:
Q. Doctor, for the record, do you recall what

date you performed the autopsy on Miss Whitmarszsh?
A. I do. The date was November 7,

Q. Movembher 7, 20087

MERCER & ASSUCTIATES
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A. Correct.

MR, SMITH: Thank you. No further
guestians.

MR. PIKE: T have one guestion.

Q. When you are performing an autopsy, normally
You are not able to set an exact time of death; is
that correct?

&. That's correct,

MR. PIKE: Thank you. Nothing further.

THE COURT: Thank you for your time this
morning., You're excused.

MR. PIKE: For the record, the State also
has three photographs that they have indicated they
were going to present at the time of the preliminary
hearing. We've reviewsd those and have oo ohijection
te them being introduced.

MR. SMITH: Judge, at this point I move
for admission of State's Proposed 1, 2 andg 3.

THE COURT: Motion is granted, 1, 2 and 3
Wwill be admitted.

MR. SMITH: For the record, I have what
will be Defendant's Proposed A, B and C. The State
has no objection to those being admitted at this time.

THE COURT: You're moving for admission off

A, B and C?

MERCER & ASSOCIATES !10{301;6
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MR. PIKE: We do.
THE CQURT: Mption is granted.
MR. SMITH: The State’'s next witness is

going to be Officer Jeremiah Ballejos.
(Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn.|

THE CLERK: State your name, for the
record, and spell it.
THE WITNESES: Jeremiah Ballejos,

E a-l-l-e-j-o-s, J e-r-e-m-i-a-h.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SMITH:
Q. Mr. Ballejos, how are you presently emploved?
A, I'm a police oifficer with the Las Vegas

Metropolitan Police Department.

Q. And how long have you worked in that
capacity?

A, Four years.,

Q What detail are you presently assigned to?

A, Bolden Area Command, Proablem Solving Unit.,

Q Were you operating in that capacity on

Hovember %, 200872

MERCER & ASSOCTATES 0noon27
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Yes.

= Were you dispatched to 5001 El Pargue?
Yes. We assigned ourselves to that call.
Did you respond to that address?

Yes, we did,

Why did you respend to that address?

> o » 0o 2 o p

The details of the call sounded violent.
There was either possible suicide or some type of a
stabbing had occurred. There was reports of lots of
blood and there was a ¢.I.T. officer on the scene.
I'm alsy a Crises Intervention Team Qfficer.

o, Explain to us what crises intervention team
does? What are they tasked with deing?

A, Just high priority calls where we have activg
shooters, somebody who's trying to physically injure
themselves or attempting to commit sulcide, hostage
situations, active shooters. We try to get there and

bring the situation under control verbally 41f we can.

2. Is this scomething commonly known as a
negotiator?

A Yes.

{2, At the 5001 EL Parque address, had you

received some information that gave ¥You cause to

believe there was still a dynamic¢ situation at that

residence?

{702) 388-2973
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A, Yes.

Q. When you responded to the residence were you

wearing a uniform?

A. No.
Q. How were you dressed?
B, Plain ¢lothes with black heodie, jeans, my

hanging badge displayed.

Q. Your badge, meaning your identification as a
Metropolitan police officer?y

A, Yes.,

o. Was that clearly displayed upon you arriving
o this address?

i Tes.

g. When you arrived ko the address, who elss was

with wou?

Al My sergeant and Officer Sean Tavlor.

2. What's your sergeant's name?

A, Daniel Newberrcy.

B Is he a member of the C.I.T. team?

A. I'm not sure.

Q. Ts officer Taylor a member of the C.I.T.
team?

A, Na.

Q. Was Qfficer Taylor present at the scenea upon

Your arrival, or did you guys get there at the same

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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time?
A, We were all in the same vehicle,
Q. %0 when you arrived at the scene, tell us

what happens next?

A. When I arrived at the scene there's heighbors

standing outside their apartment doors. You go up the
steps along a catwalk and this is where Officer Kahn
is already inside, trying to get access to this pEISDJ
that was injured, tg Victoria.

. Tou just said wvictoria., Would that he
Victoria Whitmarsh?

A, Yes.

Q. Suffice it to say you did not know her name

at the time?

A. No, I did not.

Q. You subsequently learned her name?
A Yes; sir.

Q. Wnat happens nexc?

A, Because Officer Kazhn has already established
centact with Bryan, or Mr. Okeefe, Mr. QOkeefe is kind
of barricaded himnself or set P & barrier between
Officer Kahn and himself and Victoria, or the victim.

They are in the back bedroom.

C. He, being Bryan Okeefe?
Al Yes.
MERCER & BBSOCIATES ‘dﬁﬂ 040
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2. In¢ldently, do you see Bryan Okeefe present
in court today?
MR. FIKE: Stipulate to identity,
THE COURT: Thank you.
MR. SMITH:
Q. ¥You referred te him as Bryan QOkeefe. Did voul

know his name at this time?

A. No, I did not,

. You subsequently learned his name?

A. Yes, =ir.

. Continue, please,

A, Officer Kahn is trying to talk to Mr. Okeefe

in the back bedroom, trying to get him to come out,
because the ambulance will not come in until wea've
caused the scene to be static, where there's no more
viglence aor no more dynamic situatian going on.

2. No threat of further danger or harm?

R. Exactly. So we are trying to ask Mr. Okeafe
te come out of the bedroom. Because at this point we
can't visibly see where he's at. One of the
statements I heard him saying to Officer Kahn is,
"fuck you, you come in here."

Based on my experience on the department,
a lot of times when that happens somebady is trying to

get you to give up your -- your position of

MERCER & ASGUCIATES
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concealment or pretection, they are trying teo bait youl
in where now you are subject to being shot at. We
Just didn't know anything about Mr. COkeefe at the
time.

Q. 50, suffice it to say there was concern for

officer's safety?

A. Yasg,
0. As a result of that what happened next?
A. sergeant Newberry ends up moving te a point

just around the door near the kitchen. He does a
quick peek just around the deor to get an idea of
where the suspect was in the bedroom.

2. And where are you at?

o Right behind Offi¢cer Kahn. We have moved to
the deep south part of the living room. The reason
for that was to try and get z good line of sight or
see as deep in to the bedroom as we could.

a. At this point had you seen inside tche
bedraom?

A, You could see the bedroom. All I could make
out at that point was the bed. The shests were soaked)
in kloed.

Q. Qfficer, for the record, I'm showing you
what's been admitted as State's Exhibit 3. Does that

picture accurately reflect the scene that yau just

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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described?
A, Yes.
Q2. Continue, please.
A, All we can make out frem that position was

the bed. And there was large amounts of blcod. Sa

the victim -- we knew there was 2z serious injury. So
we -- Sergeant Newberry does a quick peek to kind of
get a position where the suspect is. We stack up,

which 1s just based on our training, in a four man
element to go into the roam.
0. Had vou seen any bodies inside the room at

this point?

A. Mo,
2. What happens next, officer?
A, As we enter the room, Cfficer Kahn, follawed

by myself, follow by Officer Taylor and I baliave

there was a fourth man, T didn't know who it was, I

Just knew another officer was behind me., We enter thel

room. As we enter into bedroom, I see the wictim's

feet showing from outside the edge of the hed.

Q. Tes, sir.

A. Her body is in a position where she's facing
up.

Q. Ckay.

AL And as we move in with a lethal option and a

MERCER & ASSOCIRTES
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non~lethal option, which is the electronic control
device which commonly known as the tazer, started

dgiving him verbal commands.

0. Him being Bryan Okeefe?

A. Yex,

Q. Does he respond to these verbal commapds?

A He starts telling us, "Don't look at her,
don't look at her."” He's trying to cover up, starts

tugging at her shirt.

Q. What were the wverbal commands that you were
giving him?

A, Trying, to get up off her and to move away
from her.

Q. Had you identified yourselves as officers of
the Las Vegas Metropolitan Palice Department?

A, Yes, sir. BAnd there was two officers in

standard uniform dress.

Q. What happened next?

F. He's shouting over us.

Q. He, being the defendant?

A Yes, sir. Mr., Ckeefe is shouting over the

commands .
What I notice when we go in, he's kind of
trying t¢ cover the body from us, won't lat us get fo

her. And the shouting just continues. We were

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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worried with the amount of blood that we've already
seen if we didn't get to her and get him cut so we can
get in the worse she was geling to be.

Q. Let me ask you this. When you observed the
body of the female, were you able to ascertain if
there were any signs of life, in your training and
experience?

A, Her eyes were ppen, her mouth was open. What
I neticed about her she was lying on her back, head
facing to the west, toes to the east. It didn't lock
LZke she had any oLher clothing other than a T-shirt.

2. Let me ask you this. When vou saw her at

this point did she appear to be deceased?

A I honestly didn't know.

Q. Couldn't tell?

A I couldn't tell.

C. Showing you what's been admitted intao
evidence as S5tates Exhibit 1. Does that plcture

acclrately reflect the body of the person that you

just described?

A, Yes.
Q. What happened next, officer?
A, Because we wanted to get help to Victoria, 1

S§aw & moment of opportunity. He was kind of sWinging

his arm away from us te keep us at bay, and he exposed

MERCER & BSSOCIATES
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his torso.
Q. Yes, sir.
A, So we used the E.C.D. device with the probes

placement in his torso area to try and get him under

control. The E.C.D. cycles for a five second cycle.
Q. Okay.
A. He was -- Qfficer Taylor was able ta get one

hand under control and behind his back. That five

second cycle expired so he was srill able -- trying to
fight off.

Q. He, being the defendant?

A. Okeefe was trying te fight off with his rignt

hand. He was given a warning to comply or there would]
be a second cygle,

2. What happened next?

A, He did not comply, so there was a second
Cycle of the E.C.D. He was brought under Dower,
handcuffed and removed from the apartment and placed
out on the catwalk.

Q. You said there was a second deployment of the
E.C.D, cyecle. PDid you deploy that cycle?

A. Yes, both times.

MR. SMITH: Pass the witness, Judge.

CROSS EXAMINATION

ERCER & ASSOCIATES
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that Officer Kahn was already inside, the C.I.T.

PALM:
0.
A,

Q.

cfficer?

didn't learn his name until later.

Sergeant Newberry and Officer Taylor?

there plus Officer Kahn?

except for the bedroom light?

Primarily dark. The back bedroom there was a light

an.

A.

Q.

A,

Q.

A.

Q.

A,

Q.

Good morning, officer.
Good morning.

When you arrived at the apartment, you said

Yes.

Were there other officers already inside?
Yes,

Would that be Santa Rosa and Fambosa {ph?

Cfficer Fambosa was there:; Santa Rosa, I
S50 the three of you came in together, you,

Yes,

Jeining the two other officers already in

Yes.

When you entered all the lights were gff

What drew my attention is the living room was

That would be the bedroom that Mr. Okeefe waﬁ
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ultimately found in?

A Yes.

O. The living room light off, kitchen light off,
do you recall?

A. That I don't know,

Q. You testified on direct that in your
experience you felt sometimes peaple who are calling
You into a room are trying to bait you basically?

A. Right.

Q. But when you eventually looked arcund the
corner Mr. Qkeefe wasn't doing anything to cause

danger teo officers, was he?

A, No.

. He didn't have any weapons in his hands?

A, No. There was a knife on the bed but no
weapons.

Q. And he was a distance from that knife on the

bed, he was actually on the floor, correct?

&. Yes.

0. And while you were standing there observing
the bedroom before you made entry, yYou never saw Mr,

Okeefe walking back and forth across your line of

sight?
A, Na,
Q. When you were hearing this voice, could you

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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tell whether it was stationary or not, when you
couldn't see him?

A, Gther than it was coming from the bedroem, I
couldn't tell.

Q. When you stacked up oputside of the bedroom
door, how far away from the actusl bedtoom door were
you?

A, It's not that very big an apartment. Maybe
12, 15 feet.

2. And at that stack-up position vaou still
couldn't see inside the bedroom?

A, Right. The reason that took piace as opposed
te just walking in there, it was esrie. Officer Kahn
iz trying to talk te him, man, we need to get the
ambulance in there, we need to make sure she's okay,
these guys want to help but vou need to come aut of
there so they can come in, And it was eerie the Waly
he said it, not like an urgent fuck you, gome in here,
I need help now, it was like, "Fuck you, come in
here.”™

Q. 30 hils voice didn't seem consistent to you
with somebody that --

R It didn't sesm as thoughk the cffering of help
was wanted by Mr., Okeefe.

Q. I saw that you indicate -- do you recall
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